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— FEFR - FEFLF — 2007 marks a milestone in our transformation

TR B FERZ 8 R AB B AT S T into a pure consumer company as the divestment of the non-core
1R E R B Bin N Al EZEFE o 40 petroleum and related products distribution business was fully
2 B &R BRI ZE G FIE R completed. Our turnover now comprises purely the fast growing core
JBERTE o XELES T - N FE B KK FT consumer businesses. With a clear corporate structure, our future
REREE EDEHT prospects are more transparent to investors.

BR R

— LS

H £% Contents

8 BREEMER
LETTER TO INVESTORS
10 2EHER
COMPANY PROFILE

11 EEZEBE
CORPORATE STRUCTURE

12 UHBHE
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
14 ERERARERME - BUA - EREHARRD TR
ANALYSIS OF TURNOVER AND EBITDA
16 BREEHENDHE
ANALYSIS OF PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE
TO SHAREHOLDERS
18 =—ZTLHFERE
MILESTONES IN 2007
20 EE#HE
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
32 LEHIHE
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
36 EEEFWEIAN
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
56 EEREEERARZHE
BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT
62 tEEREE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
71 EEEHE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
95 BIRBEHRE
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
97 FEBER
CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
98 FeREERER
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
100 ¥E&EX
BALANCE SHEET
101 #EBR&REE
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
103 “#eBRERREH®
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
105 MsmENEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
177 EIEMBARARBEDNS
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES
186 EEMEHE
SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES
190 AFHBERRE
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
191 BRREFASEESHE
SUMMARY OF NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

AR E B e B
BENFE - EARBYHHE
BELEHEP -

Our supermarket business
strives to meet each of our
customers’ needs and bring you
a great shopping experience.
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As the best selling national
brand, “SNOW” caters for

different tastes from all walks
of life.
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Rom BA BEZEEESR -
Our food business offers you
an array of premium food
products from fresh meat to
seafood delicacies.
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Our high-quality textile products
give you a touch of comfort to
ensure total satisfaction.
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LETTER TO INVESTORS
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Our years of continuous efforts have made 2001 one of CRE's best years ever. We finighed the year with record earnings
and earnings per gnare. There was 3 I2% increase in underlying profit for the full year as core consumer-related businesses
reported @ 504% underlying profit growth filling the earnings gap after divesting the petroleum business in June 2007

2001 was 8180 8 year of fransformation for CRE as we fully completed the divestment of the petroleum business and
ushered into @ new era of growth with turnover generated entirely from the core consumer businesses. A number of
strategic investments were made 8t the same fime t0 strengthen our consumer busingsses.  Capital expenditure of 18st
year, indeed, increased by 15 fimes from that of 200b. In this rapid process of market consolidation, T am particularly
gratified f0 gee our ability to infegrate newly dcquired businesses and markets. With 8 clear corporate strueture, you can
read our future prospects easily and confidently.

our efforts in focusing on what we are good at bear fruits as CRE share price surged 50% during the year, outperforming
the market by g% We continue to increase our basic dividend payments for the sixth conseeutive year, with annual basic
payout ratio increased from 411% 0 41.9% There was 8 special dividend of HK$oLo per share for the disposal of pefroleum
distribution operation in Hong Kong - the 1ast asset of the petroleum buginess.

We strive 10 improve investor relations and enhance corporate governance.  The awards and recognitions we received
during the year as set out on page 2L speak volume for our commitment in this regard.  There is 3ls0 a8 new seetion
on corporafe social responsibility this year to ghow how we fulfill our role as @ corporafe cifizen. The following pages
will walk you through CRE from different perspectives, enabling you 10 gain a befter understanding of CRE behind its
financial figures.

Our gspiration fo be the 1argest consumer company in ching is the driving force behind CRE. Looking ahead, T truly believe
we will realize this vision with 8 team of talented and committed employees.

50Ng Lin
Cha8irmarn

3l March 2008
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COMPANY PROFILE

HMAEERAF ([ EBAE ) ABEBERSHM ETNAT
SIS B DI BARE RES M5BT « AR B AT EBAR R
MEREAES - AEBUER  ARERETE AR KENHH
B RBHBER RIS ES - SIRNE AR
FEABERRME - KRS KR ROEN AT E L
—#5  RAREENERYERSHEE -

China Resources Enterprise, Limited (CRE) is a listed
company on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, with business emphasis
on the consumer sector of the Chinese Mainland and Hong Kong.
Our mission is to become the largest consumer company in China.
To achieve this, the Group has already established leading presence
in our core business domains of retail, food, beverage and textile.
There are operational synergies among these consumer-related
businesses. Notably, food, beverage as well as textile form part of
the supply chain for the retail business, together driving the Group’s
overall development.

10 EHMAIZAMRAF China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report 2007 3R
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE

ZE
Retail

X am

Beverage

BEmINT &
Food Processing and
Distribution

AT

Textile

BREMF

Investment Property

BRERHMER
Investments and
Others

B EE -

AEEBRZZEZLFRAZTNAHEREEMCREEDN
AHMEHEEY  ARBESEEAGHREBEREH

WS

EHEARBRAA

China Resources Enterprise, Limited

AR TS R i R 11 7 i AR 8
Supermarket and Brand-fashion
Logistics Distribution

EREIEREARAF] (51%)
China Resources
Snow Breweries Limited (51%)

BT RAEFFE
Food Processing and
Stock Raising

Ry
Foodstuff Distribution

Spinning and Weaving Garment
REWE

Investment Properties

HIT Investments Limited
(10%)

Note:

and related products distribution business.

HMTEE
Other Retail Stores

HF K
Purified Water

BE - Eh R EM
Abattoir Operation,
Transportation and Others

EAh
Others

Hutchison Ports Yantian
Investments Limited

(10%)

The Group completed the disposal of its petroleum distribution operation in Hong
Kong on 29 June 2007 and thereafter no longer has any interest in the petroleum

##MAIZAMRA T China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report 2007 F3§

11



BB E
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

HE_FTT+F+-A=1+—HI-¥FZ For the year ended 31 December 2007

—Z2ZtF ZEERF ZETRF

BEHER BEEET BEEET

2007 2006 2005

HKS million HK$ million HK$ million

S Turnover® 62,123 65,437 53,891

VNG Profit attributable to 4,961 2,776 2,220
FEAE A shareholders of the Company*

FRREREF? (BT ) Basic earnings per share® (HK$) $2.09 $1.19 $1.02

IR S (BT ) Dividend per share (HK$)

FEf Interim So.15 $0.14 $0.13

REA Final $0.30 $0.26 $0.25

$0.45 $0.40 $0.38

RE Rl AR Special interim $0.60 $1.00 —

BiiRE

1. ZERFRECRBEMBREENS s HIFDRILEERT - AhRIBHERCHEED 2 e XBREREEET - ZOKRILEEXHE 2 EBEECHRIFINE X
BREREEEN IR o

2. BREABNTIBEREEENRAFADETRONMEFIBAE - ZBFERCRUEKEXB2ERERRNEE 1.0970 ( ZFTRF - B¥os3TT) °

3. BEEFEGAEFUFREAEROLA -

A RRRE RS

12

BREXBR
Basic Earnings Per Share
7 H TTHKS
2.5
2.09
2.0
15

1.19

0.5

2005 2006 2007

#MAIZARAT China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report 2007 #3§

Equity Attributable to
Shareholders of the Company

VB E B ITHKS million

25,000
22,871
20,000 19,141
18,196
15,000
10,000
5,000
2005 2006 2007



MBHE
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

R-EBZLHF RIZTRF RZZETREF
+=A=+-—H +TZA=+—H +TZA=+—H
BERERT BEEHETT BEBEST
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December
2007 2006 2005
HKS million HK$ million HK$ million
PN Y e Equity attributable to 22,871 19,141 18,196
shareholders of the Company
VPSR Minority interests 7,293 5,824 4,747
B Total equity 30,164 24,965 22,943
LA E R Consolidated net borrowings 4,004 1,781 3,283
R Gearing ratio’ 13.3% 7.1% 14.3%
BN LL Current ratio 1.05 1.08 1.12
BREEFE Net assets per share: $9.59 $8.12 $8.15
BRHEE (BT ) book value (HK$)
Notes:

1.

These amounts include turnover and profit attributable to shareholders contributed by the Petroleum and Related Products Distribution division, which is
presented as discontinued operation according to the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 5. The respective amounts of the discontinued operation
are separately disclosed in the analysis of turnover and profit.

Basic earnings per share have been calculated by dividing the profit attributable to shareholders by the weighted average number of shares in issue during
the year. The amount includes basic earnings per share of the discontinued operation of HK$1.09 (2006: HK$0.43).

Gearing ratio represents the ratio of consolidated net borrowings to total equity.

BREEFE  REE

Net Assets Per Share: Book Value

B TTHKS
© 9.59
8.15 8.12
8
6 I
4
2
2005 2006 2007

FHRRERE R

Return on Average Equity

Btk Percentage (%)

25

23.6
20
14.9
15
13.3
10
5
-
2005 2006 2007

##MAIZARAT China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report 2007 F3§
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EXRBMARETAE - BA - ITE REIEATA R DR
ANALYSIS OF TURNOVER AND EBITDA'

HE_FTT+F+-A=1+—HI-¥FZ For the year ended 31 December 2007

BEXBZEER

Turnover by segment

17%

41%

380/0

1%
31%

8%

12%
o, (o) O, (o)
21% 1% 7% 9% 14%
RIEEB AL  HE - TERBHAEF
EBITDA by segment
33% 3%
19%
23% 4%
18%
19% °
10% 14%
6% 10% 6% |12% 23%
& R BmINT RAESH ik
. Retail . Beverage . Food Processing and Distribution . Textile
. REMHE . ARRIERERSHE (BRIEEEER) . RE R H A TS
Investment Property Petroleum and Related Products Distribution Investments and Others

(Discontinued operation)

14 FBAIEBMADF China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report 2007 Fk



BRBEARHE ~ BB - ERBEHEAMAN DR
ANALYSIS OF TURNOVER AND EBITDA

—B2LHF —ETRE #m/CRd)
BETET BEEET Increased/
2007 2006 (Decreased)
HKS million HK$ million %
BIEXEB 2 EXRHE Turnover by segment
B FET Core Businesses
e Retail 26,008 20,418 27.4%
Rim Beverage 13,304 9,455 40.7%
RINT RALH Food Processing and Distribution 7,381 6,092 21.2%
FUE Textile 4,713 4,453 5.8%
REME Investment Property 375 349 7.4%
NEt Subtotal 51,781 40,767 27.0%
BihE#H Other Businesses
Aol R AR A R AL S Petroleum and Related Products Distribution 10,610 25,100 (57.7%)
(BRILEEHER) (Discontinued operation)
RERHEMER Investments and Others = —
gt Subtotal 10,610 25,100 (57.7%)
62,391 65,867 (5.3%)
HHEBM 2P Elimination of inter-segment transactions (268) (430) (37.7%)
“zE Total 62,123 65,437 (5.1%)
BEEK 2 RFAFE
BB WERESAER  EBITDA by segment
B FER Core Businesses
e Retail 1,536 1,044 47.1%
KT Beverage 1,514 1,306 15.9%
B n L AR Food Processing and Distribution 841 703 19.6%
Ak Textile 461 346 33.2%
REWZE Investment Property 836 783 6.8%
NEt Subtotal 5,188 4,182 24.1%
Pt 33 Other Businesses
i R AR EE fn A6 Petroleum and Related Products Distribution 2,677 1,273 110.3%
(BERIEEEHER ) (Discontinued operation)
BARHEMEER? Investments and Others® 250 253 (1.2%)
NEF Subtotal 2,927 1,526 91.8%
“HzE Total 8,115 5,708 42.2%
B Notes:
1. EBITDA AKRFHHIE - BiIE - T8 REHATRF) - 1. EBITDA represents earnings before interests, taxation, depreciation and amortization.

2. REREMEBEERAEH

BR -

##MAIZAMRA T China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report 2007 F3§

SN B A FRERIRMAE 2. Investments and Others include share of net result of associates less corporate overheads.
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AR G E M DT &

ANALYSIS OF PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

HE_FTT+F+-A=1+—HI-¥FZ For the year ended 31 December 2007

BIHEL 2 R R F
Profit attributable to shareholders by segment

8% 10%

6%

14%

10%

3%

50% 34%

13%

7% | 6%
150/0

2%

22%

SEEBNBRRENESGEREETEFRLEE REFEZRRELRA

Profit attributable to shareholders excluding the effect of investment property revaluation and

major disposal of non-core assets/investments by segment

19%
22%

21%

14%
8%

10%
8%

21%

11% 26%
5% 21% 11% 3%
& K B0 I T R ASSH FuE
. Retail . Beverage . Food Processing and Distribution . Textile
RE R H A TS

. REMHE . Bl RABRAE A ( BRIEEEER)
Investment Property Petroleum and Related Products Distribution
(Discontinued operation)

16 =HMAIZAMRAF China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report 2007 %R
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PR EF 2D
ANALYSIS OF PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

—ETLHF ZEERF @ CRd)
AYEET BEBEET Increased/
2007 2006 (Decreased)
HKS million HK$ million %
BIEEKZ Profit attributable to shareholders
BREREMLER by segment
BT Core Businesses
= Retail 521 217 140.1%
Rim Beverage 303 174 74.1%
R TR AS$H Food Processing and Distribution 531 435 22.1%
“k Textile 144 61 136.1%
REME Investment Property 648 647 0.2%
NEF Subtotal 2,147 1,534 £40.0%
HE% Other Businesses
Ao S AR A R AL S Petroleum and Related Products Distribution 2,582 1,002 157.7%
(BRIEEEETR) (Discontinued operation)
REREMER Investments and Others 429 421 1.9%
/NEF Subtotal 3,011 1,423 111.6%
5,158 2,957 74-4%
NRIEHFIEFERER  Net corporate interest and expenses (197) (181) 8.8%
#azg Total 4,961 2,776 78.7%
BEEKNBRKREWE Profit attributable to shareholders
EMRHETEHRZL  excluding the effect of investment property
BE /REFZE KR revaluation and major disposal of non-core
AL F assets/investments by segment
BT Core Businesses
=€’ Retail' 500 203 146.3%
Rim Beverage 303 174 74.1%
Ron T RA&H’ Food Processing and Distribution® 471 435 8.3%
ks’ Textile? 122 59 106.8%
wEYE Investment Property* 240 215 11.6%
NEF Subtotal 1,636 1,086 50.6%
Bt Other Businesses
o M AR R A AR AR 8 ° Petroleum and Related Products Distribution® 183 519 (64.7%)
(BRILEEHER) (Discontinued operation)
RE R H MRS Investments and Others 429 421 1.9%
2% Subtotal 612 940 (34.9%)
2,248 2,026 11.0%
NAMEEF S FERER  Net corporate interest and expenses (197) (181) 8.8%
#zE Total 2,051 1,845 11.2%
Ff Notes:

1. EEMTEEBABBZIXEAEFEERBOBSonET 1
(ZZTRF B0y B ) ETBIEEHEES -
EBOMEBETORELERENRMBFRNEE 2
TR ) o
3. EhmE %ﬁ%?ﬁ%ﬁZI%ﬁEi%ﬁﬁ&?ﬁ &
= NE B 2EET) REEBERER %"U?&mm%
NE ) ET@%EﬁiﬁﬂF
TEREEEAHOBRE 4088 T (ZFTTX
F B 432080 ) DEGEERBRREEE TR OREMENS

2 BRINT R
0.6012 7T (

4 BEMEXEBOEET
EVI

5. RIFTLFAAR ARECEREEEOHRAMERCHEEL 5.

2 A W EER KB 2
IRHEBARET R -

T@%Hﬁﬁ‘*E&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@%&@ﬁ@@%‘m B 48318

excluded from the results of Food Processing and Distribution division.

of the Investment Property division.

A o s M2 R A MARRE &
T MR A R R

##MAIZARAT China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report 2007 F3§

Net valuation surplus of approximately HK$21 million (2006: HK$14 million) arising mainly from
industrial building held by the Retail division has been excluded from its results.

Net gain on disposal of associates amounting to approximately HK$60 million (2006: Nil) has been

Net valuation surplus of approximately HK$12 million (2006: HK$2 million) arising mainly from
industrial building held by the Textile division and a gain on disposal of an associate amounting to
approximately HK$10 million (2006: Nil) have been excluded from its results.

4. Net valuation surplus and disposal gains of certain non-core investment properties with an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$408 million (2006: HK$432 million) have been excluded from the results

The disposal of the Group’s 100% equity interest in the Petroleum and Related Products Distribution
business was completed at the end of June 2007 with a total gain of approximately HK$2.4 billion.
The gain was excluded from the result of the division.
valuation surplus with an aggregate amount of HK$483 million had been excluded from the 2006 results.

Net gain on disposal of an investment and net

17



T FERER
MILESTONES IN 2007

e TRWBLZHE o THEBAZLHE o AKX UK R E 7l
HEBEBEARR A REBERNHER IEH (&£8) BRE
90% 1z ° A7) 100% B © AP R (/NI
The acquisition The acquisition of The acquisition
of a 90% a 100% interest of Blue Sword
interest in Anhui in Inner Mongolia (Group)
Shengli Brewery Batehan Brewery Company
Company Company Limited Limited was
Limited was was completed. completed.
completed.

F-1  i%g |

e THEEBFTAAME o B(RMPEER)BEFTE

% W E AT K5 Al ENSECEERQA ]

fix 8 Fh% &% 0.60 7T ° Z—°

The disposal of the The Group was commended

petroleum operation as one of Asia’s Best

in Hong Kong was Companies for Corporate

completed and a Governance by Corporate

special dividend of Governance Asia.

HK$0.60 per share

was declared in the

following month.

Y e TR

—I_ﬂ o MINBIERBEEESR o HIREEIBY
RABIKAARE EEZE RBTEREE/
% 65% BT 2 &) EHERIE -
Hangzhou United The Group
Meat Group entered into a
Company Limited HK$3.2 billion

revolving credit/
term loan facility
agreement with
a syndicate

of banks.

became a 65%
subsidiary of the
Group.

18 =MAIZAMRAF China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report 2007 3R
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The Group was
named as one
of the “Best

o GETIRIKE B
HENTET T -« 8o
REmER -

A global roadshow
highlighting our
supermarket,
beverage and food

R FBIER
MILESTONES IN 2007

B KEBRA
rEB2EER
E 3

The purified
water operation
became wholly-
owned by the

in Corporate businesses was Group.
Governance, conducted.
China” by The
Asset.
ﬁ
e
j_LH o MATHEREER
J& Vango 7£ & I

SEP

Fi

Vango, a new
convenience
store format,
was opened in
Shenzhen.

>

EE]BBESER
% 5,000,000 T F * &
5 2 IR S R [ R
25 e
With a sales volume
exceeding 5 million
kiloliters, “SNOW”
became one of the
leading beer brands
in the world.

##MAIZARAT China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report 2007 F3§
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EEHmE
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

PRES

EREREEDERNEFRET  AEEE N
PERZLDHEERS  YWERIFRLEEEE £
—TELFENEEBATS BE_TTLF
TZA=Z+—HLFE ARAFABRREEAEE
FEMNARBE 49.618T0 W_TTXRFE
EN78.7% » RINEE ETARK = - BRET
BINETHELAS T EEE 20970 B -F
TREEE L1970 - FREIEHS -

ZETEFRA  AEEEREEERLESA
HEIEHER N LR - S IWREE 23.99 18
T ° HIBRE AR IR H R AR E fhAC SE TSR & 3
HER  AEEEE T+ _-_A=1+—8H
LIEFEMGE EEBAAYE 515131870 + LLAIF
BN 27.7% °

ROHBEBRIART) - RAMEHHEXRBER
MWL  FHRREMEEHRERNHESEE
WRIRETE  EROBBEBIER 50.6% MWL
BT BE-_FTTLFFT_A=1T—HALFE
AN X B IR ER B AR AN SR B AR AR A A A N

11.2% °

BRE

EFgdEN T \FAT=85A1E - [
ZEENFAAZ AR AEARBREA M
REIRE —ZTFERARE - BREE0.30
7T ZZTERF: BRBBo26T ) ° TEHHE
FRIRE - ERPHKREERES st - —F
SHFEEMRELEFETRAEE 045m ( =
TTNRF B o4 ) RZTERF
HEhN13% o NEEHEEEE R E R E AR
MABBE REHEERKE  R_TTEFNARZ
ZERFTZA - DRI LIRES IR E SRS
B o0.60 TR EBIRABME 1T ©

Final Results
With the flourishing economy in the Chinese Mainland and Hong Kong,

reinforced by the Group’s parallel efforts to expand core consumer
businesses and realize the value of non-core assets, the Group
reported another record year in 2007.
profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders for the year ended
31 December 2007 amounted to approximately HK$4,961 million,

The Group’s consolidated

representing an increase of 78.7% over that of 2006, the highest since
our listing.
HK$2.09, also a new high, compared to HK$1.19 in 2006.

Earnings per share, on a weighted average basis, was

The disposal of the entire interest in the Group’s non-core petroleum
distribution operation in Hong Kong was completed in June 2007
and generated a gain of HK$2,399 million. Excluding the turnover
contribution of the discontinued operation in petroleum and related
products distribution, the Group’s consolidated turnover for the year
ended 31 December 2007 amounted to approximately HK$51,513

million, representing an increase of 27.7% from the previous year.

The strong performance of core consumer-related businesses had
compensated for the loss in profit contribution from this divested
operation. Excluding the after-tax effect of revaluation of investment
properties and major disposals, the Group’s underlying consolidated
profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders would have increased
by 11.2% for the year ended 31 December 2007 driven by the 50.6%

growth of the core consumer-related businesses.

Dividends
The Board recommends a final dividend of HK$0.30 per share for

2007 (2006: HK$0.26 per share) payable on or about 13 June 2008
to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members of
the Company on 26 May 2008. Together with the interim dividend
of HK$0.15 per share, the total distribution for 2007 will amount to
HK$0.45 per share (2006: HK$0.40 per share). This represents an
increase of 13% over 2006, excluding the payment of special dividends.
Special dividends of HK$0.60 per share and HK$1 per share were paid
in August 2007 and December 2006 respectively in respect of the
sequential disposals of the Group’s petroleum and related products
distribution operations in Hong Kong and the Chinese Mainland.

#MAIZARAT China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report 2007 #3§



EEMERDBFERFE
ARBH-_ZEZNFAA-+RAE-ZTEN
FEA-THIE ( BREREMX ) BERHER
MBFELTE - ATEEKRIREHER
FIAREZNBPRRERGRNRE - RIEAN -
ZZNFHEA T =B TFER=THARER
RAHBRMBFPREFEREARAR  HILAE
BEFE2RREBR 28K EED L 2648

REEHEAT

B
REARARESEAREEECENBZR A%
ETERENZOIBBER - ISSIBRTISEE
X RBABFEN  WARRERETER - #HE
ZEELFF AT —HIEFE - ARENE
AHALEILEE 10080 BT NFHER 15
& REMARRBRTEED - FRTROE
BURB B IR | E 25 R8RS DBk
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bR - SWEERTNIEE T —RPAEIN I AR o

RN - AEBEE NS RZOEGES B
WIRZ BB ER R EE - XFA - BN
LAASHE 40 f87T - HEB BN AMCHETR - £
BB 23.99 870 AANMIABE RAIEE
BEOHER L2 IR °

AEEEHATEFRDLHARE - BEDSH
TR - AREMRM - SR RAHBEIFAEK
REBMEBHRERN—BD  LERRES @ @
RAREENBBETHEEA - B3 - RAKM
HitRWEmM  BRIRESAHERZ — - K&
EETTH2EN [ SE | 8N LHEERITE
AR BB AR o

ERWE
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Closure of Register
The Register of Members will be closed from 26 May 2008 to 29 May

2008, both days inclusive. In order to be eligible for the final dividend,
all completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the share registrars of the Company,
Tricor Standard Limited of 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on 23 May 2008.

Strategy Implementation

Corporate Strategy

To accomplish its objective of becoming the largest consumer company
in China, the Group has been investing in the core consumer businesses
to enhance market position, improve competitiveness and develop
platform for future growth. For the year ended 31 December 2007,
the Group incurred nearly HK$10 billion on capital expenditure, 1.5
times more than that of 2006, with a majority on beverage and retail
businesses. Major acquisitions during the year included the residual
minority interest in the brewery operations in Sichuan Province and
seven breweries in Liaoning Province, Anhui Province, Hunan Province,
Guizhou Province as well as the Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region.
In addition, there were investments in the greenfield breweries under
construction and existing breweries under renovation for capacity
upgrade. The capital expenditure on our supermarket operation last
year was mainly for new store opening and purchase of store properties.
A total of approximately 230 supermarket stores were opened during
the year. Our food business also upgraded its marine fishing fleet and
added a meat processing company in Hangzhou.

Concurrently, the Group has been divesting businesses or assets which
are outside our core portfolio or which lack critical mass. Last year, the
petroleum distribution operation in Hong Kong was divested in June
for HK$4,000 million and generated a gain of HK$2,399 million. This
completed the disposal of the entire petroleum and related products
distribution business.

The Group is also making satisfactory progress in the implementation
of our retail-led distribution strategy. The Group’s food, beverage and
textile businesses have started to form part of the supply chain for our
supermarket operation. In particular, the food business, which has a
long history of supplying fresh meat, vegetables, rice and other food
products to our supermarkets in Hong Kong, is currently one of their
largest suppliers. “SNOW?”, our national brand for beer, is also sold
extensively in our mainland supermarkets.
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Turnover by geographic region

The Group has also been accelerating its investments in the Chinese
Mainland.
31.3% of profit before tax was from the mainland, compared with 59.3%
and 41.4% respectively in the year ended 31 December 2006. The

For the year under review, about 66.7% of turnover and

reduction in significance of pre-tax profit from the Chinese Mainland was
mainly due to the distortion caused by the gain from the divestment of
non-core petroleum distribution operation in Hong Kong.

BRBLADR R E D A
Profit before tax by geographic region
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Business Strategy

Whilst the mainland consumer market is full of opportunities, the
Group adheres to an overall principle of district dominance so that
economies of scale can be achieved swiftly in the targeted district. A
culture on cost efficiency in daily operation, looking for concurrent
cost control and productivity enhancement, has also been promulgated
internally. Effective means include centralized procurement, streamlining
management functions as well as strengthening supplier relationship.

Differentiation via branding is crucial in the highly competitive mainland
consumer market. Our brewery business is developing “SNOW” as
a national brand complemented by other district and local brands.
“SNOW” targets the younger generation, with marketing theme
associated with “great expedition”. On the other hand, our supermarket
operation promotes its leading presence in the Chinese Mainland and
the image of a distinguished retailing chain via enhanced service and
The “Ng Fung” brand of high quality food,

including fresh meat and general food items, has been well established

store format innovation.

by our food business, commanding a price premium in the market.

#MAI%AEMR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report 2007 &



BEAN - BT EBE TR AL BT IR =ER - TE
BICERGEBIRIIEN LB ZRHSEE
e BHIPTMASOBEERSE %\iﬁ%ﬁ‘é%ﬁﬁ"* :
BHEMmEREMOFOEP - KRB EE
DIHRIERER - MEE—TIRFADIHRCE - 1%?
MEBBEBH LN G - RN EAMNEIEE -
TERFERNMEFATIS - FIEEBER - 8%
BEINEERCER  BIEMAKO LR - HF1F
EERTEREEH#S - BERMBUETEITK - &
Ui 4R K AR E ) Ee DI 1S B he i

HEBENTKARRES KR TBESEENER -
BESEEHRAARK - BRI ESUER
X TEIRAZOEF N - KB = FRTHIE
NG - SIERF BT OB BRAR - HIEE
NEENBEEERANRS N - REBMITRY
MEBFR T HIH [Vango ] EFE - EEHH -
RENREEEERE  BEI XIE I RER
[RER | FIER  THET FRAFEAR
HROEHEPE -

RERIE

Wi E BT S ADAREDBEERIER -
TETHFHREAMTEHERENAARK
89,210 87T * FILLIE &K 16.8% °

EFEAMEETSRFEDLR - BESHTE
39,3oo,ooo:Fﬂ' PR 13.8% 0 L ZTFETRF
HR12.7% c ZETHF - NEBREEEFSE
154918% rh%ﬂﬁﬁf ﬁﬁﬁf_{iui‘?/@ﬁﬁﬁfﬁéﬁ i
BOENE % —EERNER_ETAFAHME
LbED R 39% K 36% ©

ZETEFHREANMSY RABNEE SRR L
FEER15.9% M 15.1% c AEBE L SEER
mimH B ENE 4@ TR LT B & AT
2 AREMES BAUEBESEAOIRIE
BARL AR} o R RE IR - AEEHY
BESW _TTNFIEN13.4%  HEES A

113.4% ©

ERWE
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Besides, the hypermarket of our supermarket operation has adopted a
trade up strategy by improving its merchandise mix and layout as well
as adding more fashionable and higher end products. Taking some
attributes of a department store, complementary tenants in apparel,
lifestyle and food are introduced. Our beverage business has been
reforming its distribution channels to enhance distribution efficiency.
Our food business is exploiting the mainland fresh meat market for
growth with three projects in Shanghai, Shenzhen and Hangzhou. Our
textile business focuses on the niche products, including MAKO yarns,
denim casual wears and nylon textured yarns. A gradual increase is
expected in the value-added yarn and fabric products following its
technology upgrade program.

Consumer demand is increasingly complex pursuing not just price
competitiveness but also quality and personal touch. We pursue an
ongoing re-modeling exercise so as to improve core competence. After
three years of refinement, the high-end lifestyle supermarket stores,
Olé, is now more mature. This format has strong appeal to upscale
shoppers. The Group has also piloted the convenience store “Vango”
in Shenzhen and Hong Kong. In Hong Kong, Chinese Arts & Crafts fr &t
has strengthened its private labels — Artistic Palace XL in apparels
and Home Art XZ[R in handicrafts. A specialty jewelry store targeting
the younger generation has also been opened.

Operating Environment

The mainland consumer market continues to develop rapidly although
it is still fragmented. In 2007, retail sales in the Chinese Mainland
increased by 16.8% to about RMB8,921 billion.

Last year, the growth of the mainland brewery market remained robust
with total production volume increased by 13.8% to 39.3 million
kiloliters. This is to be compared with 12.7% in 2006. In 2007, the
Group’s brewery operation enjoyed a market share of about 18%
whereas the top three players accounted for approximately 41% of the

market, compared with 39% in 2006 and 36% in 2005.

In 2007, the production of cotton yarns and fabrics in the Chinese
Mainland increased by 15.9% and 15.1% over the previous year
respectively. Our focus on technology upgrade and rationalizing
products with the aim to produce more upmarket products remains
unchanged. Quality high-end yarns are gradually replacing low-end
yarns and fabrics in our product mix. During this adjustment process,
our yarns production increased by 13.4% and fabrics production
decreased by 13.1% over 2006.
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As disposable incomes rise and living standards improve, the proportion
of household earnings on good quality food will increase. However,
pig farms in the Chinese Mainland were disrupted last year by a severe
disease outbreak among hogs and higher feed prices. Coupled with
growing affluence of the Chinese economy and the cyclical supply
shortage, the mainland pork industry suffered from a contraction,
leading to an estimated decrease of approximately 9% in consumption
in 2007 and a sharp rise in retail pork prices.

The Hong Kong economy further strengthened last year. Retail sales
increased by 12.8% alongside rising domestic consumer confidence
and buoyant tourism. Supermarket sales and department store sales
increased by 5.9% and 12.7% respectively in 2007 over the previous
year. For fresh meat consumption, imported and locally produced live
pigs and cattle amounted to about 1,767,000 heads and 41,000 heads
respectively in 2007. This represents a decline of 11% for both when
compared to 2006. The reduction in supply of livestock had stimulated
the demand for frozen pork and beef, which rose by 6% to a total of
about 205,000 tonnes last year.
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Corporate Governance

The Board recognizes the importance of good corporate governance
for the continued success of the Group’s business and in meeting the
reasonable expectation of its shareholders and other stakeholders that
the Group conducts all business activities with the highest standards of
responsibility, integrity and compliance with all laws.

Transparency and information disclosure are two key elements of
the Group’s corporate governance framework as access to adequate,
accurate and timely information enables the proper monitoring of
the conduct of its business, thereby enhancing accountability. Since
November 2002, the Group has been producing quarterly financial and
operational review on a voluntary basis. It is the first conglomerate
company among the constituent stocks in the Hang Seng Index to
initiate such a move, well before the Hong Kong Stock Exchange made
it a recommended best practice for main board listed issuers.
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The Board has a long-standing commitment to good corporate
governance practices and its efforts in pursuing this undertaking has
been consistently recognized in recent years. In 2007, the Group
received the following accolades:

e it was named as one of the “Best in Corporate Governance, China”
by The Asset;

e it was selected as one of the recipients of the “Recognition Awards
2007 — Asia’s Best Companies for Corporate Governance” by
Corporate Governance Asia;

e it was rated one of the companies with the best corporate
governance and best investor relations in China by FinanceAsia; and

e it was named one of the outstanding enterprises among blue-chip
companies in Hong Kong by the Economic Digest.

The Board believes that an effective corporate governance framework
is essential to the Group’s sustained performance and upholding it will
continue to be a high priority at the Company.

Internal Control
The Board is responsible for the development and effective

implementation of the Group’s systems of internal control to ensure the
accomplishment of corporate goals, smooth running of the operations,
assets and stakeholders’ interest are safeguarded as well as reliability of
financial statements. The Group adopts the control frameworks outlined
by both the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (“COS0”) in the United States and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants as our standards in establishing control
systems and the best practice among our group companies.

The Board conducts regular review of the Group’s internal control
system. For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Board has reviewed
and is satisfied with the effectiveness of the Group’s current internal
control system in place. A detailed elaboration of the Group’s internal
control system is set out in full in the Corporate Governance Report of
this Annual Report.

Investor Relations
We believe keeping the investment community fully informed of the

Group’s latest strategies and business developments encourages
shareholders and potential investors to properly assess the Company’s
value and boosts investor confidence. To this end we seek to have an
active, open and ongoing dialogue with investors and analysts and has
implemented a tripartite communication system among investors, senior
management and operational management.
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We take a multifaceted approach to reach out to the investment
community. During the year, we continued our practice to conduct
an annual global roadshow and the focus was on the supermarket,
beverage and food businesses. Senior management of the headquarters
together with chief executives from the businesses met with institutional
investors in Europe, the United States and Asia. In addition, we hosted
the Corporate Day for analysts and fund managers. During the three-day
tour, the Company led the participants to visit the supermarkets in
Shaanxi Province and our brewery operations in Sichuan Province. In
2007, top management along with senior management of different
business units met with over 1,300 analysts and fund managers in about
240 meetings including one-on-one meetings, site visits, luncheons as
well as conferences arranged by financial institutions.

Share Performance

CRE’s share price rose 49.9% to HK$33.50 in 2007, outperforming the
Hang Seng Index by 7.6%. During the year, its daily closing share price
hit a post-Asian financial crisis high of HK$35.65 on 11 October 2007.
The lowest closing price was HK$19.76. CRE’s market capitalization also
grew 51.6% to HK$79,889 million in the year.

EBHAXA R _FTLENFRUHERDE

Year-end closing price and market capitalization of CRE for 2003-2007
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IRELEE Dividend Payout Ratio

REE—MUAETHEERRSRBEDIRLES The Group has long had a goal of gradually improving its basic cash
B WA-—ERNNHEEE REBEREFEER dividend payout ratio and has continuously delivered upon this goal.
ReREFEL - RELAARBFIERT RS We plan to pay basic cash dividends that balance the cash generated
B EREAR R GENIERAFBNR S ZHEUET from the growth of the company’s earnings with the cash needed to

& o bON - ERHRERT - heEBIRERRIR fuel future profit growth. In addition, special dividends would be
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Calculation is based on profit attributable to shareholders as
reported in the annual report of 2004. Taken into account of prior
year adjustments with the profit attributable to shareholders of
2004 restated, the payout ratio shall be restated to 38.8%.

(3) FIEERBREEEFREEERE R TEHEEBH L ERE -
Calculation is based on profit attributable to shareholders less
the disposal gain of the piped gas and chemical distribution
businesses.

(4) FHEERBIREMEEFE BB A M HEBH HE RS -
Calculation is based on profit attributable to shareholders less the
disposal gain of the petroleum distribution business in Hong Kong.
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cash dividend of HK$0.6 per share was paid following the disposal
of the Group’s petroleum distribution operation in Hong Kong. Over
the past five years, special dividends were also distributed in 2003
and 2006 during which the non-core assets in building materials and
piped gas and chemical distribution operations in the Chinese Mainland
were divested.

Total Shareholder Return

With the gradual re-alignment of our business focus on the consumer
sector, robust operating performance and good corporate governance
practices, CRE’s shares achieved a total return for shareholders
of 506.0% over the past five years, as measured by share price
appreciation and reinvested dividend. This is considerably higher than
that of the Hang Seng Index and the Hang Seng Commerce & Industry
Index. For the year 2007, the total return for shareholders was 54.8%,
compared to the average 43.2% of the Hang Seng Index and 59.6% of
the Hang Seng Commerce & Industry Index.

CERCECRTCFERAXRREOBABRAEATERNRE

Total shareholder return of CRE relative to market indices for 2003-2007
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Prospects

In 2007, the Group once again achieved record results, underlining the
tremendous progress of our transformation into a focused consumer
play. With the exit from the petroleum business now completed,
the Group will devote all resources to the core businesses for solid
future growth.

Beginning with a modest presence, our supermarket operation has

gradually built up a leading market share in the targeted districts of the
Chinese Mainland, and profitability has increased accordingly. To push
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business performance, we emphasize same store growth, cost efficiency
and supplier relationship; and the results have been encouraging. Last
year’s same store growth of 9.5% was indeed the highest in recent
years and margins improved further. To maintain this momentum, the
major tasks for this year will be operational streamlining, execution of
national supplier contracts and store format standardization.

Annual beer consumption per capita has doubled in the Chinese
Mainland over the past ten years to about 30 liters in 2007 driven by
the increase in household income, urbanization and marketing efforts
of the major brewers. To capitalize on the market opportunities,
we have been expanding in a disciplined manner via acquisitions,
greenfield investments and capacity upgrade. With a 30.7% growth
in sales volume last year driven by the 68.6% growth of our national
brand, “SNOW”, our position as the largest brewer and the owner of
the single largest beer brand on the mainland in terms of sales volume
has been further strengthened. While the brewing industry is facing
rising input cost pressure, we have been enhancing our procurement
and operational efficiency as well as passing on part of the impact to
consumers. Our underlying progress in recent years will carry on.

As their incomes rise, Chinese consumers are demanding greater quality
and safety in food. The meat processing projects in Shanghai and
Shenzhen reported overall increase in slaughtering volume last year in
spite of the surge in pork prices. Coupled with the initial contribution
from the Hangzhou project, there was higher profit contribution from the
mainland projects. Our food business has firmly established a business
platform for future expansion in the major mainland cities. In Hong
Kong, the opening of the market of live pig imports from the Chinese
Mainland has increased competition. We will embrace the challenge by
further enhancing our supply chain efficiency and developing “Ng Fung”
brand as high quality fresh meat, commanding a strong premium brand
image. Our network and reputation will put us in a favorable position
to compete with others.

The Group’s textile business reported strong recovery in 2007 in
line with our re-positioning to concentrate on products with better
competitiveness and margins. Textile trade restrictive measures are
now gradually removed but lower end market remains very competitive.
In view of this, we have established our niche in higher end yarn and
nylon products to match strong overseas demand for high quality shirts
and stockings. We are also targeting denim casual wears to lead our
garment export. Measures will be considered to further enhance the
value chain of fabric products.
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The Chinese economy continues to develop at a rapid pace. However,
consumption’s share of Gross Domestic Product (“GDP”) remains low
for the Chinese Mainland as compared to the developed countries,
offering the Group tremendous growth opportunities. Following the
central government’s efforts to boost consumption for balanced and
sustainable economic development, its significance is rising relative
to investment and exports. Hong Kong economy was vibrant in 2007
with marked improvement in employment and consumer sentiment.
Although economic growth is expected to be slower this year, it will
still be a respectable level in the region backed by closer economic
integration with the Chinese Mainland.

The worsening economic environment in the United States, triggered by
its housing market and subprime mortgages, has created ripple effects
on global economies and credit markets. Whilst the situation may
deteriorate further, China is well positioned to mitigate the negative
effects with sound economic fundamentals. Despite the central
government’s efforts to curb inflation and prevent the economy from
overheating, maintaining a stable and relatively fast economic growth
remains a priority. These factors present excellent opportunities for our
consumer businesses to further grow and prosper.

Appreciation
On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to take this

opportunity to express our sincere thanks and appreciation to Mr.
Keung Chi Wang, Ralph, Mr. Qiao Shibo, Mr. Xie Shengxi and Mr. Zhu
Dan for their valuable contributions to the Company during their years
as directors and vice president of the Company. | am extremely pleased
to welcome Mr. Du Wenmin and Mr. Li Fuzuo, who joined the Board
as Non-Executive Directors in September 2007 and February 2008
respectively, and to congratulate Mr. Chen Long and Ms. Guo Jinging on
their promotions to Vice Presidents.

The sterling results for the Group are only possible with the dedication
and efforts of our people at all levels and | thank them sincerely for
their considerable achievements in 2007. | also wish to express our
utmost appreciation to our shareholders, customers, business partners
and other stakeholders for the confidence and support they have
shown us.

Song Lin

Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2008

##MAIZARAT China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report 2007 F3§ 31



32

TrERHAEEE

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

AEBERERBNETFEER - FEBHR
FUBEN  mANE  RERRGEREEE
W EBRNARBEBITHEEEMRREE - XE
FREF - EEREMAZERENT - ETE

L
THEEE o

i
REEBETEEB R S EEREES
HIRBF BT EI R - LB EE TR
KA e o B EBEEE D S BERRAE
B S RERN T TESEERNRE R
A5 RSRAREEES S HEERABERD
RIIEL o LEINR B A R BB R IE SR [ &
B&A R BREEBERRERARS M
BT LFARENBRESRETBREE
130,000 7T © BB T AP E M A T ER
BFEE  BEF L EBEEORE - SEY
BREBEMD15%HA L - FANKINETT
G o

REBNRMERCRBERA BRI ER
B XARGEREENHTRRRRLS - F
W BFFTE S E)TKEERE - UTARRE
B ERNOE RBERRE - tt5h - ARETH
2008 B /KEEIE R FH BRI - AL T
ZE®  ARMIRTIKEERKFE

RmmEBH _LKBERE RSB SR A
FE - HUEERRE IR ZL1S014001 5 ° _£K
BE—RAMEF TEETRRREEER £
EXRMBERMIEPE-RENLFEND
¥ WHEERE =TT /NFHIF1S014001 51 R 2
F - BRIDSKEERE  BEREEHNITA
BEEZLESFFETEREREERIN  J5KE
ENEEEENRREBHEN  HABGieE

The Group is committed to the pursuit of profitable and sustainable
growth. To achieve this, the Group strives to maintain its financial
strength and optimize its profits to return long-term value to our
shareholders, while at the same time conducts its businesses in a
socially and environmentally responsible way in line with the interests
of our customers, employees and other stakeholders.

Environment
There are programs and initiatives in place across the Group to manage

the environmental impact of its operations, and in many instances
cost savings are also created. Our supermarket operation has been
upgrading the lighting and air-conditioning systems in its southern
China stores with the use of more energy efficient components and has
started to promote the use of recyclable paper for its printing materials
on a nationwide basis. The operation has also actively encouraged its
customers to use fewer plastic bags and participated in the “No Plastic
Bag Day” program in both the Chinese Mainland and Hong Kong, and
the event in Hong Kong raised more than HK$130,000 in 2007. Joining
hands with other local retailers, our supermarket division in Hong Kong
has entered into a voluntary agreement with the Government to reduce
the use of plastic shopping bags by 15% or above, and the pledge was
fulfilled last year.

Our beverage business has started to adopt a new boiling system that
can simultaneously reduce steam consumption and enhance product
quality. Many sets of new wastewater treatment equipment were also
added during the year in a bid to meet higher emission standards
set by local governments in the future. In addition, relevant staff
underwent technical training on wastewater treatment system and a
working committee was also formed to effectively raise the standard of
wastewater management.

The abattoir of our food business in Sheung Shui as well as a
number of the manufacturing factories of our textile business in the
Chinese Mainland have obtained ISO14001 certification in relation
to their respective environmental management systems. The Sheung
Shui abattoir has long been working on the establishment of an
environmental management system. It is the first food manufacturing
and processing company in Hong Kong to receive this recognition. In
2006, the abattoir continued to receive the new edition of 1ISO14001
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Corporate Social Responsibility

certification. Our sewage and waste treatment, noise control and
odor filtering level fully comply with the environmental protection
requirements, among which the standard of our wastewater treatment
exceeds that of the environmental protection license. Our solar energy
collection system also helps raise the Company’s energy efficiency and
contributes to the community in terms of energy conservation. At the
headquarters level, last year the Company started to allow shareholders
to receive corporate communication by electronic means through its
website and in order to encourage them to opt for this environmentally
friendly option, the Company has offered to donate HK$136 to
charitable causes for each shareholder who does so.

Community

During the year, the Group made donations in cash and in kind to
support various charitable causes and aid disaster relief efforts, and
worked with several charitable organizations to encourage its customers
and employees to get involved in fund raising activities. We also
mobilized our employees to provide volunteer services to the local
community in which they are engaged.

The Group’s fulfillment of corporate social responsibility goes beyond
philanthropic donations of money and goods. Our beverage business
has been launching the “The Great Expedition with SNOW (=577 -
ERXJE)” campaign for the third consecutive year. In 2007,
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“The Great Expedition with SNOW” campaign launched in 2007.
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The expeditors helped building a primary school with a library in
Yunnan Province.

the focus of the campaign was to explore the learning condition and
environment of students in the rural districts along the national border.
The expeditors helped building a primary school with a library in
Yunnan Province. This campaign also supported an undergraduate paid
internship program, offering 100 students in their fourth year of study
with outstanding academic results the opportunity to have on-the-job
training. Our mainland supermarket operation assisted the Red Cross
Society in Baoan, Shenzhen, together with other local institutions, in
organizing a symposium and other activities to promote the World Blood
Donor Day 2007. It aimed at increasing public awareness of voluntary
non-remunerated blood donation and the safety and efficiency of blood
transfusion. In 2007, the theme was “Safe Blood for Safe Motherhood”.

Workplace
Employees are our most important assets and assuring their health and

safety in the workplace is a key to the Group’s continued success. Each
of our businesses has formulated its own occupational health and safety
guidelines and policies in accordance with its unique commercial and
local conditions. At the same time, delivering values to our stakeholders
and securing the Group’s long-term profitable growth are founded on
releasing the potential of our staff and thus we put great emphasis on
their training and development. Individual businesses have established
a wide variety of training programs covering areas such as leadership,
technical, sales and marketing and interpersonal skills. We believe that
the existence of appropriate nurture and development programs will
boost the quality and retention rate of our employees.

#MAIZARAT China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report 2007 #3§



rEHERT
Corporate Social Responsibility

BEZEEBRSNIRNEE TS HER -
Posters of charity events supported by our retail division.

ERE

AEEE R EES
gl

B

TEIRIEIEE - BRAKE
FTEHENERMAIRE  AIR2FER - B4R
SEIFR  AEERARETERES - BRI
KREFEETEEIRE - AEENBMEBDE
M ERERE - LB - EERAE = HREN
EREE -  AEENRREFCISRYLEE
L H R G (HACCP) RFE - RIMEHR ML EM
i o EADBIERNEEMES  BMTHE
BAMNEEMEL S - BB e —(EER
HO P R B BRI ) B 2 AR e MR ) - P R TR
BEIN RS - THERETEREINASD
M RIS ISR B T TRRAE IR - A
BBHACCP BB RRE  IRABBHIER
2R mAERIEIER

HrEE

AEERE  HERNEETARERELERE
MRS - RIS HIENERES| - HHEHAER
HERELARE o I - BRMOPE A ET
BESE [ HEBTASTR | FIHERESR
SRR BEER THERE CERAR B
mEE - MBERE BERBEREETHEEN

EE

Product Quality

The Group applies specific selection criteria for suppliers to ensure
that the products supplied to us are up to standard and safe for
consumption. Where manufacturing is involved, its entire process is
subject to vigorous supervision to make sure that the end products
meet the predetermined quality standard. Our supermarket operation
has implemented wide-ranging measures to manage and monitor the
quality of products it sources from third parties, and our beverage
business has obtained the Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Points
(HACCP) certification, reflecting its commitment to food safety. As a
major supplier of live pigs to Hong Kong, we attach great importance
to the quality and safety of meat products. We assist the Government
to establish a rigorous meat product tracing system and a product
recall system, which can trace the meat products back to the upstream
registered mainland pig farms and master information on product flow
in the downstream retail market. At the same time, we have implemented
our stringent management control of the abattoir and introduced the
HACCP certified system in order to uphold the highest safety standard
of meat products in Hong Kong.

Supply Chain

The Group is aware that how its suppliers conduct their businesses
will impact on our operations. We have set up internal guidelines
stipulating the requirements for the selection and management of
suppliers. For instance, our supermarket operation in the Chinese
Mainland has devised the “Code of Conduct of Suppliers”, which sets
out the standards in terms of legal compliance, labor practice, working
condition, corporate citizenship, product safety, intellectual property
rights and business ethics expected from the suppliers.
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The Group’s retail division mainly comprises three business segments:
(1) supermarket and logistics; (2) brand-fashion distribution in the
Chinese Mainland and (3) other retail stores operation.

The Group’s retail division showed an encouraging improvement in
its operating results in 2007, mainly contributed by sustained organic
growth in the retail operation and the robust economy in both the
Chinese Mainland and Hong Kong. Turnover and attributable profit
amounted to HK$26,008 million and HK$521 million respectively,
representing an increase of 27.4% and 140.1% over 2006.

For the year under review, price inflation and bank lending accelerated
in the Chinese Mainland triggering further macroeconomic adjustment
measures from the central government to prevent the economy from
overheating. The mainland economy remained robust in 2007 with
a 11.4% growth in GDP.
increase in disposable income have fuelled personal consumption and

Improvement in the people’s wealth and an

driven up the level of retail sales. A year-on-year 16.8% growth in total
retail sales of consumer goods was recorded. In addition, the consumer
price index increased by 4.8%, mainly due to a substantial increase in
food prices. The Group’s consumer businesses have thus benefited as

a whole.

With flourishing economy, improved employment market and buoyant
real estate market in Hong Kong, local consumption expenditure showed
steady growth in 2007.
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and “&f% SUGUO”.
supermarket and convenience store.

Major store formats are hypermarket, superstore,
Particularly, several convenience
stores under the brand “Vango” were opened in Shenzhen and Hong
Kong at the end of last year. In terms of geographical contribution,
Eastern and Central China, Southern China, Hong Kong and Northern
China respectively accounted for 58.5%, 26.9%, 9.8% and 4.8% of the
operation’s turnover for the year under review.

The turnover for the year under review increased through new store
openings and organic growth.
adopted a multi-format approach and a district dominance strategy.
Stock turnover has improved via enhancement of product mix, category
and assortment management to cater for customer preferences as well

Over the years, the operation has

as store and supply chain management.
negotiation with suppliers and stringent cost controls, profitability
improved accordingly throughout the same period, and the operation
continued to report remarkable result in 2007. Overall same store

Coupled with better price

growth of 9.5% was recorded for the year, in particular a 10.2% increase
was achieved for the Chinese Mainland.
segment, Eastern and Central China, Southern China, Hong Kong and
Northern China respectively recorded same store growth of 8.6%,

In terms of geographical

14.9%, 2.2% and 3.1%. The consolidated earnings before interest,
tax, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”) for 2007 amounted
to HK$1,051 million, representing a 35.9% growth over that of 2006.
The EBITDA of the Chinese Mainland and Hong Kong operations were

HK$785 million and HK$266 million respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

To further increase the market share in Eastern China, certain
superstores were opened in Ningbo and Shaoxing, but their preliminary
performance still needed improvement and has lowered the attributable
profit from the Eastern China operation. The operation is making
efforts to rationalize the supply chain in the regions in order to reduce
purchase costs. In addition, cost pressure from escalating store rentals
upon tenancy renewal will also impact its profitability.

To brave the prevailing keen competition in the retail market, the Group
aims to improve operational efficiency to drive profitability and focus
on the development of hypermarkets in the current year. The Group
will continue to enhance existing operation, open new stores in target
districts and explore acquisition opportunities in order to raise market
presence in the regions.
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Brand-fashion Distribution
The brand-fashion distribution segment reported turnover and

attributable profit for 2007 of HK$2,029 million and HK$98 million
respectively, representing an increase of 30.7% and 276.9% over 2006.

For the year under review, the “Esprit” brand reported satisfactory
growth in turnover by active product promotions, store facelift and
enhanced product design, together with improved operating efficiency
and economies of scale. As at the end of December 2007, the “Esprit”
brand distribution network comprised over 840 self-operated and
franchised stores in the Chinese Mainland. Both self-operated stores
and franchised stores achieved satisfactory results with the former
recording same store turnover growth of 15.2% for the year. The
cessation of distributing certain brands in 2006 also partly accounted
for the improvement in profitability.

Other Retail Stores
Other retail stores segment reported turnover and attributable profit for

2007 of HK$791 million and HK$60 million respectively, representing an
increase of 16.7% and 53.8% over 2006. As at the end of December
2007, the Group’s chain of retail stores consisted of 5 Chinese Arts &
Crafts 7% stores in Hong Kong and 41 CR Care #B= stores in Hong
Kong and the Chinese Mainland.

For the year under review, the retail industry was buoyant with strong
consumer sentiment. Consumers became more receptive to the
premium perceived value and quality products. Increasing recognition
of the Chinese Arts & Crafts F9Z% brand and its private labels as well
as revamped store displays contributed to the increase in sales of
jewelry and arts and craft products, which has continued to support the
increase in turnover and profitability of Chinese Arts & Crafts At for
the year with overall same store turnover growth of 7.1%.
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Rising health awareness amongst the local community has increased the
market demand of traditional Chinese medicine and health food. For
the year under review, the increase in sales of certain premium products
delivered strong contribution to the increase in turnover and the
operating margin of CR Care =)=, which recorded remarkable overall
same store turnover growth of 22.8%. Despite the cost pressure from
escalating store rentals and labor costs, the CR Care #H% operation
recorded a turnaround in profitability for 2007.
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Geographical distribution of the Group’s supermarkets as at 31 December 2007

m X3& Tianjin
- sadt Hebei
n SAE@  Henan

JEAI4A2L Total number of stores : 2,389

00 4630 Beijing

IUE Shandong

‘ IR Jiangsu
Z#  Anhui
{d
H5I Zhejiang

m B® Guangdong
m &% Hong Kong

##MAIZAMRA T China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report 2007 F3§ 43



44

EF5EIEE > 805

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS »» BEVERAGE

O m =

SH

]
| =

L

HmEBR_ETLFNEEBREEEN S
Rl A& 7 ¥ 13,304,000,000 7T & 7 # 303,000,000
TC ' DR =TT NFER 40.7% K 74.1% °

e S

BBEBR _ZEELFNEEEREN RS
7RIl 57 ¥ 12,345,000,000 7T & 7 & 239,000,000
T DRI TN FIE K 40.7% K 57.2% ©
D FEBEEE EF30.7% = % 6,935,000
T, R RRIERIE8.6%  ERITHEED
[ Bt | EBEERRBEER 525 5,120,000
FH - (HBEEN73.8%  BRIBEE68.6% °
HE FHAEERNRIL RS - HARUEE -
LER - RERMIMEMNEEERRAEE &
BRAEBER [ SE | EBOREERE - BB
RIBHTISHE - A8 mEEE BISEZE R
S—HH BEANGEEERREFERR M
BEWARNME - PR T HEE LR
=5k o

REEFE - BEEEEE MR RSB
HRAMOENEREEES - FHEBR
ZETRF LA AmMEEEM B AR
BETHBEERAN L - SBEBEFR RN
HRFIRRE o AT - R EMD R E ISR
HPRER - EHEEBNRSHBESH [ TE 12
BRRAEZFEHEEL TRANEA - 28T
FEEEFEEERR L - EMREHESER
HEERMOER °

1

The beverage division reported turnover and attributable profit for 2007
of HK$13,304 million and HK$303 million respectively, representing an
increase of 40.7% and 74.1% over 2006.

Beer Operation

The beer operation reported turnover and attributable profit for 2007
of HK$12,345 million and HK$239 million respectively, representing an
increase of 40.7% and 57.2% over 2006. The sales volume of beer in
2007 rose by 30.7% to approximately 6,935,000 kiloliters, including
organic growth of 18.6%. In particular, sales volume of our national
brand “SNOW” reached 5,120,000 kiloliters, representing 73.8% of
the total sales volume and impressive growth of 68.6%. The increase
in sales volume was mainly contributed by organic growth with a
notable sales volume increase in the Liaoning, Jiangsu, Beijing/Tianjing
and Zhejiang regions, driven by successful brand integration through
On the
other hand, the Chinese Mainland economy continued to grow vibrantly
and the increase in consumer income further boosted the market

initiatives in the “SNOW” promotion and market distribution.

demand of beer.

For the year under review, the Group had further enriched product mix
in most of the regions so as to cater for the increasingly demanding
consumer taste. The increase in average selling price per kiloliter
compensated for the increase in production cost; and overall gross
profit margin remained comparable.

was expended on building sales distribution channels and popularity

However, considerable investment

of the “SNOW” brand during preliminary market expansion in certain
regions. As a result, the increase in average selling and distribution
expenses per kiloliter offset the contribution of sales volume increment

to profitability.
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Sales volume of beer over the last three years
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

AEER ST LFNAFBUEER (£E ) BREFA AR 2 IPRE -
HF T 14 IO || & R A R # 38% 1 25 A1 — AL HA & M A9 B B A9 100% 18
Z o 3N T )| Hh R R R IS AR AR BB - RS T BB T
Aol B A & E K B MR TSRS B S 18 o

AEEHE T LFENPBEAMEE T 60 HEIBER © FEREAI 1,000
BT HERE—SEEALAKENTSRERKARERERLENE
5K - AKEBDBIE R  ENIEARBLERELS T - AEN

The Group increased the equity interest in its existing 14 brewery
companies in Sichuan by 38% and a brewery factory in Guizhou by
100% through the completion of the acquisition of the entire interest in
g (£E) BRSE2 7 (Blue Sword (Group) Company Limited) in
April 2007. The increase in attributable profit of the Sichuan region to
the Group further boosted profitability of the division, offsetting the loss
incurred by new breweries that were acquired or commenced operation
in the year under review.

As at the end of December 2007, the Group operated nearly 60

breweries in the Chinese Mainland with an annual production capacity
of approximately 10 million kiloliters. With a strategic move to

=t L —TTREF L4y
2007 2006 Change

FEE BEEET (%)

HKS milion

HK$ million
£ Turnover 13,304 9,455 41%
&M T Attributable profit 303 174 74%
AEtFE - BIE - EBITDA 1,514 1,306 16%
EREHAI AT
NG Capital expenditure 1,744  257%

g B and new acquisitions
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REEMEERT - RAFEA - 5 5l IR reinforce the Group’s market position and to supplement the operations

BLBENBABEBR ARG go%iEsm  AZHE in existing and target regions, the Group continued to expand its
BFEBERNODERATRMEEERBEEGRE production capacity through acquisitions, investments in greenfield

FRFIA) 100% s - BEEBZTRHEEEGR breweries and capacity upgrade of existing breweries. During the year,
NEl80% Ew « LARIAESHEEBER QA the Group completed the acquisition of a 90% interest in %2 1 2 /) B
A 22 140 B 1R i 45 5 PR A =) A ST 5 RS AR B Y JEAR /AT (Anhui Shengli Brewery Company Limited), a 100% interest

BE - EfeA HH705,000 TH - E—FEA in A BEEZEBERM AR QA (nner Mongolia Batehan Brewery
REBRELH  ASE « BEF - Hfm kRt Company Limited) and ;¥ 5 1 % 12 55 45 [ & /T 2 & (Hunan Xinghua
EBRIER © Brewery Company Limited), a 80% interest in & 255 4% ST 87 & F 5

fR/A & (Liaoning Yalujiang Brewery Company Limited), and the related
brewing assets in #§& 5 % /€28 & R A a] (Huludao Juhua Brewery
Company Limited) as well as % &1 fx '8 B2 3 5 R A &) (Anhui Wanpi
Brewery Company Limited) with a total production capacity of 705,000
kiloliters to further complement its existing operations in Anhui, Inner
Mongolia, Liaoning, Hunan and the nearby regions.

BEE AP B A A A = R R AE B B K As the economy of the Chinese Mainland maintains its rapid growth and

KEEBRENMRR - MR MISA S8 E domestic consumption increases, it is expected that the beer market will

BAR - MIEAREARHEANHESNEER - K continue to expand. Being the largest brewer in the Chinese Mainland,

EEGFIRIHES BAERE - RIEFAEE the Group will strengthen its geographical coverage, increase production

W - Plm B RR G RTEK o capacity and enhance operational efficiency so as to capitalize on the
growing market demand for beer.

R K Purified Water Operation

MFREBR ST FNEEEREGRTS The purified water operation, with “C’estbon /&% ” purified water as its
5l /75 ¥ 959,000,000 7T & 7% ¥& 64,000,000 TT major product, reported turnover and attributable profit for 2007 of
DRI ZZTNFIER 41.0% % 190.9% ° EIHE HK$959 million and HK$64 million respectively, representing an increase
EmEZAR[Cestbon e E | fFK - AEEBE of 41.0% and 190.9% over 2006. The completion of the Group’s

RZZBFH AT TFKER 2 D HR acquisition of the 49% minority interest in the purified water business
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BEE AT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

in May 2007, together with the operational improvements, explained the
surge in attributable profit of the year.

The sales volume of purified water in 2007 rose by 31.0% to
approximately 1,074,000 kiloliters, with bottle water and barrel water
rose by 40.8% and 19.8% to approximately 615,000 kiloliters and
459,000 kiloliters respectively. This is a strong demand for purified
water in the mainland market. Through active launch of promotional
campaigns, local popularity of “C’estbon 142” brand was spread
nationwide. With the distribution network expanded from Guangdong
to other districts including Sichuan, Nanjing and Beijing, the operation
recorded satisfactory increase in sales volume as well as turnover
and profitability.

Looking forward, to strengthen its competitive advantage, the Group
will be prudently expanding into new markets and undertaking merger
and acquisition to maintain growth in market share.

AEBEBEER-—Z2tF+-A=+—BNBESf
Geographical distribution of the Group’s breweries as at 31 December 2007
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS »» FOOD PROCESSING AND DISTRIBUTION

I
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|

RMMNIEREHEEBN ST FHRESE XS
K &4k 53 Bl 2 Bl A& 78 B 7,381,000,000 7T & 75 &
531,000,000 7T ' 8 = T Z X F 5 53¢ 11 21.2%
K22.1% ° FIRAAF HEFZOIRENE TR
B2 Wk - AEBR ST F ORGSR
REENNG.3% °
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The food processing and distribution division reported turnover and
attributable profit for 2007 of HK$7,381 million and HK$531 million
respectively, representing an increase of 21.2% and 22.1% over 2006.
Excluding the disposal gain of certain equity interests in non-core
investment in the year, attributable profit of the division for 2007
increased by 8.3%.

Through securing supply, marketing of new products as well as
expansion in the mainland market, frozen food, aquatic products and
other assorted foodstuff distribution reported satisfactory growth in
both turnover and attributable profit. However, cost pressure from tight
supply of mainland livestock, high transportation cost and appreciation
of Renminbi had lowered the attributable profit from the livestock
distribution business for the year under review. The increasingly
competitive environment in Hong Kong live pig market following the
opening up of the mainland pig imports in July 2007 and volatile pig
prices will continue to pose pressure on the profitability of the foodstuff
distribution operation. Underpinned by the Group’s strong premium
brand image as high quality fresh meat provider, its competitive
expertise and supply chain management, the operation is expected to
be in a favorable position to compete with the other authorized agents.
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BEE AT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Despite high fuel costs, the marine fishing and aquatic products
processing operation reported notable growth in turnover and
attributable profit for the year under review. This was mainly
contributed by the approximate 39% increase in sales volume as well as
a rise in gross profit margin from enhanced catching capability. Further,
regular on-site review of fishing fleet fuel utilization and cost saving
measures were implemented to keep the production costs under control.

Supported by its competitive edge in sourcing, slaughtering and
fresh meat production, the division accelerated its investments in the
mainland meat processing business targeting the major cities. Both
Shenzhen and Shanghai operations reported satisfactory results for
the year under review. The newly acquired Hangzhou operation also
provided further profitability momentum. The Group will continue to
capture investment opportunities in the branded food distribution in the
Chinese Mainland in the foreseeable future.

—2EtHF

2007

—EERE i

S
2006 Change
BEEET %)

HKS million

HK$ million
L Turnover 7,381 6,092 21%
FEAE T Attributable profit 531 435 22%
KetFlE - BiE - EBITDA 841 703 20%
e BRI BT
EENCGFIN Capital expenditure 148 266%
g B and new acquisitions
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS »» TEXTILE
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Turnover and attributable profit of the textile division for 2007 were
HK$4,713 million and HK$144 million respectively, representing an
increase of 5.8% and 136.1% over 2006. Excluding the disposal gain
of an associated company and the after-tax effect of revaluation of
investment properties, attributable profit of the division for 2007
increased by 106.8%.

Turnover growth in 2007 for the division was mainly attributable to
the increase in sales of yarn products. Through the Group’s focus on
technology upgrade over the past few years, the production and sales
of high-end yarn products with better competitiveness and margins
have increased. However, rising production costs such as direct

material, labor and utility during the year affected the profitability.
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BEE AT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Due to the turnaround in profitability of a weaving factory in Jiangsu
Province, the spinning and weaving operation recorded an improvement
in the operating results for the year. Moreover, the one-off worker
compensation incurred in 2006 adversely affected the profitability for
the same year.

Nevertheless, high labor costs and rising alert of domestic environmental
protection will continue to impact the textile industry in the Chinese
Mainland. To uplift our competitive advantage under the increasingly
competitive operating environment, the division’s focus on technology
upgrade and product mix rationalization by increasing the proportion of
quality high-end products will remain unchanged.

Sl =z a2

2007 2006 Change
BREET EGLEE-Y (%)
HKS million HK$ million
ES Turnover 4,713 4,453 6%
&M T Attributable profit 144 61 136%
AREtFIE - FHIE - EBITDA 461 346 33%
e BRI BT
e Capital expenditure 746 452 65%
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS »» INVESTMENT PROPERTY
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The investment property division, which mainly comprises retail
property rental segment, reported turnover for 2007 of HK$375 million,
representing an increase of 7.4% over 2006. Attributable profit for
2007 amounted to HK$648 million. Excluding the after-tax valuation
surplus and disposal gains of certain non-core investment properties
with an aggregate amount of approximately HK$408 million (2006:
approximately HK$432 million), attributable profit of the division for

2007 increased by 11.6%.

Retail rentals continued to edge up during the year under review. Given
the robust economy and the growing number of visitor arrivals, the
increase in local and tourist spending sustained an upward trend for
retail sales, which drove up retail rentals.

For the year under review, our retail properties located in Tsimshatsui
and Causeway Bay were fully let out with satisfactory increment in
rentals. JD Mall, the newly redeveloped multi-storey retail property
at Jordan with occupancy rate reaching 60% in March 2008, provided

further growth impetus to the Group’s retail property segment.

Backed by the operating expertise in retail properties in Hong Kong, our
property division has started its shopping mall operation in the Chinese
Mainland since 2006, part of its space is for our supermarket use. The
mall STFI#T M at Jiangmen and the new shopping mall at Kaiping
already recorded satisfactory occupancy rates.

—ETAE i

—== S
2006 Change
BEEST (%)

HK$ million
e Turnover 375 349 7%
FE(E R T Attributable profit 648 647 0%
KetFE - FiIE - EBITDA 836 783 7%
EREHAI AT
e Capital expenditure 165 68%
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS »» PETROLEUM AND RELATED PRODUCTS DISTRIBUTION
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The disposal of the entire interest in the Group’s petroleum distribution
business in Hong Kong was completed in June 2007. Turnover and
attributable profit contribution of the division up to the disposal date
amounted to HK$10,610 million and HK$2,582 million respectively.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS »» INVESTMENTS AND OTHERS

REBR_ZTTLFNELEEFNRBELE
429,000,000 7T ( ZZE /X4 B % 421,000,000
JL ) °

EEEE

N £2 8] # A HIT Investments Limited 71 Hutchison
Ports Yantian Investments Limited #) 10% 1 #= ©
REZTTLF - BERERRKBEBSEMN R
MAEFFIRE °

Attributable profit for 2007 amounted to HK$429 million (2006: HK$421
million).

Container Terminal
The Group has a 10% interest in HIT Investments Limited and Hutchison

Ports Yantian Investments Limited. The Hong Kong and Yantian
deepwater port operations continued to maintain a stable profit
performance in 2007.
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Capital and Funding

As at 31 December 2007, the Group’s consolidated cash and bank
balance amounted to HK$8,443 million. The Group’s borrowings as
at 31 December 2007 were HK$12,447 million with HK$4,944 million
repayable within 1 year, HK$7,468 million repayable after 1 year but
Committed

borrowing facilities available to the Group, but not drawn as at

within 5 years and HK$35 million repayable after 5 years.

31 December 2007 amounted to approximately HK$1,300 million.

On the basis of the Group’s net borrowings relative to the shareholders’
funds and minority interests, the Group’s gearing was approximately at
13.3% as at 31 December 2007 (31 December 2006: 7.1%).

The Group’s principal assets, liabilities, revenue and payments are
As at
31 December 2007, 33.7% of the Group’s cash deposit balances was
held in Hong Kong dollars, 45.5% in Renminbi and 17.0% in US dollars;

denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars.

whereas 49.7% of the Group’s borrowings was denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and 40.3% in Renminbi with 7.7% in US dollars.

Taking into account of the Group’s strong cash position and relatively
low gearing ratio, management believes that the volatility of current
credit and financial market arising from the subprime crisis in the
United States has no direct significant impact on the Group’s source of
financing and the Group is expected to have sufficient working capital
to finance its operations and capital expenditures in the years to come.
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BEE AT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2007, assets with a carrying value of HK$248 million
(31 December 2006: HK$153 million) were pledged for total borrowings
of HK$272 million (31 December 2006: HK$214 million).

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31

December 2007.

Employees

As at 31 December 2007, the Group, excluding its associated companies,
has a staff size around 125,000, amongst which more than 94% being
employed in the Chinese Mainland, whilst the rest were mainly in Hong
Kong and overseas. Remuneration packages are assessed in accordance
to the nature of jobs duties, individual performance and market trends
with built-in merit components, paid in the form of cash bonuses.

By order of the Board
CHEN SHULIN

Managing Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2008
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Mr. SONG LIN aged 45

was appointed Chairman of the Group in December 2004. He is concurrently Vice
Chairman and President of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China
Resources National Corporation, Chairman of China Resources Power Holdings
Company Limited, China Resources Land Limited as well as China Resources
Microelectronics Limited. Mr. Song is the Deputy Chairman of China Vanke Co.,
Ltd., which is a listed company in China. He is also an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Geely Automobile Holdings Limited and The Bank of East Asia (China)
Limited. Mr. Song has extensive experience in corporate management and is
currently responsible for the overall business development and strategic planning of
the Group’s business. Mr. Song holds a Bachelor’s degree in Solid Mechanics from
the University of Tong Ji in Shanghai, China. He joined China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited in 1985.

Mr. CHEN SHULIN aged 54

has been an Executive Director of the Group since December 1998 and was
appointed Managing Director in March 2005. He is also the Director and Vice
President of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources
National Corporation as well as Chairman of Ng Fung Hong Limited and China
Resources Vanguard Company Limited. Prior to joining China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited, Mr. Chen was a senior official with the MOFTEC (Ministry of
Commerce) and a commercial attaché in Australia and New Zealand. He obtained his
Bachelor’s degree from Beijing Foreign Languages Institute, China and MBA degree
from Victoria University, New Zealand.

Mr. WANG QUN aged 51

has been an Executive Director of the Group since January 2000 and was appointed
Deputy Managing Director in March 2006. Mr. Wang is a Director of China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources National Corporation. He is also
an Executive Director of China Resources Snow Breweries Limited and is responsible
for the entire operation of the Group’s brewery business. Mr. Wang has a Bachelor
of Finance degree from the People’s University of China. He has previously worked
in the China National Economic Committee and held key management position in a
Shenzhen based conglomerate. Mr. Wang joined the Group in 1994.

Mr. LAU PAK SHING aged 58

has been an Executive Director of the Group since 1997 and was appointed Deputy
Managing Director in March 2006. He graduated from the Hong Kong Baptist
University (formerly known as Hong Kong Baptist College) and is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lau represented the Executive
Committee of Hong Kong Cold Storage Merchants Association Limited as Chairman
for many years. Mr. Lau has around 30 years of experience in auditing, accounting,
corporate finance, property, godown and cold storage businesses and he is currently
in charge of the Group’s Hong Kong property division and logistics business.
Mr. Lau joined the Group in January 1994.
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Mr. KWONG MAN HIM aged 43

joined the Group as an Executive Director in February 2002 and was appointed
Deputy Managing Director in March 2006. Mr. Kwong has a Bachelor of Science
degree from the University of Hong Kong and an MBA degree from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the CPA Australia and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Kong Securities Institute. Mr. Kwong has extensive experience in corporate planning,

He is also a member of the Hong

financial analysis, equity research and merchant banking. He is in charge of the
Group’s finance and treasury function, corporate planning and development as
well as merger and acquisition activities. He also manages investor relations and
promotes corporate governance.
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Mr. YAN BIAO aged 46

was appointed Executive Director of the Group in 1994 and was a Deputy Managing
Director before his re-designation as a Non-Executive Director in March 2006.
Mr. Yan is a Director of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China
Resources National Corporation and is the Director of Legal Affairs of the China
Resources Group. Mr. Yan is also a Non-Executive Director of China Resources Land
Limited. He has a Bachelor of Laws degree from the Peking University, China and an
MBA degree from the University of San Francisco, USA.

Mr. JIANG WEI aged 45

has been a Director of the Group since 1995. Mr. Jiang is currently the Director,
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of China Resources (Holdings) Company
Mr. Jiang is a Non-Executive

Director of China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited, China Resources Land

Limited and China Resources National Corporation.

Limited, China Resources Microelectronics Limited, China Resources Logic Limited
as well as China Assets (Holdings) Limited. He is also an executive director of
Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited, an Independent Non-Executive Director of
Greentown China Holdings Limited and is also a Director of China Vanke Co., Ltd.,
which is a listed company in China. Mr. Jiang obtained both his Bachelor’s degree in
International Trade and Master’s degree in International Business and Finance from
the University of International Business and Economics in Beijing, China.

Mr. WANG SHUAITING aged 52

was appointed Director of the Group in March 2006. He is the Director and Vice
President of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources
National Corporation. Mr. Wang is currently the Chairman of China Resources
Textiles (Holdings) Company Limited. He is also an Executive Director, Vice
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of China Resources Power Holdings Company
Limited.

PRC. Prior to joining China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, he worked

Mr. Wang has extensive experience in the electricity industry in the

for the General Office of the Government of Jiangsu Province from 1985 to 1987
and was subsequently the Head of the Industrial Office as well as the Deputy
Secretary-General of the Government of Xuzhou City. Mr. Wang holds an EMBA
degree in business administration from China Europe International Business School.
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MR. LI FUZUO aged 43

was appointed Director of the Group in February 2008. He is currently an Assistant
President of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and General Manager
of its Strategy Management Department. He is also a Non-Executive Director of
China Resources Land Limited, China Resources Microelectronics Limited and China
Mr. Li obtained both his Bachelor’s and Master’s Degrees
in Mechanical Manufacturing Engineering from the Beijing University of Aeronautics

and Astronautics, China in 1987 and 1990 respectively.

Resources Logic Limited.

MR. DU WENMIN aged 44

was appointed Director of the Group in September 2007. He is the President of
the Internal Audit Department of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited.
He is also a Non-Executive Director of China Resources Land Limited, China
Resources Microelectronics Limited and China Resources Logic Limited. Mr. Du
has an MBA degree from the University of San Francisco, USA and also holds the
professional qualification of Economist issued by the Ministry of Commerce and the
Evaluation Committee of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited.
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DR. CHAN PO FUN, PETER BBS, MBE, JP, FCPA(Practising), FCPA(Aust),
aged 86

has been a Director of the Group since 1973. He practiced accountancy in Hong
Kong for 60 years. He has a doctorate in Offshore Petroleum Technology and
Modern Chinese Law and is an honorary fellow of the Society for Underwater
Technology. Dr. Chan is a trustee of the Hong Kong Shue Yan University (also as
its Research Professor) and the United College of Chinese University of Hong Kong.
He was the Chairman of The Kowloon Stock Exchange, a founding Director of The
Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited and has served three terms as the Chairman of

the former Hong Kong Federation of Stock Exchanges.

MR. HOUANG TAI NINH aged 54

has been a Director for the Group since 1988. He is also a Director of Forcon
Investments Limited, Sino Petrochem Development Limited and China & Overseas
Resources Limited. Mr. Houang obtained his Bachelor of Business Studies degree
from the Polytechnic of North Staffordshire, United Kingdom.

DR. LI KA CHEUNG, ERIC FCPA(Practising), GBS, OBE, JP, aged 54

has been a Director of the Group since March 2003. He is Senior Partner of Li, Tang,
Chen & Co., Certified Public Accountants (Practising), member of the Tenth National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and former member
of the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong SAR. He holds directorship in a number of
listed companies including Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, Hang Seng Bank Limited,
SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited, Transport International Holdings
Limited, Wong’s International (Holdings) Limited, CATIC International Holdings Limited,
RoadShow Holdings Limited, Sinofert Holdings Limited, Meadville Holdings Limited,
Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.
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DR. CHENG MO CHI GBS, OBE, JP, aged 58

has been a Director of the Group since November 2005. He qualified as a solicitor
in Hong Kong, United Kingdom, Victoria Australia and Singapore and is the Senior
Partner of Messrs. P.C. Woo & Co., a firm of solicitors. He is currently Director of
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and had served as a member of the
Legislative Council from 1991 to 1995. Dr. Cheng is the Hon. President and Founding
Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Presently, he holds directorship
in a number of listed companies in Hong Kong and Singapore, including Beijing
Capital International Airport Company Limited, China COSCO Holdings Company
Limited, China Mobile Limited, City Telecom (HK) Limited, Guangdong Investment
Limited, Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited (formerly known as K. Wah Construction
Materials Limited), Kader Holdings Company Limited, Liu Chong Hing Investment
Limited, ARA Asset Management Limited, Shui On Construction and Materials Limited
as well as Tian An China Investments Company Limited.

THE HON. BERNARD CHARNWUT CHAN GBS, JP, aged 43

was appointed a Director of the Group in November 2006. He is the Executive
Director and President of Asia Financial Holdings Limited and Asia Insurance
Company Limited. He also acts as an Advisor of Bangkok Bank Public Company
Limited, Hong Kong Branch. Apart from the roles in the business community,
Mr. Chan also serves as Deputy to The National People’s Congress of the People’s
Republic of China, a member of the Legislative Council representing the insurance
industry and a non-official member of the Executive Council of the Hong Kong SAR.
In addition, Mr. Chan holds directorship in a number of listed companies in Hong
Kong, including Chen Hsong Holdings Limited, City e-Solutions Limited, New Heritage
Holdings Limited, Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited, Wing Lung Bank Limited
and Yau Lee Holdings Limited.

MR. SIU KWING CHUE, GORDON GBS, CBE, JP, aged 62

was appointed a Director of the Group in November 2006. He had been a
government official for over 36 years before his retirement from the civil service
Mr. Siu rose to the rank of Secretary, Government Secretariat in 1993

and served a number of high-ranking government positions, namely the Secretary

in 2002.

for Economic Services, Secretary for Transport, Head of Central Policy Unit and
eventually retired from his last posting as Secretary for Planning, Environment &
Lands. Mr. Siu now serves as an Independent Non-Executive Director of Transport
International Holdings Limited and two of its subsidiaries, ICEA Finance Holdings

Limited as well as Television Broadcasts Limited.
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MR. LAU KIN SHING, CHARLES aged 52

was appointed Vice President of the Group in March 2006. He heads the Group’s
Internal Audit Department. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor’s degree in Accounting and
Master’s degree in Business Administration as well as in Information System
He is a chartered accountant, New Zealand, Australian FCPA,
He has
extensive experience in internal auditing, financial management and operations

Management.
a Canadian certified general accountant and U.S. certified internal auditor.

review. Mr. Lau joined the Group in February 2000.

MR. CHEN LANG aged 42

was appointed Vice President of the Group in February 2008. He is the Vice
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of China Resources Vanguard Company Limited
and the Chairman of Suguo Supermarket Company Limited. He is also a Director
of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources National
Corporation. Mr. Chen joined China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in 1989.
He was previously the Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of China Resources
Logic Limited. Prior to that, he was the Chairman and General Manager of China
Resources Development and Investment Company Limited and was in charge of
a number of substantial investments in Canada and Thailand of China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited. Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor of Economics degree from
Anhui University, China and a Master of Business Administration degree from the
University of San Francisco, USA.

MS. GUO JINQING aged 42

was appointed Vice President of the Group in February 2008. She has been the
Managing Director of Ng Fung Hong Limited since 2001. She joined Ng Fung
Hong Limited in 1991 and assumed the role of Deputy Managing Director in 1996.
Ms. Guo holds a Bachelor of Economic degree from the University of International
Business and Economics, China and a Master of Business Administration degree
from Murdoch University, Australia. She has substantial experience in trading and

corporate management.
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MISS CHEUNG SIU LING aged 45

is the Deputy Chief Financial Officer of the Group. She holds a Master of Business
Administration degree from the University of Newcastle, United Kingdom. Miss
Cheung is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Certified General Accountants Association of Canada. She worked for an
international accounting firm for over 13 years. Miss Cheung joined the Group in

January 2001.

MISS HUI LEUNG CHING, PATRICIA aged 40

is the Head Legal Advisor overseeing the Group’s Legal and Secretarial Department.
Miss Hui holds a Bachelor of Laws degree from King’s College, University of London,
and is qualified to practice law in Hong Kong as well as England and Wales. Prior to
joining the Group, Miss Hui has worked in private practice and with a listed company
and has substantial experience in corporate and commercial legal work, regulatory
compliance and company secretarial matters. She joined the Group in October 2006.

MR. SHI SHANBO aged 42

was appointed Managing Director of China Resources Textiles (Holdings) Company
Limited in 2006. Mr. Shi holds a Master’s degree in Economics from Dongbei
University of Finance and Economics, China. He joined China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited in 1991 and has been the Vice Chairman and General Manager
of China Resources Cement Holdings Limited since June 2003. He has over a
decade of experience in corporate finance, human resources management and

strategic planning.

MR. TANG XU DONG aged 48

is currently the General Manager of China Resources Retail (Group) Company
Limited as well as the Chief Executive Officer of Tactical Solutions Incorporated,
a joint venture between the Group and Esprit Holdings Limited, specialising in
Mr. Tang holds
a Bachelor of Business degree from the Liaoning University, China and a Master

the distribution of apparel, fashion accessories and cosmetics.
of Economics degree from the People’s University of China. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Tang worked for the CITIC Group. He is also a member of the Shanghai
Changning District’s Chinese People’s Political Consultative Committee. Mr. Tang

joined the Group in November 1997.
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It is the firm belief of the Company that a good and solid corporate
governance framework is essential to the successful growth of the
Company and the enhancement of shareholders’ value. The Company
is committed to attaining and maintaining high standards of corporate
governance and adopts principles of corporate governance emphasising
a quality board, accountability to all stakeholders, open communication
and fair disclosure.

Code on Corporate Governance Practices
On 8 April, 2005, the Company adopted the Corporate Governance

Practice Manual (“CG Manual”). The CG Manual incorporates almost all
the Code Provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) and includes the implementation details for the Code Provisions
and, where appropriate, the Recommended Best Practices. The CG
Manual can be downloaded from our website and copies are available
on request to the Company Secretary.

The Company has complied with all the Code Provisions in the CG
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2007, with deviations
from Code Provisions A.4.1 and E.1.2 of the CG Code as summarised
below. The Company has also exceeded the requirements under
the Listing Rules and the CG Code in various areas of its corporate
governance practices.

In addition to meeting the requirements of the Listing Rules, the
inclusion of the Corporate Governance Report in this Annual Report is
intended to keep our shareholders abreast of the corporate governance
practices of the Company and their development throughout the
reporting year and to invite our shareholders’ views thereon.

The Board

The Board represents shareholders in managing the Company’s affairs.
The Directors recognise their responsibilities to enhance shareholder
value and to conduct themselves in accordance with their duty of care
and loyalty.

The major issues which are brought before the Board for their decisions

include:

1. Direction of the operational strategies of the Group;

2. Setting the policies relating to key business and financial objectives
of the Company;

3. Monitoring the performance of the management;

4. Approval of material acquisitions, investments, divestments, disposal
of assets or any significant capital expenditure of the Group;

5. Ensuring a prudent and effective internal control system;
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6. Review of the financial performance and results of the Company;
and

7. Recommendation to shareholders of the Company on final dividend
and the declaration of any interim dividends.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the accounts of each
financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that period. Since
November 2002, to enable the shareholders to appraise the operations
and performance of the Group, the Group has been releasing quarterly
financial highlights and operating review. The financial statements are
prepared and presented to enable a clear and balanced assessment of
the financial position of the Group. Regular management reports on the
financial position and prospects of each business unit of the Group are
reviewed by the Executive Committee to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment of the performance of the Company.

In the financial year ended 31 December 2007, and up to the date of

this Report, there were the following changes to the membership of

the Board:

(1) Mr. Xie Shengxi resigned and Mr. Du Wenmin was appointed as
Non-Executive Director on 6 September 2007.

(2) Mr. Qiao Shibo resigned and Mr. Li Fuzuo was appointed as
Non-Executive Director on 1 February 2008.

(3) Mr. Keung Chi Wang, Ralph resigned as Executive Director on
15 February 2008.

As at the date of this Report, the Board comprises 16 Directors,
including the Chairman, the Managing Director, three Deputy
Managing Directors, five Non-Executive Directors and six Independent
Non-Executive Directors. The biographical details of the Directors are
set out on pages 56 to 59 of this Annual Report and can also be found
on our website. The relationships (including financial, business, family
or other material or relevant relationships) if any, among members of
the Board are disclosed. There is no such relationship as between the
Chairman and the Managing Director.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company has
received written confirmation from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors confirming his independence from the Company,
and considers all of the Independent Non-Executive Directors to be
independent.

The experience and views of our Independent Non-Executive Directors
are held in high regard and contribute to the effective direction of the
Group. The Company exceeded the minimum requirements under the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three Independent
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Non-Executive Directors with six Independent Non-Executive Directors.
Two of our Independent Non-Executive Directors have appropriate
accounting qualifications, which also exceeds the requirement of
the Listing Rules. Throughout the year of 2007, the Company has
maintained the proportion of its Independent Non-Executive Directors to
at least one third of the total members of the Board.

The Company has put in place a tailored induction programme for its
newly appointed directors. Continuing development and information
are provided to the Directors to keep them abreast of the latest
developments involving the Group’s businesses and operations.

The structure, size and composition of the Board are reviewed from
time to time to ensure that the Board has a balanced composition of
skills and expertise appropriate for the requirements of the businesses
of the Company. Appointments are first considered by the Nomination
Committee. The recommendations of the Nomination Committee are
then put to the full Board for decision.

All Directors (including Executive and Non-Executive Directors) are not
appointed for a fixed term. The Board does not believe in any arbitrary
term of office and would like to retain sufficient flexibility to organise
the composition of the Board to serve the needs of the Group. All
Directors are subject to re-election by shareholders of the Company at
the annual general meeting following their appointment and at least
every three years on a rotation basis. The Articles of Association of the
Company require that one-third of the Directors (including Executive
and Non-Executive Directors) shall retire each year. The Directors who
are required to retire each year shall be those appointed by the Board
during the year and those who have been longest in office since their
election or re-election. A retiring Director is eligible for re-election.

The positions of the Chairman and the Managing Director are held
separately by Mr. Song Lin and Mr. Chen Shulin respectively. The
segregation of duties of the Chairman and the Managing Director
ensures a clear distinction in the Chairman’s responsibility to manage
the Board and the Managing Director’s responsibility to manage the
Company’s business. The respective responsibilities of the Chairman
and the Managing Director are more fully set out in the CG Manual.

Due to important business appointments overseas, Mr. Song Lin was
not in Hong Kong on 31 May 2007 and therefore could not attend
the annual general meeting of the Company held on that day. The
Managing Director and either the chairman or at least one member
of the audit committee, compensation committee and nomination
committee attended the annual general meeting to ensure effective
communication with the shareholders of the Company.
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EEegFeldRAmNAERE® ( KOEER The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year at
F—R)  BRARENVHEERE  BRESe= approximately quarterly intervals to review the financial performance of
S ERethedREMER  UBHTREREE the Group. Between these regular meetings, the Board meets to discuss
Rkl (TR LEMBRAEGHE) REMTEE and consider major issues (whether or not required by the Listing Rules)
FeERAENEE -EHEEFTENTHER and also on other occasions when board decisions are required. With
EFEHT Y RAEEESENERBARREZ respect to regular meetings of the Board, Directors receive at least 14
HERIZEL = REEHXGHRZIERABEHEX days prior written notice of the meeting and an agenda with supporting
- BREAREMEZE  TETEIGTEEN Board papers no less than three days prior to the meeting. With
FAE o A - EEHERAURER AT ERR respect to other meetings called, Directors are given as much notice as
ERREEENMBIEEER - is reasonable and practicable in the circumstances. The Directors have

full access to information on the Group and independent professional
advice whenever deemed necessary by the Directors.

EFeRN 2T LFHRHEMAAEE - ESFH The Board met on 11 occasions during 2007. The attendance of the
TR EHREEERR T EZE R g RN Directors at Board meetings and principal Board committee meetings
FFIEERN TR - held in 2007 is set out in the table below:
EFY | muzae |FMZARY| HnZAR |MBESEY| FAZAE
Audit Compensation| Executive Finance Nomination
R S Committee | Committee® | Committee | Committee®” | Committee
1 {TESE Non-Executive Directors
B k% | Mr. Qiao Shibo
)i Mr. Yan Biao
BELEE Mr. Jiang Wei 1
FEIFESLLE | Mr. Wang Shuaiting 1
HIBELE4ED | Mr Xie Shengxi®
HXR%EE® | Mr. DuWenmin® 1] 1
B EHITEE Independent Non-Executive Directors
fRE5fE+ | Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter 3| 6 4 1
EARES%4E | Mr. Houang Tai Ninh 4 | 7 4 1 1
ZREE L | Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric 2 | 5 4 1 1
BFEEE LT | Dr. Cheng Mo Chi 3 | 7¢ 4 1
BREZZEE | The Hon. Bernard Charnwut Chan | 4 | 6 3 1 1
A% E | Mr Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon 4 | 6 1 1
H{TEZE Executive Directors
RIRGTEE Mr. Song Lin 1 7
BRESMSEE | Mr. Chen Shulin 30 3 1 9 7
E=BE%4E | Mr Keung Chi Wang, Ralph 4 | 7 1 8 7
TESTE Mr. Wang Qun 1 5 7
ZIEMEE | Mr. Lau Pak Shing 4 | 3 9 7
BCEREAE | Mr Kwong Man Him 4 | 7 9 1
“EZLFENBERH
Total number of meetings held in 2007 n B : 9 7 1

B 7E R: JEHIE# Regular Meeting
Notes:  S: 457l &%# Special Meeting
@ TFEUANA FHEESRBREBIERZEG ZHALAH -
The functions of the Compensation Committee and the Share Option Independent Directors Committee were combined on 4 April 2007.
(@ HBELLBTAINTES R-FTLFNARNALEN -
Mr. Xie Shengxi resigned as Non-Executive Director with effect from 6 September 2007.
() MXRAEVR-ZFTLFNARNABEERIFNITES -
Mr. Du Wenmin was appointed as Non-Executive Director with effect from 6 September 2007.
(4) —ETLFEZUBZEGRBUABDRARL BB -
The resolutions of Finance Committee in 2007 were passed by way of written resolutions.
REARRERMARIE 10815 Hh—RSFEERBELUTEVAZE -
At one of the board meetings, Dr. Cheng Mo Chi attended the meeting by way of telephone pursuant to Article 108 of the Company’s Articles of Association.

G
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Delegation by the Board
While the Board retains at all times full responsibility for guiding and

monitoring the Company, certain responsibilities of the Board are

delegated as follows:

(@) Committees — various committees have been established by the
Board to administer certain specified functions of the Company’s
affairs. The main committees include: the Executive Committee,
the Finance Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Compensation Committee. The terms of
reference of the Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Compensation Committee which set
out, among other things, the duties, functions and composition of
these committees are set out in the CG Manual and available on the
Company’s website;

(b) Managing Director — the day-to-day management of the Company’s
business is delegated to the Managing Director who is accountable
to the Board; and

() Senior Management — certain responsibilities of corporate and
operating management are delegated to senior management of the
Company within the parameters as specified by the Board.

Nomination Committee

As at 31 December 2007, the Nomination Committee comprised four
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Houang Tai Ninh
(chairman), Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, The Hon. Bernard Charnwut Chan
and Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon, and one Executive Director, Mr.
Kwong Man Him. The duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and to make
recommendation after such review and to assess the suitability and
qualification of any proposed director candidate. The recommendations
of the Nomination Committee are then put forward for consideration
and adoption, where appropriate, by the Board. The terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee which set out its duties and procedures
are available on the Company’s website.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Nomination Committee

held one meeting. The work of the Nomination Committee included the

following recommendations to the Board:

e The resignation of Mr. Xie Shengxi and the appointment of Mr. Du
Wenmin as Non-Executive Director.
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Compensation Committee
As at 31 December 2007, the Compensation Committee comprised five

Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter
(chairman), Mr. Houang Tai Ninh, Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, Dr. Cheng
Mo Chi and Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon, and one Executive Director,
Mr. Keung Chi Wang, Ralph. The duties of the Compensation Committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure of remuneration of Directors and senior management,
establishing a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy
on remuneration and determining the specific remuneration packages
for all directors and senior management. The terms of reference of the
Compensation Committee which set out its duties and procedures are
available on the Company’s website.

The functions of the Compensation Committee and the Share Option
Independent Directors Committee were combined on 4 April 2007.

The remuneration of the Directors and senior executives is determined
with reference to the performance and responsibilities of the individual,
the performance of the Group, prevailing market conditions and
remuneration benchmarks from comparable companies. Directors
and employees also participate in bonus arrangements based on the
performance of the Group and the individual.

During the year under review, the Compensation Committee met once

and passed resolutions on matters including:

e Approval of the remuneration packages 2007 for Directors and
senior management of the Company.

Audit Committee
As at 31 December 2007, the Audit Committee comprised five

Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric
(chairman), Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter, Mr. Houang Tai Ninh, Dr. Cheng Mo
Chi and The Hon. Bernard Charnwut Chan. Two of its members have
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. No member of this Committee is a member
of the former or existing auditors of the Company. The membership
of the Audit Committee has exceeded the Listing Rules requirement
that the majority of its members must be independent and one of
whom must have appropriate professional qualification. The existing
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are modeled on “A Guide for
Effective Audit Committee” issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and have also adopted the principles set out in the
CG Code.
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The duties of the Audit Committee include considering and making

recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment

and removal of external auditors, review of the Company’s financial

information and oversight of the Company’s financial report system and

internal control procedures. During the year under review, the Audit

Committee met on four occasions. The work of the Audit Committee in

2007 included reviews of:

e the external auditors’ report to the Audit Committee in respect of
2006 audit;

e the 2006 annual report and annual results announcement;

e the external auditors’ internal control memorandum in respect of the
2006 audit;

e connected party transactions;

e the quarterly results for the three months ended 31 March, 2007 and
the related results announcement;

e the 2007 interim report and interim results announcement;

e the quarterly results for the nine months ended 30 September, 2007
and the related results announcement; and

e the quarterly reports of internal audit activities.

During the reporting year, the Audit Committee met with the external
auditors on three occasions without the presence of any Executive
Directors.

The Audit Committee has considered the performance and independence
of the external auditors of the Company. The Audit Committee
concludes that the independence of the external auditors of the
Company has not been compromised by non-audit services performed
for the Group. During the year under review, audit fees paid and
payable to the Company’s external auditors amount to approximately
HK$21 million (2006: approximately HK$21 million); fees related to non-
audit services paid and payable amount to approximately HK$2 million
(2006: approximately HK$0.6 million).

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
The interests held by the Directors in the Company’s securities as at 31

December 2007 are disclosed in the Directors’ Report on pages 78 to
84 of this Annual Report. On 8 April 2005, the Company has adopted
a Code of Ethics and Securities Transactions (“Code of Ethics”) which
incorporates the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules. The Code of Ethics has been amended and approved by the
Board of Directors of the Company on 6 April 2006 and 4 April 2007.
The prohibitions on securities dealing and disclosure requirements
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in the Code of Ethics also apply to specified individuals who include
the Group’s senior management and persons who are privy to price
sensitive information of the Group. The Code of Ethics is on terms no
less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code.
Having made specific enquiry with the Directors, all Directors confirmed
that they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 31 December, 2007.

Internal Control
The Board recognizes that it has the overall responsibility to establish

and maintain a sound and effective internal control system to
ensure the smooth running of the operations, safeguard the Group’s
assets and shareholder’s interest as well as ensure the reliability of
financial statements.

The Group adopts the control framework consistent with the frameworks
recommended by the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the
Treadway Commission in the United States and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants as the standards in establishing control
systems and the best practice among our Group companies. The
Group’s internal control system includes five key elements, namely
the existence of an effective control environment, risk management,
communication and information system, cost effective control activities
and proper monitoring mechanism.

Every business unit is required to identify and assess the risks and
impact on the respective business unit at least once every year. The
executive management team of each business unit is accountable for
the conduct and performance of each operation in the business unit
within the agreed strategies and similarly the management of each
operation is accountable for its conduct and performance. Policies and
procedures are designed for safeguarding corporate assets, maintaining
proper accounting records and ensuring transactions are executed in
accordance with management authorisation. Monthly management
reports on the financial results and key operation indicators are
reviewed by the Executive Committee of the Board. Regular meetings
are held with the executive management team of each business unit to
review the actual performance against budget.

Our Internal Audit Department, reporting to the Audit Committee and
Managing Director respectively, is responsible for assessing the Group’s
internal control system, formulating an impartial opinion on the system,
and reporting its findings to the Executive Committee and the Audit
Committee. The Internal Audit Department conducts independent
reviews on the Group’s internal control on an on-going basis.
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Depending on the nature of businesses and risk exposure of individual
business units, the scope of work performed by the internal audit
function covers all material controls including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions.

Results of internal audit activities are reported to the Audit Committee
at least once every quarter and the corrective actions are taken by the
relevant business units. The Board conducts regular reviews of the
Group’s internal control system through monitoring the activities of the
Group’s Internal Audit Department and the Audit Committee.

Based on the assessment for the year ended 31 December 2007, the
Board and the Audit Committee believe that the system of internal
control provides reasonable assurance that the Group’s assets are
safeguarded and there is no significant area of concerns that may
affect shareholders.

Investor Relations
The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular

communication and fair disclosure of information to its shareholders.
Accurate and fair disclosure is necessary for shareholders to form their
own judgment on the operation and performance of the Group.

Based on this policy, legitimate questions arising from generally
disclosed information deserves a reasonable reply. The Corporate
Planning and Development Department is responsible for investor
relationship functions and will respond to such shareholders’ and
analysts’ enquiries.

The Company’s website provides shareholders, investors, existing
and prospective partners and counterparties with information on the
Company’s corporate governance practices. Copies of such information
can be obtained from the Company Secretary upon written request.

For and on behalf of the Board
CHEN SHULIN

Managing Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2008
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The directors have pleasure in presenting to the shareholders their
report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2007.

Principal Activities

The Group is principally engaged in retail, beverage, food processing
and distribution, textile and property investment businesses. The
principal activities of the Company are property investment and
investment holding. The activities of its principal subsidiaries and
associates are shown on pages 177 to 185. An analysis of the Group’s
performance for the year by business segments is set out in note 6 to
the financial statements.

Group Profit
The consolidated profit and loss account is set out on page 97 and
shows the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2007.

Dividends
An interim dividend of HK$0.15 per ordinary share amounting to
HK$357 million was paid to shareholders during the year.

A special dividend of HK$0.60 per ordinary share amounting to
HK$1,427 million was paid to shareholders in August 2007.

The directors recommend a final dividend of HK$0.30 per ordinary share
amounting to approximately HK$716 million payable on or about 13
June 2008 to all persons registered as holders of ordinary shares on 26
May 2008.

Fixed Assets
Movements in the fixed assets of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

Properties
A schedule of the principal properties of the Group is set out on pages
186 to 189.

Share Capital
Movements in the share capital during the year are set out in note 30
to the financial statements.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
note 31 to the financial statements respectively.
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Charitable Donations

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to

approximately HK$3 million.

Directors

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this

report were as follows:

Chairman
Mr. Song Lin

Managing Director
Mr. Chen Shulin

Deputy Managing Directors
Mr. Keung Chi Wang, Ralph
Mr. Wang Qun

Mr. Lau Pak Shing

Mr. Kwong Man Him

Directors
Mr. Qiao Shibo
(Non-executive Director)
Mr. Yan Biao
(Non-executive Director)
Mr. Jiang Wei
(Non-executive Director)
Mr. Wang Shuaiting
(Non-executive Director)
Mr. Xie Shengxi
(Non-executive Director)
Mr. Li Fuzuo
(Non-executive Director)
Mr. Du Wenmin
(Non-executive Director)
Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter

(Resigned on 15 February 2008)

(Resigned on 1 February 2008)

(Resigned on 6 September 2007)

(Appointed on 1 February 2008)

(Appointed on 6 September 2007)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Houang Tai Ninh

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi

(Independent Non-executive Director)

The Hon. Bernard Charnwut Chan

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon

(Independent Non-executive Director)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors (continued)

In accordance with Article 110 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Song Lin, Mr. Chen Shulin, Mr. Kwong Man Him, Mr. Houang Tai
Ninh, Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric and Dr. Cheng Mo Chi shall retire by
rotation and are eligible for re-election.

In accordance with Article 115 of the Company’s Article of Association,
Mr. Du Wenmin and Mr. Li Fuzuo shall retire and are eligible for re-
election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Directors’ Interest in Contracts

No contracts of significance to which the Company, its subsidiaries, its
holding companies or its fellow subsidiaries were a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
Biographical details of directors and senior management are set out on
pages 56 to 61.

Share Option Schemes

During the year, the Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of promoting additional commitment and dedication to the
objectives of the Company by the participants (the “New Scheme”).
In addition, certain outstanding share options were still held under a
share option scheme which subsisted until 31 January 2002 and was
terminated on 31 January 2002 (the “Old Scheme”).
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

The New Scheme was approved by the shareholders in general meeting
on 31 January 2002, which was subsequently amended on 20 August
2004 by an ordinary resolution passed by shareholders, and shall
expire on 31 January 2012. The board of directors of the Company may
grant options to eligible participants including any executive or non-
executive directors of the Group (or persons proposed to be appointed
as such), any discretionary object of a discretionary trust established
by any employee, executive or non-executive directors of the Group,
any executives and employees of, consultants, professional and other
advisors to the Group (or persons proposed to be appointed as such),
chief executive, substantial shareholder of the Company, associated
companies of the Group, associates of directors, chief executive and
substantial shareholder of the Company, and employees of substantial
shareholder and where a substantial shareholder is a company,
employees of subsidiaries of a substantial shareholder.

Subject to the requirements of The Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the exercise price shall be such price
determined by the board of directors at its absolute discretion. The
maximum entitlement of each participant under the schemes (including
options to be granted to the directors, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or any of their respective associates) is
equivalent to the maximum limit permitted under the Listing Rules.
The scheme mandate limit under the New Scheme was refreshed and
renewed by an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders at an
extraordinary general meeting held on 20 August 2004 which enabled
the grant of further share options to subscribe up to 210,462,321 shares
representing 10% of the shares in issue as at the said date. As at the
date of this report, the total number of shares available for issue upon
exercise of all options which may be granted under the New Scheme is
159,766,321 shares which represent 6.7% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

Share options are generally either fully vested or vested over a period
of time up to a maximum of four years after the acceptance of a grant
and exercisable within a period of 10 years immediately after the date
of grant.

Save as disclosed below, no share options have been granted (or
granted in excess of individual limit), exercised, cancelled or lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the relevant share option scheme during
the year in relation to each of the directors or their respective associates,
employees, and other participants of the share option schemes.
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MBI &) Share Option Schemes (continued)
() ESHBEA (@) Directors or their associates
RZTZTLF+A=+—ARAFEH As at 31 December 2007 and during the year, the following
M THEFRFERBEAQAFERD directors had interests in respect of options to subscribe for
AIREBAR D BB AR = o RIRZMIEET shares granted under the New Scheme of the Company. Share
2 EEFAENERENAT options held by directors granted under such schemes are set out
below:
fERRES R

Number of share options®

BUFHTES

Independent

Non-executive

Directors

R 4 02/06/2004 9.55 200,000 - - - - 200,000 -
Chan Po Fun, Peter

HEAE 02/06/2004 9.55 200,000 - - - - 200,000 -
Houang Tai Ninh

FREE 02/06/2004 9.55 200,000 - - - - 200,000 -
Li Ka Cheung, Eric

&%t Total 600,000 - - - - 600,000 -
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BRETEERITESIN  ARBRZMBES
HEALEZRE  HRERFBZIERER
HER EX(F)BREE - UTEASEE
B(TEREARRES) REMBEERT
AR,

) EBETEBEEARAESR)

Share Option Schemes (continued)

(b)

Employees and other participants

Except for all non-executive directors, all directors of the Company
are employees of the Group and details of share options held by
them are disclosed in paragraph (a) above. Summary of share
options granted to employees of the Group (other than directors
of the Company) and other participants are set out below.

()  Employees (other than directors of the Company)

EhEse:

Number of share options*

-

Old Scheme3

20/06/2000 7.19 475,000 - 161,000 - - 314,000 24.492
21/11/2000 7.08 945,000 - 132,000 - - 813,000 28.042
/&t Sub-total 1,420,000 - 293,000 - - 1,127,000

et &l

New Scheme

07/02/2002 7.17 634,000 - 350,000 - - 284,000 27.970
19/04/2002 7.40 284,000 - 40,000 - - 244,000 32.000
02/08/2002 8.32 720,000 - 350,000 - - 370,000 27.701
24/01/2003 7.25 50,000 - 50,000 - - - 24.750
14/04/2003 6.29 274,000 - 70,000 - - 204,000 26.153
01/08/2003 7.10 80,000 - 40,000 - - 40,000 25.600
08/10/2003 8.90 352,000 - 230,000 - - 122,000 26.741
14/01/2004 9.72 15,113,000 - 9,516,000 - 400,000 5,197,000 26.291
20/04/2004 9.89 2,892,000 - 2,052,000 - - 840,000 29.114
25/05/2004 9.15 4,154,000 - 2,438,000 - - 1,716,000 26.759
22/07/2004 9.80 160,000 - 50,000 - - 110,000 33.250
04/10/2004 10.35 17,622,000 - 7,726,000 - - 9,896,000 28.760
17/01/2005 11.40 120,000 - 40,000 - - 80,000 27.400
22/07/2005 12.50 720,000 - 230,000 - 80,000 410,000 27.813
/&t Sub-total 43,175,000 - 23,182,000 - 480,000 19,513,000
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MBI &) Share Option Schemes (continued)
(2) BERAMBEE (5 (b) Employees and other participants (continued)
(i) HibsmE (i)  Other Participants
MEER A

Number of share options®

et #l

New Scheme

05/03/2002 7.35 3,365,000 - 2,716,000 - - 649,000 29.831
14/04/2003 6.29 120,000 - 120,000 - - - 26.153

/)&t Sub-total 3,485,000

2,836,000 - - 649,000

B

=

Notes:

B AR B fR R PSR 2 AR BAEREAR D ©

=
=

Number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares in the
Company covered by the share options.

2. RERETEBREMBRE 2 ARTRGERE - B 2. The price of the Company’s shares disclosed for the options exercised during
SERERAETTEE B EART - RO R AT AT IR 2 M the year is the weighted average of the closing prices quoted on the Stock
B2 METHE - Exchange immediately before the date of exercise of options.
HER TEREMEANGTERASRUTBRE The accounting policy adopted for the share options granted is set out in note
HE—BER - 2P to the financial statements.

3. EBSER=ZEE-_F—A=+—HBFULIL ' B 3. The Old Scheme was terminated on 31 January 2002, and therefore no options
PELATR - ARA BILEAR IR E ST I T () B ARAE have been granted under the Old Scheme since then.

4 EXFE R 2 EREEBERN R B SRR 4. All the share options granted as mentioned above will expire on the date
TEZBER - MEORDEREZ RERBE falling ten years from the date of grant and consideration for each grant is
JC ° HK$1.00.

5. A A B BR AP 2 00 A 4 B AR - B BRI T 5. As no share options were granted during the year under review, no price
EA - disclosure is applicable.

6. BB AR — AR BN 2 E0RE T oo B I IH IR AR i 1R A 6. Share options are generally either fully vested or vested over a period of time
RAMFZBARAME T - W EEE L2 BT iE up to a maximum of four years after the acceptance of a grant and exercisable
BT FERNITEE within a period of not more than 10 years immediately after the date of grant.
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EECESER

RIEZLF+_A=1+—HB ARFAEEK
RRITHRABRARR REBBEE(EERE
BEPFER BT —E(EFLHEEN)EXV
BB RLY - ABREIR G REH PR AREGE
HEHEEDDEXVIE L RENDBHEER
AR RER SRR (BRERB(ES MR
OBV ESURE RS B RARAE A AR A
B ZARB(EFLRAREGRIDE=811+=
FRERENOECHEZIGRERTFENE
AR R KA R - SRR EWRAIATEC £
MRRESETEFXZNRETRDAMG K

N RERZFrRE s FORR AT

() REQFCHRITEBERREABROTER

KR
R/ WA
EEHS Long position/
Name of Directors Short position
R TR
Song Lin Long position
BERAGT AR A
Chen Shulin Long position
TE A
Wang Qun Long position
ZIERK j552)

Lau Pak Shing

B3R

Kwong Man Him

Long position

8

Long position

St A
Qiao Shibo Long position
B8 A
Yan Biao Long position

Directors’ Interests in Securities

As at 31 December 2007, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations,
within the meaning of Part XV of The Securities and Futures Ordinance,
Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”), which have been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, including interests and short positions
which the directors and chief executive of the Company are taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO, or which are
required to be and are recorded in the register required to be kept
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
contained in the Listing Rules were as follows:

(@) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

Company
iR
izl ERa
f&nERE 1 Aggregate
MR B Number of percentage of

Number of shares underlying shares® interest> (%)

1,700,000 - 0.07
1,932,000 - 0.08
60,000 - 0.01
400,000 - 0.02
1,194,000 - 0.05
1,120,000 - 0.05
500,000 - 0.02
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Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued)
@

Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

Company (continued)

e He
Jiang Wei Long position
HXER He
Du Wenmin Long position
BRE S 55o)

Chan Po Fun, Peter Long position
R

Long position

BAE 552)
Houang Tai Ninh

pid

Long position

FRHE "R

Li Ka Cheung, Eric Long position

240,000 - 0.01
100,000 - 0.01
336,000 200,000 0.03
170,000° - _
- 200,000 0.01
- 200,000 0.01

GEX

1. B EXRERERT 8 | —a R B R LB RAERT S &2
MAAFRBERD - ZERBREEENIELTIAE
PR BEAPTETA -

2. BARB RN RAABEN FOFEBBEARTR
TERLE+T AT -HEBEOTRTEENES
L

3. R PR S 5 88.25%E BTIRANZ A F)
FH -

4. BHE3RBAAEES  ARENRBEZESAE
BEREUEREBAZENRE -

Notes:

This refer to underlying shares of the Company covered by share options
granted as detailed above under the section headed “Share Option Schemes”,
such options being unlisted physically settled equity derivatives.

This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares and
underlying shares of the Company to the total issued share capital of the

Company as at 31 December 2007.

Such interest is held by a company of which Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter is
interested in 88.25% of its issued share capital.

Save as otherwise specified under note 3, interests disclosed hereunder are
being held by each director in his capacity as beneficial owner.
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BEECRSER®

Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued)

(Z2) RAEBZEERTEBRRABERD % (b)

BHERE

AR ATUEEHEARBEIE(ERR
(FEHEHEG)) B RITEBBRIR
IRRERRERT I FTIR L AT R AR (0 Z R A
REEE L REFRREEENIE LTI
BEMZREOBATETA

O R-EREEE-EEHEHBBERA
A(ERED ) EHTEARLR
PRI B 0 R AR AT &R RT(E R
Pt Heas

KK
Song Lin

2B
Lau Pak Shing

BitF
Qiao Shibo

)]
Yan Biao

Bz
Jiang Wei

FAbE
Wang Shuaiting

xR

Du Wenmin

HE

Long position

"R

Long position

HE

Long position

Long position

"R

Long position

A

Long position

100,000

700,000

1,992,000

892,000

200,000

790,000

Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of

associated corporations

As at the same date, certain directors had interests in the issued
ordinary shares and underlying shares covered by options granted
under the share option schemes of associated corporations (within
the meaning of SFO), such options being unlisted physically
settled equity derivatives:

@) Interests in issued ordinary shares and options outstanding
under the share option schemes of an associated corporation,

China Resources Land Limited (“CR Land”):

900,000

250,000

540,000

250,000

1.230

1.270

1.590

1.230

01/06/2005

02/06/20053

04/03/20025

01/06/2005*

0.02

0.01

0.02

0.05

0.02

0.02

0.03
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EECESER@®) Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued)

(Z) REBEIECRITEERREBERKRG R HE (b) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of
BHRER(®) associated corporations (continued)
B e Notes:

FERR RSN B SRR A AT S M 2 E B M AR RS
fin ke g -

B R AR 2 B+ FHEATT
1 o BRILIASH - REREREBLT

BRETHNEBE T AIHRE=-ZTF <
T+ ZEEN\RZZETNFSAZA
BT -RFNA—BIEHETE - BEK
REARBBT

WA AR T - TH BB = TFS
“EFL —FEAR-FENFAA-E
E-F-EFRA=t—BLBAITHE - &
B AT«

BRETR-_ZT_F=-ANAE=Z2—=
F—A=+—HBILHHETE - BHORER
BT ©

BHR TS MHZETEE IR BRI () 42
BHEHBMN _TTLF+_A=1+—H
BERITRAEHNADL

EXBBE s G2 MRS EEUESES
AZENFE -

1 The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares
of CR Land covered by the share options.

2. Options are exercisable within a period of 10 years from the date of
grant. Consideration for the grant is HK$1.00.

3. Options are vested in four tranches and exercisable over a period
from 2 June 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009, respectively to 1 June 2015.
Consideration for the grant is HK$1.00.

4. Options are vested in four tranches and exercisable over a period
from 1 June 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009, respectively to 31 May 2015.
Consideration for the grant is HK$1.00.

5. Options are exercisable from 4 March 2002 to 31 January 2012.
Consideration for the grant is HK$1.00.

6. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares
and underlying shares of CR Land to the total issued share capital of CR
Land as at 31 December 2007.

7. All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his
capacity as beneficial owner.
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EEvRESERER®

REBLIECRTEERREBROPE

BHERE)

(i) WRE—FEEEEE-EEHERER
AENEHBER]DBEETERR KR
AR PR R B BB AR AT B i R 1T
B 2 HE s

(2)

Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued)
(b) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of
associated corporations (continued)
(i) Interests in issued ordinary shares and options outstanding
under the share option schemes of an associated
corporation, China Resources Logic Limited (“CR Logic”):

N e 2,500,000 2,000,000 0.906 13/01/20043 0.16
Song Lin Long position
ZIERK He 1,824,000 - - - 0.06
Lau Pak Shing Long position
Bz S=) - 720,000 0.820 09/04/2002* 0.03
Jiang Wei Long position
ThbsE 5~ - 540,000 0.820 09/04/20023 0.02

Wang Shuaiting Long position

MHXR S5=) 540,000 - - - 0.02
Du Wenmin Long position
BT Notes:

BB B MBS R E B BRI AR (0 42
o

BHRMEROERBBR N RAARE R M AR5 E
BN —ZRLF+ A=+ -RABBTRER
BB

SRS A PT PO 8% 1 B B AR F AR ST R EAR AT
- BHHRERBE UL -

fERED AR T IR -_TT_FMANA -
—ET=F  —ZETHNFR-TTRF—A—HZE
—T-—FMANBILEREITE - REREABYE

17T °

EXFREZ RGN ERAESHEEAZSY
D45H °

1. The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares of CR
Logic covered by the share options.

2. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares and
underlying shares of CR Logic to the total issued share capital of CR Logic as at
31 December 2007.

3. Options are exercisable within a period of 10 years from the date of grant of
the relevant options. Consideration for the grant is HK$1.00.

4. Options are vested in four tranches and exercisable on 9 April 2002, 1 January
2003, 2004 and 2005 to 8 April 2012. Consideration for the grant is HK$1.00.

5. All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his capacity as
beneficial owner.
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R
Song Lin

PRAG AR
Chen Shulin

TE
Wang Qun

2B
Lau Pak Shing

BitF
Qiao Shibo

[]E
Yan Biao
iz
Jiang Wei

ThabE
Wang Shuaiting

HXR
Du Wenmin

fA

Long position

Sy

Long position

HE

Long position

"R

Long position

HE

Long position

R

Long position

Sy

Long position

HE

Long position

1A
Long position
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Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued)
Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of
associated corporations (continued)

Interests in issued ordinary shares and options outstanding
under the share option schemes of an associated
corporation, China Resources Power Holdings Company
Limited (“CR Power”):

1,260,000 800,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.06
540,000 3.99 18/03/2005°3

- 240,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.02
400,000 3.99 18/03/20053

- 500,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.01

- 200,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.01

200,000 600,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.03
300,000 3.99 18/03/2005°3
- 30,000° 2.80 12/11/20032

- 240,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.01
320,000 3.99 18/03/2005°3

- 1,000,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.04
600,000 3.99 18/03/20053

3,450,000 900,000 2.80 06/10/2003* 0.12
540,000 3.99 18/03/2005*

270,000 180,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.01
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BRESRHEL  SHESZ=1 A
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FRE - 2HERESR -2 —=FTAX
RER - bds bR EREBEIT

ERESRHRE  89E 2=+ 7
mEHASAEEAFRT  NMREASE—
BEEL  2XBREAN—F-15F=A7
TNEER - Ll ERBEHORER/EEL

JT ©

BRI X A RARE AR B e R )
RRTTE -

IR ROERE ARG RAARRG S
BiEHENR BB LF A=A
ZESTRAMBNER L -

SR LA AR A A E BB 2 30,0000% 48
BARR (D 2 ek o

BiistenBrMig s EXBRBEZMAR
MREEAEEEARREAATNRE

Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued)

(b)

Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of

associated corporations (continued)
Notes:

1 The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares
of CR Power covered by the share options.

2. Options are vested in 5 tranches of 20% each on each anniversary of
the date of grant commencing from the first anniversary of the date of
grant. All options expire on 6 October 2013. Consideration for each of
the grants mentioned above is HK$1.00.

3. Options are vested in 5 tranches of 20% each on each anniversary of
the date of grant commencing from the first anniversary of the date of
grant. All options expire on 18 March 2015. Consideration for each of the
grants mentioned above is HK$1.00.

4. Options are exercisable within a period of 10 years from date of grant of
the relevant options.

5. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares
and underlying shares of CR Power to the total issued share capital of
CR Power as at 31 December 2007.

6. Mr. Qiao Shibo was deemed to be interested in the 30,000 underlying
shares through interests of his spouse.

7. Save as otherwise specified under note 6, all other interests disclosed
above are being held by each director in his capacity as beneficial
owner.
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BEREARERNRKRER Shareholders with notifiable interests
RZEELF+_A=1+—8 BLEXMEEN As at 31 December 2007, other than the interests and short positions as
Rz SORBIN - MTFATRARARIRRGND KB disclosed above, the following persons have interests or short positions

{10 R B ERIBCE S R ERM)EXVELE in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as they fall to be
ZREB=DEAAR T EL D LEEERRRIA disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
FEMECMANERIOAE SFO or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company:

PR EA AT China Resources National 5=y 1,232,764,380 51.69
(TrEEmRal) Corporation (“CRNC”) Long position
EHRHBRAF] China Resources Co., Limited ES=Y 1,232,764,380 51.69
(Pi&E) (Note 1) Long position
CRC Bluesky Limited CRC Bluesky Limited (Note 1) S=) 1,232,764,380 51.69
(FisEL) Long position
= (EE)BRAT China Resources (Holdings) e 1,232,764,380 51.69
([#EREE]) Company Limited (“CRH”) Long position
(Pt sE) (Note 1)
SEMEE FERTT(MIsE2)  Commonwealth Bank of 5=y 168,573,767 7.07
Australia (Note 2) Long position
J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. e 121,952,844 5.11
(M7E3) (Note 3) Long position
A 600,000 0.03

Short position

&t Notes:

1. B % [E A CRC Bluesky Limited® 2 EWE AR 1. CRH is a 100% subsidiary of CRC Bluesky Limited, which is in turn owned as to
TMCRC Bluesky Limited &I MR MH AR AR EE H 100% by China Resources Co., Limited, which is in turn held as to 99.98% by
BORE - MEBERNARQFAEIEBEARTRF CRNC.

H99.98%E 2 °

2. BIECEH R EGDIDEXVEE -~ RE=DEHRTE 2. According to the information disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and
MARFRENERER  ZFRM ERMNEFHR 3 of Part XV of the SFO, these shares were held by corporations controlled
ITEE B A 100% %G 2 EBRE - directly or indirectly as to 100% by Commonwealth Bank of Australia.
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BB BH G ED)EXNVHE - RFE=DEIRTE
MARAREBROERETR  ZZRHHI.P. Morgan
Chase & Co. N 4B (Fiiaty ) BT ¢

w

Shareholders with notifiable interests (continued)
Notes: (continued)

3. According to the information disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, these shares were held by J.P. Morgan Chase & Co.
and corporations controlled by it (Note 4) in the respective capacity as detailed

below:
g E
Number of shares

e 9>

1 Capacity Long position Short position
BEm#EAA Beneficial owner 8,256,535 600,000
AL Investment manager 29,570,000 -

] AR Approved lending agent 84,126,309 -

4. RIB(EH RAERGIEXNVHE - RFE=DIRE 4. According to the information disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3

MZARRNEHEHEREETR - .. Morgan Securities
Ltd. & F).P. Morgan Chase & Co.35 % 98.95%1E 2§
SN T %A B Y9 ).P. Morgan Chase & Co. B
2 o B B 100% 12 B ©

ERRRZBFETEE
REBETER GBS EEEEEESHEEAR
AR D3R B AR ZBNSERFEERAR
AE-—HABRRZFN(THERIEBENE
RAEEBEERERS) R-_TTLF+ A
=t+—H  AERRET LA hAEER
RB¥6,600AETT  ZFERABKHN _FT—=
Fr—AZBER

REXS

([FEESE ) mEg(SE)BRETAR
(&8l FBRAEREB AT LHE -
AR & B A R % 2,500,000,0007C * U
BER 2R AER - BIEZ® - &8
RHETEA  USESRKERKEZE
E FEEFERTEAMLDE)IE14K
NS N A 38 %A 2 N E N A — R EH
NA]Z100% s ¢ iZU)I1E 14K EE QA
BB T 62% s - EHRERSEHEAR - I8
BEAEESFAEIE14RKEERF
S  E—IRR RS A RS X
N6 B ¥ 52 5 B R 2 R A o BRE
FREEEIFEER10.65%ERMNE
TAN)IE 1 REE QR (FEHSIENH
BRAFMES  Ht - ZMBEEAL
FIE B SN BN AN A B 2 BIER S -

of Part XV of the SFO, other than J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd. which was 98.95%
held by J.P. Morgan Chase & Co., all these corporations were controlled directly
or indirectly as to 100% by J.P. Morgan Chase & Co.

Specific Performance Obligations on Controlling Shareholder
According to certain loan agreements, CRH is required to remain as a
beneficial owner of at least 35% of the voting shares of the Company
or remain as a single largest shareholder (whether directly or indirectly
through its subsidiaries) of the Company. As at 31 December 2007,
the aggregate amount of the facilities subject to such obligation were
HK$6,600 million. Such facilities will expire before November 2012.

Connected Transactions

1. On 3 January 2007, China Resources Snow Breweries Limited (“CR
Snow”), a 51% owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
an agreement with all the holders of equity interest in B&l (&
B) BRETAR (“Blue Sword”) for the acquisition of the entire
equity interest in Blue Sword at a cash consideration of RMB2,500
million. Under the agreement, Blue Sword would undergo a
restructuring so that the assets of Blue Sword upon completion
would mainly consist of the 38% interest in 14 brewery companies
in Sichuan Province and a 100% interest in a brewery company in
Guizhou Province. The remaining 62% interest in the 14 Sichuan
brewery companies was owned by CR Snow. The acquisition
enabled the Group to consolidate its interest in the 14 Sichuan
brewery companies and to further enhance the operational
efficiency of, and the control of the Group in, these breweries. As
two of the vendors, who together had an approximately 10.65%
interest in Blue Sword, were also directors of the 14 Sichuan
brewery companies, which were subsidiaries of CR Snow, that part
of the acquisition attributable to these two connected persons
constituted a connected transaction of the Company.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

2.

On 14 September 2007, Ng Fung Hong Limited (“Ng Fung Hong”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
agreement with MMEEEELE (BR) KF (“Hangzhou
Commercial Assets”) for the acquisition of 19% equity interest
in MBS ABEEBER AR (“Hangzhou United Meat”) at a
cash consideration of RMB76,520,000. The principal activities of
Hangzhou United Meat and its subsidiaries are pigs slaughtering,
meat distribution, meat and food processing and the provision
of cold storage and refrigerated food trading services. Upon
completion of the acquisition, Hangzhou United Meat became a
subsidiary of the Company in which it has 65% equity interest.
Therefore, the acquisition provided Ng Fung Hong an opportunity
to gain further control in Hangzhou United Meat, expand its
business in Hangzhou and seek strategic synergy with nearby
operations such as Shanghai, amidst the growing economy of
China. It also strengthened Ng Fung Hong’s competitiveness
against local and overseas operators of food industry in the
Chinese Mainland. Hangzhou Commercial Assets is a connected
person of the Company by virtue of its being a shareholder of
a subsidiary of the Company and therefore, the acquisition of
19% equity interest in Hangzhou United Meat from Hangzhou
Commercial Assets constituted a connected transaction of the
Company.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

3.

During the year, the Group conducted certain transactions with
connected persons which constituted “continuing connected
transactions” under the Listing Rules. Details of those continuing
connected transactions which are subject to the reporting
requirements under Rule 14A.46 of the Listing Rules are
summarised as follows:

(@) Tank storage agreements and facilities management
agreements
On 1 January 2000, China Resources Petroleum Company
Limited (“CRPC”), which became a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company after being acquired in late 2000, entered
into a tank storage agreement with each of China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited (“CRH”), the controlling
shareholder of the Company, and Art Bill Investment
Limited (“ABIL”), a subsidiary of CRH, for the usage of
storage capacity at the Chai Wan and Tsing Yi oil depots,
respectively. As the oil depots were crucial to the operation
of CRPC, the tank storage agreements were entered for a
term of 21 years commencing on 1 January 2000. During the
year, CRPC ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company upon
completion of its disposal on 29 June 2007. The aggregate
storage fee payable by CRPC to CRH and ABIL, before the
disposal of CRPC, was HK$70,800,000 for the year ended 31
December 2007.

On 1 January 2000, each of CRH and ABIL entered into a
facilities management agreement with China Resources
Petrochems (Group) Company Limited (“CRPG”), which
became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company after
being acquired in late 2000, in respect of the provision
of management services by CRPG for the Chai Wan and
Tsing Yi oil depots, respectively. The facilities management
agreements also have a term of 21 years. During the year,
CRPG ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company upon
completion of its disposal on 29 June 2007. For the year
ended 31 December 2007, the aggregate management fee
payable by CRH and ABIL to CRPG, before its disposal, was
HK$9,996,000.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

(b)
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Facilities management agreement and godown management
agreement

On 28 June 2006, Yuen Fat Wharf & Godown Company
Limited (“Yuen Fat”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, renewed a facilities management agreement with
CRH, the controlling shareholder of the Company, for the
provision of management services by Yuen Fat on the port
premises and facilities developed on a site owned by CRH in
Sham Shui Po, Kowloon. Under the agreement, Yuen Fat had
paid CRH a monthly fee of HK$1,000,000 in consideration
for the right to keep, as the service fee payable by CRH to
Yuen Fat for that relevant month, all cargo handling fees,
service charges and other payments collected by Yuen Fat
at its own expenses from independent third parties. This
agreement was for a term of 3 years commencing on 1 July
2006.

On 28 June 2006, Yuen Fat also renewed a godown
management agreement with Dragon Rider Development
Limited (“DRDL”), a wholly owned subsidiary of CRH, for the
management, by Yuen Fat, of a godown owned by DRDL in
Sham Shui Po, Kowloon. Under the agreement, Yuen Fat had
paid DRDL a monthly fee of HK$2,000,000 in consideration
for the right to keep, as the service fee payable by DRDL to
Yuen Fat for that relevant month, all licence fees and other
payments collected by Yuen Fat at its own expenses from
independent third parties. This agreement has the same
term as the above facilities management agreement.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the aggregate receipt
of service fees payable by CRH and DRDL to Yuen Fat
amounted to HK$227,283,000 while the aggregate payment
of monthly fees by Yuen Fat to CRH and DRDL amounted to
HK$36,000,000.
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Connected Transactions (continued)
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Foodstuff agreements

On 3 June 2005, Ng Fung Hong, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into the foodstuff agreements
for a term ended on 31 December 2007 with each of the
connected persons below in relation to the sale and/or
purchase of foodstuff products with these parties. Under
the foodstuff agreements, Ng Fung Hong and each of
these connected persons agreed that in the event that
any member of the Ng Fung Hong group and any of these
connected persons or any of its associates entered into a
foodstuff transaction, such transaction would be conducted
on normal commercial terms. The prices paid or received
by any member of the Ng Fung Hong group to or from the
above parties or their associates would either be at market
prices or at prices no less favourable to the Ng Fung Hong
group than those available to or from independent third
parties. Details of these transactions for the year ended 31
December 2007 are summarised below.

EEmRMAELARR

BERET—HMEBAT49%

Shanghai Foodstuff
Import & Export Corp.

HREERAR DA
Ceroilfood Development
Company Limited

REIKEA AT

China National Fisheries Corp.

R IR R
49% shareholder of a
subsidiary of Ng Fung Hong

BERLT—HWNERR20%
R B A

an associate of a 20%
shareholder of a subsidiary
of Ng Fung Hong

BERETHEMEAR49%
EmmA R

49% shareholder of a
subsidiary of Ng Fung Hong

BERM 46,277,000
Purchase of foodstuff

BERM 65,723,000
Purchase of foodstuff

HERM 147,179,000
Sale of foodstuff

BERM Nil

Purchase of foodstuff

90 FHAIXHBMRAA China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report 2007 3



BERS @)

C)

Q)]

S A
RZZZRFAA=H ' ARAIH
>EMBAREBSE(SE) AR
ANEN([ZE ) AR AR &K
Ehk AR R BIE A AR ([EHE
RA) AR ZETLE+A
=T —BERMOSERE - BRIES
M EESSERERENRE
ik - MERMMEEEMKE
NEREHANREE(KERER
SN IR B AR B & B4h 4 m A
Wi - B S BE—BEER
FETT - EEGBEBRMEMKER
AIMEHEATEEEAKE AR
W BAR #S AT G ER - S
BEHBSEMNMBARME THERA
BUYE=FRDNERS - RNEBEEZ
TELE+ A=+ HIEFEE
TEBEATEENHBABER
W EES HIEAE31,0007T °

HEWHE

RZZEFTRFRA=A  ArH
HEEKERQABEBR QBRI LR
“ERLFT_A=T—HBEmY
HE W - FEHEAREERILE
ZREGHNES  ERERTEE
BEREMERE  BREET BE
RITEWE - REAEHZ A2
FEEFANRRER B FE - WAR
AR E AR HEREATEE
IR B AR (AEEBRSN) /T
HWREE - AEEOBR - REERK
R HHSATEER_TT L
FHZA=+—H - FHERTE
E{EKERRRALEEAKE
ARAEENES  EEEREAMEK
BRATHER  KBAKEME
THEN B = HPTRHEEER -

REBEE=-ZET+tF+=-A=+—H
IEFE  AEBEARERBAAE
EXfHEe  EBRERHEMAH
B RA H£EE55,446,0007T °

EREHE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Connected Transactions (continued)

(d)

Q)]

Textile agreement

On 3 June 2005, China Resources Textiles (Holdings)
Company Limited (“CRT”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into the textile agreement with China
Resources National Corporation (“CRNC”), the ultimate
holding company of the Company, for a term ended on 31
December 2007. Under the textile agreement, CRT and CRNC
agreed that in the event that any member of the CRT group
and any member of the CRNC group (other than the Group)
entered into a transaction of textile related merchandises,
such transaction would be conducted on normal commercial
terms. The prices received by any member of the CRT group
from any member of the CRNC group would be either at
market prices or at prices no less favourable to CRT or
its subsidiaries than those available from independent
third parties. For the year ended 31 December 2007, the
aggregate amount of sale of textile related merchandises to
the CRNC group amounted to HK$31,000.

Tenancy agreement

On 3 June 2005, the Company entered into the tenancy
agreement with CRNC, the ultimate holding company of
the Company, for a term ended on 31 December 2007. The
CRNC group is a conglomerate with significant property
investments including residential, commercial and industrial
premises in Hong Kong and the PRC. Under the tenancy
agreement, the Company and CRNC agreed that in the
event that any member of the Company entered into a
lease arrangement with any member of the CRNC group
(other than the Group), the terms of the lease would be
on normal commercial terms and the lease term would not
exceed 31 December 2007. The rent, management fees and
other charges set by any member of the CRNC group to any
member of the Group would be either at market prices or at
prices no less favourable to the Group than those available
from independent third parties.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the aggregate
amount of rental, management fees and other related
charges payable by the Group to the CRNC group was
HK$55,446,000.
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Connected Transactions (continued)
() Decoration agreement

On 3 June 2005, the Company entered into the decoration
agreement with Uconia Company Limited (“Uconia”), a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of CRNC, for a term ended on
31 December 2007. Under the decoration agreement, the
Company and Uconia agreed that in the event that any
member of the Company granted a contract to any member
of the Uconia group or any of its associates for the design,
decoration and furnishing of the Group’s offices, retail
outlets and investment properties, the services rendered
would be charged on normal commercial terms as described
in the decoration agreement. The prices charged by Uconia
or its subsidiaries or any of their associates to any member
of the Group would either be at market prices or at prices
no less favourable to the Group than those available from
independent third parties. For the year ended 31 December
2007, the aggregate amount charged by the Uconia group
or any of its associates totalled HK$21,212,000.

The directors engaged the auditors of the Company/subsidiary
to perform certain agreed procedures in respect of continuing
connected transactions of the Group. The procedures were
performed solely to assist the directors of the Company to
evaluate in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules
whether, the above continuing connected transactions:

(@ had received the approval of the directors of the Company;

(b) had been entered into in accordance with the terms of the
relevant agreements governing such transactions;

(© had been entered into in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group if the transactions involve provision of
goods or services by the Group; and

(d) had not exceeded the relevant cap amounts for the financial
year ended 31 December 2007.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

The auditors of the Company/subsidiary have reported their factual
findings on these procedures to the directors that the samples the
auditors selected were in agreement in respect of items (a) and (b)
above. In respect of item (c), the samples selected were, where
applicable, in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group. In
respect of item (d), the auditors compared the aggregate amount
for each type of connected transactions as set out in section 3(a)
to 3(f) above and reported that such aggregate amounts had
not exceeded the relevant cap amounts for the year ended 31
December 2007.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these transactions and confirmed that the continuing
connected transactions have been entered into:

(@ in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions, on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

(©) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Subsidiaries and Associates
Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries and associates as at 31
December 2007 are set out on pages 177 to 185.

Transactions in Securities of the Company and Subsidiaries
Details of the share options issued or granted during the year by the
Company are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its directors, as at the date of this report, there
is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the respective percentage of the aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers and the aggregate
turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers was less than
30% of the Group’s total value of purchases and total turnover.

Auditors

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

On behalf of the Board
CHEN SHULIN
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2008
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Resources Enterprise, Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 97 to 185,
which comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at
31 December 2007, and the consolidated profit and loss account, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of principal
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to
the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 141 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2007 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2008
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

HE-—FTT+F+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2007

—EEtF ZETREF
2007 2006
B E BEEHET B EET
Notes HKS million HK$ million
(E7))
(Restated)
BEKSE £k Continuing operations
LR Turnover 6 51,513 40,337
SHE A Cost of sales (38,950) (30,401)
EH Gross profit 12,563 9,936
H AN Other income 7 1,668 1,237
HERDHER Selling and distribution expenses (8,033) (6,238)
—RITEUE R General and administrative expenses (2,419) (2,021)
BAFE R AR Finance costs 8 (480) (386)
JE(RERE N A 3E4E/FEE  Share of net results of associates 353 333
BRA% A AR A Profit before taxation 3,652 2,861
HIE Taxation 13 (764) (562)
FRERE 7T Profit for the year from continuing
RE Z i A operations 9 2,888 2,299
BRI 2 2T Discontinued operation
BRIERE 2 EB Profit for the year from discontinued
ZARFE A operation 9,15 2,582 1,026
NEE @A Profit for the year 5,470 3,325
DEER Attributable to:
PiN/N] iR Shareholders of the Company 4,961 2,776
DR R R Minority interests 509 549
5,470 3,325
BREF Earnings per share 16
BEGERERIELZ  From continuing and discontinued operations
ZETE
AR Basic HKS2.09 HK$1.19
By Diluted HKS2.07 HK$1.17
FEISE 2 5T From continuing operations
BN Basic HKS1.00 HK$0.76
e Diluted HKSo.99 HK$0.75
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mERERER
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

R-_ZFEZF{+=-H=+—H At 31 December 2007

2007 2006
M BYEET BERET
Notes HKS million HK$ million
FEREBEE Non-current assets
& E B E Fixed assets
— B — Investment properties 17 7,299 5,899
—EHEEHEEML - Interests in leasehold land held
TR for own use under operating leases 17 2,488 1,950
—H b5 - #33 — Other property, plant and equipment
P& 17 20,089 15,191
S Goodwill 18 6,133 3,481
HivEF EE Other intangible assets 19 81 113
N NI X Interests in associates 21 1,447 1,153
AERE Available for sale investments 22 46 53
TR FIA Prepayments 23 205 467
EETIHEE Deferred taxation assets 29 119 123
37,907 28,430
REEE Current assets
T8 Stocks 24 9,080 6,725
B 5 Kk E A FEYRIE Trade and other receivables 25 5,241 5,366
TESHMIA Derivative financial instruments 26 - 163
Al R B R IE Taxation recoverable 20 14
BEPIRITET Pledged bank deposits 38 -
B MIRITHETF Cash and bank balances 8,405 7,056
22,784 19,324
REEME Current liabilities
B 5 & HAn IR Trade and other payables 27 (16,565) (12,554)
MTESHMIA Derivative financial instruments 26 (7] (167)
REIER Short term loans 28a (4,944) (4,997)
i ANESE] Taxation payable (268) (208)
(21,781) (17,926)
MREBEERE Net current assets 1,003 1,398
BEEBRBEE Total assets less current liabilities 38,910 29,828
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
REBE Long term liabilities 28b (7,503) (3,840)
EIEFIEE & Deferred taxation liabilities 29 (1,243) (1,023)
30,164 24,965
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

BRAR Capital and reserves
R A Share capital 30 2,385 2,358
& Reserves 31 20,486 16,783

ARARRREEER Equity attributable to shareholders

of the Company 22,871 19,141
DERRERE Minority interests 7,293 5,824
BrES Total equity 30,164 24,965
BRI Chen Shulin B # Kwong Man Him
ZEF Director ZEF Director
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BALANCE SHEET

R-_ZFEZF{+=-H=+—H At 31 December 2007

2007 2006
(i BY¥EET BERET
Notes HKS million HK$ million
FREBEE Non-current assets
EE&E Fixed assets
—REYHE — Investment properties 17 51 51
—H My - s — Other property, plant and equipment
B 17 5 5
RIS £ Interests in subsidiaries 20 15,317 16,684
15,373 16,740
REBEE Current assets
& 5 K& H M e R Trade and other receivables 25 1,758 1,079
Re KBTS Cash and bank balances 1,579 622
3,337 1,701
REEE Current liabilities
B 5 R EAMFERFRIE Trade and other payables 27 (125) (79
FERTFRIR Taxation payable ) @)
(128) 72)
REEEFE Net current assets 3,209 1,629
BEERRBEME Total assets less current liabilities 18,582 18,369
FRBEMS Non-current liabilities
REFIABE Deferred taxation liabilities 29 @®) ®
18,574 18,361
BRAR #E Capital and reserves
A& A Share capital 30 2,385 2,358
Ei= Reserves 31 16,189 16,003
18,574 18,361

BR#E# Chen Shulin
& % Director
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HE-—FTT+F+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2007

—ETLF ZEERE
2007 2006
i BERET BEBEST
Notes HKS million HK$ million
RETH2HERE Cash flows from operating activities
REmS R Cash generated from operations 32A 5,680 5,388
EEBHEH Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (164) (208)
B P BRI SH Chinese Mainland income tax paid (457) (332)
SBEINKIERS Overseas profit tax paid (@ @
RBEBFERH Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded - 7
REPBEAMATEH Chinese Mainland income tax refunded 3 2
REFEZ2HERAESE Net cash from operating activities 5,061 4,855
RETBZEERE Cash flows from investing activities
HEBETFEERSHIE  Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 116 184
HEREREMEIIE Proceeds from disposal of available for
sale investments 3 1
B A RIS Dividends received from associates 67 206
BERAIERERE Dividends received from available
for sale investments 4 7
RE S Interest received 295 269
BABTEE Purchase of fixed assets (6,142) (3,127)
EfHeRe Prepayment for rental deposits (36) (57)
BEFEE RN Prepayments on purchase of interests in

EERA L leasehold land held for own use under

ez 2 R operating leases - (56)
RITFRIE AR ERRTT Bank deposits pledged for short term

i bank loans 38) _
HEKB AR, 5 Disposal of subsidiaries/business (net of

(RREEZRE K cash and cash equivalent disposed of)

ReFE) 32B 3,036 1,970
HER N T TS IE Proceeds from disposal of associates 16 8
W B A ], %75 Acquisition of subsidiaries/business

CRRYEEFRE2BR e (net of cash and cash equivalents

kBR&EFE) acquired) 32C (984) (583)
R E A AR Purchase of additional interests

in subsidiaries (2,400) (17)
ARREES 2 ERE Net cash used in investing activities (6,063) (1,295)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

“EERLF ZTTRF
2007 2006
BYEET BEBEST
HKS million HK$ million
RETBZHERE Cash flows from financing activities
EATRE Dividends paid (2,401) (3,265)
BB AR EMRE Dividends paid to minority
IR shareholders of subsidiaries (48) (156)
BENRERNER Finance lease charges paid - )
ERNFIR Interest paid (478) (786)
BITEBIRFTIS AR FR  Net proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 250 1,107
BERITREMEEMS Proceeds from bank and other borrowings
FNIE 15,254 10,110
ERRITREMEE Repayment of bank and other borrowings (11,148) (11,245)
BMERENTZ Capital elements of finance lease
B rental payment (1) )
PEBERTE Contribution from minority shareholders 772 633
BMEFEEL Net cash from/(used in) financing activities
(BR)zERE 2,200 (3,610)
FHERESLSEEM  Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents 1,198 50
ERFEZZE Effect on foreign exchange rate changes 146 80
R—A—BZBEE2 Kk Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
ReFE 7,056 6,926
Rt+tZA=+—-HZ Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December
HeRBESEE 8,400 7,056
ReRReEELER Analysis of the balances of cash and
2 cash equivalents
WL RBTHEE Cash and bank balances 8,405 7,056
RITEX Bank overdrafts (5) _
8,400 7,056
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-—FTT+F+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2007

2%
By 3 ags
FARRELRS Minority Total
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company interests equity
LR
RRkEE
Employee
RE  RAHEE FERE shaebased HAHE  EXRE  REE
Share Share  Valuation compensation Hedge  Exchange Retained fit
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
BERET AYBET AYEER AWEET AMEEn A%EET ABRER A¥AEn BEBEn A%EER
HKS million ~ HKS milon ~ HKS millon ~ HKS million ~ HKS million ~ HKS milion ~ HKS million ~ HKS million ~ HKS million ~ HK$ million
REZZHE—A—H At1anuary 2007 2,358 12,606 6 168 1) 506 3,510 19,141 5,824 2,965
ExaE Exchange rate adjustments - - - - - 899 - 899 395 1,204
EEBSNREE  Share of reserves in associates - - 3 - - 2 12 17 - 17
VEELRT Surplus on revaluation of properties - - 3 . - - . ] _ ]
WATEARIE  Recognition of changes in fair value
DMEES of derivative financial instruments - - - - 11 - - 1 - 1
BEEAAESR,  Netincome recognised directly in equity
LON: - - 6 - 1 901 12 930 395 1325
REETEREMED Release due to disposal of available for
sale investments - - @) - - - - () - )
REENBEAAMEL Release due to disposal of subsidiaries - - - - (@) ® - ®) - ®)
RtER=RAMEL Release due to disposal of associates = - - - - @ - ) - )
RER(E R Profit attributable to shareholders - - - - - - 4,961 4,961 509 5,470
AEEREAUNEE Total recognised income and expenses
for the year - - 4 - 9 801 4,973 5,877 904 6,781
RaEEARG Shares issued at premium 7 24 - - = = = 21 . 21
R ER Shares issue expenses - () = - = - - ) _ (1)
e lif =N Acquisition of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 275 275
BENEATES  Purchase of additional interest in
subsidiaries - - - - = = = = (446) (446)
) Dividends - - - - - - o) (o) @8) (a9
DYRFTE Contribution from minority shareholders - - - - - - - - 784 784
EEERERH Employee share option benefits - - - 4 - - - 4 - 4
77 3 f § 9 1 2572 3730 1469 5199
RIEELE At 31 December 2007
+-A=1+-H 2,385 12,829 10 172 ) 1,397 6,082 2,871 7,293 30,164
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freRRESEBE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

2%
RRkz  4Ri
ARARRELESR Minority Total
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company interests equity
EE8kft
Gl
Employee  RiER
RE  ROEE HERE share-based e YRR EARE REER
Share Share  Valuation compensation ~ Warrant Hedge  Exchange  Retained Rt
capital ~ premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve reserve profits Total
#EEEL AYEET HBREn AYEET BHREn AYREr BHpEn AYEET A¥EER AYEST A¥EER
HKS million  HKS million  HKS million  HK$ million  HKS million  HK$ million  HKS million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HKS million  HK$ million
RZEFNE-A—H At1anuary 2006 2,013 11,624 4 145 168 3 188 3,831 18196 L7 22963
ERFE Exchange rate adjustments - - - - - - 363 - 363 126 489
EREALEERE Fair value adjustment on
available for sale investments = - 2 - - - - - 2 - 2
BETE4RIA  Recognition of changes in
MEEEY fair value on derivative
financial instruments - - - - - (14) - - (14) - (12)
ERRTAEEL  Netincome/(expense)
WA/(ZH)%E  recognised directly in equity - - 2 - - (1g) 363 - 351 126 477
RESF4ESHTIE  Release upon settlement of
M derivative financial
instruments - - - - - %) - - ) - ¥)
RiENBARA Release due to disposal of
i subsidiaries - - - - - - (45) - 1) - 45)
REE(E R Profit attributable to
shareholders = = = = = = = 2,776 2,776 549 3,325
AEEREANE  Total recognised income and
@z expenses for the year - - 2 - - (16) 318 2,776 3,080 675 3,755
RRBEIRA Shares issued at premium 125 983 - - - - - - 1,108 - 1,108
ERAER Shares issLie expenses - 6) - - = = - - A . (0
WENE AR Acquisition of subsidiaries - - - = = = = = = 53 53
EEMEATES  Purchase of additional interest
in subsidiaries = = = = = - - - - © ©
HENBAF Disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - (119) (1)
REBEASBIA  Release upon repayment of
K& compound financial
instruments - - - - (168) - - 168 - - -
k& Dividends - - - - - - - (3,265) (3,265 (156) (3,421
SRR Contribution from minority
shareholders - - - - - - - - - 633 633
EERRERN Employee share option benefits - - = 3 - - - _ 23 _ 3
125 982 2 23 (168) (16) 318 (321) 945 1,077 2,022
RoZEE At 31 December 2006
tZA=1-H 2358 12,606 6 168 - 1) 506 3,510 19,141 582 24,965
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General

Ultimate holding company

The Company is a public company incorporated in Hong Kong and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The directors regard the ultimate holding
company as at 31 December 2007 to be China Resources National
Corporation (“CRNC”), a company established in the Chinese
Mainland. The address of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company is disclosed in the annual report.

The Group is principally engaged in retail, beverage, food
processing and distribution, textile and property investment
businesses. The principal activities of the Company are property
investment and investment holding, and the activities of its
principal subsidiaries and associates are shown on pages 177 to
185.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. Save as specified in the
principal accounting policies as set out in note 2, the financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention.

In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Adoption of new and revised accounting standard, amendment
and interpretations

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants has issued
a number of new and revised Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKAS”) and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”)
that are effective or available for early adoption for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2007. In the current year, the Group has
adopted the following standard, amendment and interpretations,
which are relevant to the Group’s operations for the financial year
ended 31 December 2007.

HKAS 1 (Amendment)
HKFRS 7
HKFRS Interpretation 7

Capital Disclosures

Financial Instruments: Disclosures
Applying the Restatement Approach
under HKAS 29 “Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies”

HKFRS Interpretation 8 Scope of HKFRS 2
Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives

Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment

HKFRS Interpretation 9

HKFRS Interpretation 10
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General (continued)

Adoption of new and revised accounting standard, amendment
and interpretations (continued)

The adoption of the above standard, amendment and
interpretations had no material effects on the Group’s and the
Company’s results and financial position and did not result
in substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies. No
prior year adjustment has been made. However, as a result of
the adoption of HKFRS 7 and HKAS 1 (Amendment), certain
information presented in prior year under the requirements
of HKAS 32 has been removed and the relevant comparative
information based on the requirements of HKAS 1 (Amendment)
and HKFRS 7 has been presented for the first time in the current
year.

Accounting standards, amendment and interpretations that are not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendment or interpretations that have been issued
but are not yet effective.

HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

Presentation of Financial Statements

Borrowing Costs

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

Share-based Payment — Vesting
Conditions and Cancellation

Business Combinations

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 8
HKFRS Interpretation 11

Operating Segments
HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share
Transactions

HKFRS Interpretation 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HKFRS Interpretation 13~ Customer Loyalty Programmes

HKFRS Interpretation 14  HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of these standards, amendment or interpretations will have no
material impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial
position.

Principal Accounting Policies

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include the
financial statements of the Company and of all its direct and
indirect subsidiaries and also incorporate the Group’s interests
in associates on the basis set out in note 2C below. The results
of subsidiaries and associates acquired or disposed of during
the year are included from the effective date of acquisition or
up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. All material
intra-group transactions and balances have been eliminated on
consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an enterprise in which the Company, directly
or indirectly, holds more than half of the issued share capital
or controls more than half of the voting power, or where the
Company controls the composition of its board of directors or
equivalent governing body. In the Company’s balance sheet,
investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is an enterprise, not being a subsidiary nor a jointly
controlled entity, over which the Group is in a position to exercise
significant influence through participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee. The results and assets
and liabilities of associates are incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried
in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the
associates, less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in that associate, the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for
and a liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of that associate. In the consolidated balance sheet,
interests in associates are stated at the Group’s share of net assets
of the associates plus goodwill arising on acquisitions taking into
effect the policy on goodwill in note 2D.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the
cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
acquired subsidiary/ associate at the date of acquisition. Goodwill
is tested for impairment at the reporting date and whenever
there is an indication that the cash generating unit to which the
goodwill relates may be impaired. Such goodwill is carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. An impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account
and is not reversed in a subsequent period. On subsequent
disposal of a subsidiary or an associate, the attributable amount
of goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal.

##MAIZAMRA T China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report 2007 F3§

107



108

MRS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o i

SEBR @)
EmEE)
KRBT —F— A —HZaETREME
A R B B TR A —TE R R IR A
BE BTERASEEEZERERN
R EERBHOEBRERES R 2T
SEABMNEENERESSBRRTE

o

MR -_TF—F—H—HIZEREN T
TRF—A—RZAETRBMELNE
AMemE - AREER—_FTAF—HA—
BiEfF L #i - MZAEREIREEE S
REATRBRZABES R REEE
BB AT R IR R E R ETTRUE RIS

U B BT 8 2 R Sl i R B PTEE AR 2 R 3T
BEAEERATKEENB AR, B QR
HTAEEEE BERIRBENEE
Bz AR BEMGERES D RERAZ
2E - B AR 2 KB EANRIIALS
BRRER - FEEAKEEGBERF
RIBABRIKE R 2 £ER - B2 Q7]
ZWEBITER IR AGTE -

EMEEREE
AEENEREERTREEHEENE
Mma 8l R RARBEFABSENS
BMEE] [AIERE | [ERREWRHK
EJ&H%ﬁzﬁﬁmﬁéJ TREES
DRIBARBEAAESENSHEE IR
MR EEFABENSBRAEAND
cREE(RLEREE) ] 2BEREE
BN

AIEEF A B2 A E
REEAABENEHEETY
ARBEETEE IHAS
SHEBERARNSMEE RN
EREERERA £ BEF AR
LREEMEER - N ERERE
EMEAEABRGEER RO
BEAAEBZNEREENDRAR
EEEEE AR B2
AIEEEE RS BasRT
R o

L\

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January 2001 continues
to be recognised as a deduction from equity and should not be
recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account when
the Group disposes of all or part of the business to which that
goodwill relates or when a cash-generating unit to which the
goodwill relates becomes impaired.

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on acquisitions on or
after 1 January 2001 and prior to 1 January 2005, the Group has
discontinued amortisation from 1 January 2005 onwards, and
such goodwill is tested for impairment at the reporting date, and
whenever there is an indication that the cash generating unit to
which the goodwill relates may be impaired.

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary
or an associate represents the excess of the Group’s interest in
the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquired subsidiary/associate at the date of
acquisition over the cost of acquisition. Discount on acquisition
of a subsidiary is recognised immediately in the consolidated
profit and loss account. A discount on acquisition arising on
an acquisition of an associate is included as income in the
determination of the Groups’ share of results of associate in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

Financial assets and liabilities

The Group’s financial assets are classified as “financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss”, “available-for-sale investments”,
“loans and receivables” and “held-to-maturity Investments”
dependent on the purpose for which the assets are acquired.
Financial liabilities are classified as “financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss” and financial liabilities other than
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (other
financial liabilities). Details of classifications and measurements
are as follows:

(@  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
initially measured at fair value and have two sub-categories:
financial assets held for trading and those designated at
fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition. At
each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised
directly in the profit and loss account in the period in which
they arise.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

b)

©

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market which are initially measured at fair value.
At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate. Objective evidence of impairment includes significant
financial difficulty of the debtors, the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, and observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when
an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the Group’s management has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity
investments are initially recognised in the balance sheet
at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are
stated in the balance sheet at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

©

@

Held-to-maturity investments (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss
account when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate
computed on initial recognition.

Objective evidence of impairment includes default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments and
observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with the operations of the investment.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through the profit and
loss account. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Available for sale investments

Available for sale investments are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in non-current assets
unless management intends to dispose of the investment
within twelve months from the balance sheet date.

The Group holds certain investments in equity securities,
that do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be measured reliably.
These available for sale investments are stated at cost
less impairment losses. Apart from this, available for sale
investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs. At each balance sheet date the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised
directly in equity, until the financial asset is disposed of or
is determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in equity is removed from
equity and recognised in the profit and loss account.

An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss
account when there is objective evidence that the equity
investment is impaired.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

@

(e)
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(8

Available for sale investments (continued)

Objective evidence of impairment includes significant
financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty and
observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with the operations of the investment.

The amount of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the equity
investment and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses will not
reverse in subsequent periods. Any subsequent increase
in the fair value of such equity investments is recognised
directly in equity.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
initially measured at fair value. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised directly in the profit and
loss account in the period in which they arise.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets
are transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity is
recognised in the profit and loss account.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in the profit and loss account.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Fixed Assets

@

®)

©

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
in respect of which construction work has been completed
and which are held for long term rental and/or for capital
appreciation. Such properties are carried in the balance
sheet at their fair value. Changes in fair value of investment
properties are recognised directly in the profit and loss
account in the period in which they arise.

Construction in progress

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of
construction for production, rent or administrative purposes
or for purposes not yet determined, are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes all
construction expenditure, professional fees, borrowing costs
capitalised and other relevant expenses directly attributable
to such projects.

No provision for depreciation is made on construction
in progress until such time when construction work is
complete and the costs of construction are transferred to
the appropriate category of fixed assets when available for
use.

Other property, plant and equipment

Fixed assets other than investment properties and
construction in progress are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Fixed Assets (continued)

©

@

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of other fixed assets is provided to write off
the cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account their estimated residual values,
using the straight line method. The residual values and
useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
each balance sheet date. The estimated useful lives are as
follows:

= Interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease term

= Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and

their estimated useful lives, being 20 to 50 years
= Leasehold improvements 3 to 10 years or over
the unexpired term of
lease, whichever is shorter
= Vessels 5 to 15 years
10 years
5 to 25 years
3 to 10 years
3 to 8 years

- Cold storage facilities

= Plant and machinery

- Furniture and equipment
= Motor vehicles

The gain or loss on the disposal or retirement of an item
of other property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in the profit and loss
account.

Leased assets

()  Assets acquired under finance leases
Assets acquired pursuant to finance leases that
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards incident to ownership are classified as being
held under finance leases and are accounted for as
if purchased whereby an amount equivalent to cost
is recorded as fixed assets and as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided in accordance
with the Group’s depreciation policy. Payments to the
lessor are treated as consisting of capital and interest
elements. The interest element is charged to the profit
and loss account.
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= FESTBR@® 2. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
E EEEE @) F Fixed Assets (continued)
(T) HEZE#) (d) Leased assets (continued)
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(i)  Operating lease charges
All leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.

Rental income or expense arising from operating
leases (net of any benefits received and receivable
as an incentive to enter into an operating lease)
is recognised in the profit and loss account on a
straight line basis over the periods of the respective
leases except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of the user’s
benefit.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term except where the property is
classified as an investment property.

Impairment of fixed assets

At each balance sheet date, both internal and external
sources of information are considered to assess whether
there is any indication that fixed assets other than
investment properties are impaired. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated
and where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to
reduce the asset to its recoverable amount. Such impairment
losses are recognised in the profit and loss account.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the assets is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount. Such reversal of
impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to the profit and loss account in the year
in which the reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Other intangible assets

On initial recognition, other intangible assets acquired separately
and from business combinations are recognised at cost and at fair
value respectively. After initial recognition, other intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less subsequent
accumulated impairment losses. Other intangible assets with finite
useful lives are stated at cost and are amortised on the straight
line method over their useful lives with amortisation commences
when the asset is available for use. The estimated useful lives of
other intangible assets with definite useful lives are as follows:

Brand names
Patent royalty

10 to 20 years
50 years

These intangible assets are assessed for impairment at each
balance sheet date by comparing their carrying amounts with
their recoverable amounts. Where indication of impairment exists,
an impairment loss is charged to profit and loss to reduce the
assets to its recoverable amount. Where an impairment loss
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the assets is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount.
Such reversal of impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the balance sheet
liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the financial statements, with limited exceptions. Deferred
taxation assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred taxation
is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled.

Stock of properties

Stock of properties represents properties held for sale which is
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable
value is determined by reference to management estimates based
on prevailing market conditions.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Other stocks

Other stocks which comprise raw materials, consumables and
packing materials, work-in-progress and finished goods are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods comprise direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
production overheads.

Cost is determined on the weighted average method or in the
case of retail business, cost is calculated on the first-in first-out
basis.

Net realisable value is determined as the estimated net selling
price less all further costs of production and the related costs of
marketing, selling and distribution.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value at
each balance sheet date and are deemed as held-for-trading
financial assets/liabilities, unless they are designated and qualified
as effective hedging instruments. The Group has entered into two
types of hedge relationships, including fair value hedges and cash
flow hedges.

(@  Fair value hedges
Hedges are classified as fair value hedges when hedges are
made to hedge against exposure to changes in fair value
of a recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm
commitment.

For fair value hedges that qualifying for hedge accounting,
changes in the fair values of hedging instruments and
hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognised
in the profit and loss in the periods in which fair value
changes arise.

#MAIZARAT China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report 2007 #3§



%

it E @)

TESMT AR @)

(2) BEREBHT
SRENPIR SN E Z F BRI L
ZEAGHHEARSREET 25
HHHARACHEREEKABEX
BEHRBRIBET IR B R
FrEEBR M E ©

RS ERTKAE RS RER A
ZREREEHAME - BEHRITE
ZARBELBREBMEE ZIB5
BB ELER/ER - WK
HHIEB ARV ERNERERAR
Ko MHEEPREHEEREZH
RER D BNRF FE R 2 R SR ©

AREHERIFEHMEELIFE
BMABZBARZHMME - 186
Z I8z B R PR - WHIEZIR
BESRBZMIRASEMER
=0

AFEERRBE P ST RETTEH WS
BRARKAFEENSREE BENTE
TARAREEZBMES 2(EMEES
BEERBABER -

Wy SRR

WEDRE R REZ A BER
B EE-REEBEDIREE R ERS
P RE M O R IR (FORR AT ) ©

HEERN R REHRRGERER  FE
WARELR RS RIER

BB AR B A TE U ER AT R 0 AR 3R A e
;EEW‘.T‘—'LAEEE/L\ ©

2.

K

MG
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedging (continued)

(b) Cash flow hedges
Hedges are classified as cash flow hedges when hedges are
made to hedge against exposure to variability in cash flows
that are attributable to a particular risk associated with a
recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast
transaction.

For cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting,
the effective portion of the gains or losses arising on the
changes in fair value of hedging instruments is initially
recognised in equity and transferred to the profit and loss
account when the hedged item affects the profit and loss
account. The ineffective portion is recognised immediately in
the profit and loss account.

For the hedge of a forecast transaction that subsequently
results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-
financial liability, the associated gains or losses are removed
from equity and included in the initial cost or other carrying
amount of the asset or liability.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
derivatives that either do not qualify for hedge accounting or are
classified as held-for-trading financial assets/liabilities are taken
directly to the profit and loss account.

Recognition of revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods and services provided in the normal course of business and
net of discounts.

Sales are recognised upon delivery of goods and provision of
services; and interest income is recognised in the profit and loss

account as it accrues.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in consolidated profit
and loss account.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are accounted for on the accrual basis and
charged to the profit and loss account in the year incurred,
except for costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
that assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale.

Fees paid for the arrangement of syndicated loan facilities and
debt securities are deferred, and are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Foreign exchange

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in the
profit and loss account in the period in which they arise, except
for exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms
part of the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation, in which
case, such exchange differences are recognised in equity in the
consolidated financial statements. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in equity.
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MG
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign exchange (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Company (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are classified as equity and transferred to the Group’s
exchange reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised in
the consolidated profit and loss account in the period which the
foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or
after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation before
1 January 2005 is treated as non-monetary foreign currency items
of the acquirer and reported using the historical cost prevailing at
the date of acquisition.

Share-based payment

The Group has granted share options to certain employees and
other participants, for their services rendered, to subscribe for
shares of the Company in accordance with the Company’s share
option scheme. The fair value of services received is determined
by reference to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity (employee share-
based compensation reserve).
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Critical Accounting Estimates

Investment properties

The fair values of investment properties are determined annually
by independent valuer on market value for existing use basis or
calculated on the net rental income and allowing for reversionary
income potential.

In making the judgement, considerations have been given to
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing
at the balance sheet date and appropriate capitalisation rates of
the net rental income. These estimates are regularly compared to
actual market data and transactions entered into by the Group.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
Note 2D. Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amounts of cash-generating units to
which goodwill has been allocated. The recoverable amounts have
been determined either based on value-in-use calculations or the
cash-generating units’ fair value less costs to sell. Details of the
calculation are disclosed in Note 18.

Deferred taxation assets

As at 31 December 2007, a deferred tax asset of HK$28 million
(2006: HK$54 million) in relation to unused tax losses has
been recognised in the Group’s balance sheet. The recognition
of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
future assessable profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In cases where the actual future assessable
profits generated are less than expected, a material reversal of
deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in the
profit and loss account in the period such a reversal takes places.

Financial Risk Management Objective and Policies

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and currency risk. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2007, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated balance sheet.
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MG
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial Risk Management Objective and Policies
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable on trade and other
receivables, amounts due from associates, bank balances and
derivative financial instruments entered into.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk on trade
and other receivables as its customer bases are widely spread
across diverse industries and geographical locations. For its retail
businesses and some transactions in its beverage businesses,
sales of products are made in cash. The Group has policies in
place to ensure that open account customers are financially viable
and with an appropriate credit history. To minimise its credit risk
exposure, credit evaluations are performed for the determination
and approval of credit limits granted and other monitoring
procedures are implemented to ensure that follow-up actions are
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, regular reviews on
aging and recoverability are performed to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

In respect of bank deposits and transactions involving derivative
financial instruments, the Group has procedures and policies in
place to ensure they are made to counterparties with acceptable
credit quality.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Company as set
out in note 35, the Group does not provide any other guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash
and the availability of adequate committed credit facilities to
fund capital, prospective investment opportunities, debt servicing
obligations and dividend payments. Management also closely
monitors the Group’s rolling forecast and actual cash flows and
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Other than short term loans, long term liabilities and derivative
financial instruments, all other financial liabilities of the Group are
non-interest bearing. The following table details the remaining
contractual maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
interest bearing financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay. For derivative instruments settled on a net basis,
undiscounted net cash (inflow)/outflow is presented. Whereas they
require gross settlement, the undiscounted gross (inflow)/outflow is
presented.
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2007
Fixed rate borrowings
Other loans

Variable rate borrowings
Trust receipts and overdrafts
Bank loans

Finance lease

Derivatives - net settlement
Interest rate swaps

2006
Fixed rate borrowings
Other loans

Variable rate borrowings
Finance lease
Bank loans

Derivatives - net settlement
Interest rate swaps

Oil future contracts - inflow
Ol future contracts - outflow

Derivatives - gross settlement

Foreign currency forward contracts

- inflow
- outflow

(Gl
Effective
Interest
rate

%

5.64
4.92
10.53

11.48
415

4. Financial Risk Management Objective and Policies
(continued)

B Liquidity risk (continued)

BB-Fa RBMEE EATARER

HRWE HREF ReRELE

More than More than Total
—ER 1 year but 2 year but BBREE contractual REE
Within 1 less than less than More than undiscounted Carrying
year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flow amount
REBER RYEET EYEET RYEEER EYEET REBER
HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million
17 37 66 3 151 151
29 = = = 29 28
5,401 899 7,223 4 13,527 12,267
2 - - - 2 1
5432 899 7:223 4 13,558 12,296
5,449 936 7,289 35 13,709 12,447
4 - - - 4 4
13 35 82 = 130 130
3 1 - - 4 3
5353 126 3,965 4 9,448 8,704
5,356 127 3965 4 9452 8,707
5,369 162 4,047 4 9,582 8837
2 = = = 22 16
(161) - - - (161) (161)
151 - - - 151 151
12 - - - 12 6
(1,505) - - - (1,505) (1,505)
1,503 - - - 1,503 1,503
@) = = = () @)
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MRS MR
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial Risk Management Objective and Policies
(continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk mainly from its long
term and short term borrowings. Borrowings at fixed and floating
interest rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk and
cash flow interest rate risk respectively. To cover interest rate
risk, the Group maintains the loan portfolio in a preferred fixed/
floating interest rate mix and review regularly. To avoid undue
concentration of risk, the Group entered into interest rate swaps
to mitigate current and future corporate profitability from interest
rate volatility.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and non-derivative
instruments at the balance sheet date. For floating rate liabilities,
the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liabaility
outstanding at the balance sheet date was outstanding for the
whole year.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year
ended 31 December 2007 would decrease/increase by HK$122
million (2006: decrease/increase by HK$88 million).

This analysis is prepared by using certain assumptions on a
hypothetical situation. In reality, market interest rates would not
change in isolation. In management’s opinion, the analysis is used
for reference purpose and should not be considered a projection
of the future profits or losses.

Currency risk
Some subsidiaries of the Group are operating outside Hong Kong
and have their local currencies as their functional currencies.

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency sales
and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
Approximately 6.26% of the Group’s sales are demoninated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the group entity
making the sale, whilst almost 97% of costs are denominated in
the group entity’s respective functional currencies.

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the balance
sheet date to currency risk arising from recognised assets or
liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.
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D

Financial Risk Management Objective and Policies
(continued)

Currency risk (continued)

—EELF —EERF
2007 2006
BE a8fE =3 =
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BETET BYHERT AEET AB¥EERT
HKS million HKS million HK$ million HK$ million
165 34 183 106
1,513 1,670 3,733 1,367
74 156 39

TRAWEELARE TR Es%H A EE

VRE o (EBMBERFET - BILHE
THERZFHTIEEEANBZE + E

TORBIELBRENN - )X EHEED
TEBBENINETENERKIRR - FIER
FEEEE - ARBRINE E RN 5%BEE) o
ETRF - EBRREBENAREAE
5% @ m A R EA R K IR o BEK R
AR E5% - S R B a4
HEERRNTE -

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase or decrease in the Hong Kong dollars against Renminbi.
(Under the linked exchange rate system, the financial impact on
exchange difference between Hong Kong dollar and US dollar
will be immaterial and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been
prepared.) The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at year end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates.
A positive number below indicates an increase in profit and other
equity where the Hong Kong dollars strengthens 5% against
Renminbi. For a 5% weakening of the Hong Kong dollars against
Renminbi, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
profit and other equity.

HHBRF,(BHR) HRESEMAR
RAREER B WD HIR

Effect on profit/(loss) after
tax and retained profits

Effect on other
components of equity

—EBEtF —EFEETRE ZBBEF —ETIERHF

2007 2006 2007 2006

BEEAErT A¥agx BY¥EEx B¥asErx

HKS million HK$ million HKS million HK$ million

AR Renminbi (28) ) - -
It 55 #T TH AR 35 K B E M R ER 1B S i i This analysis is prepared by using certain assumptions on a

7 RERBERT - MEERTEEBFN
# BEERR/UITRARESE  TE
AR VER A& M BT HR AV TER)

hypothetical situation. In reality, market exchange rates would not
change in isolation. In management’s opinion, the analysis is used
for reference purpose and should not be considered a projection
of the future profits or losses.

#MAIZARAT China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report 2007 #3§



EXEBER
AEBEETEAEENEN  EERRE
BABREERERSE R EBEREE
m,uﬁééﬂﬁﬁk RENBEFEHOER - A
& B RRA A —FELER -

AEENEAGBREREER(BRENE28
ﬁﬁi&%’éﬁ’]fﬁ%f) CHERRSEEY K

NEEERAARGEGS(BREAER
BERAWBEOSETEAL  BEIRE
&)

AEBEREEMERELNGRE - AKE
ZREARARZHEEANBBRR - I
BBAAE - BT - UEEDLRT
EEXBEREEH SN - HEBEXR
EEfELTE -

MRS MR
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in note 28, cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to equity holders of the Company,
comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings as
disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
regularly. The Group considers the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital, and will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues as well as the raise of bank borrowings or the redemption
of existing debt.

AN <ERIEER Turnover and Segment Information
—EBETLHF ZETRF
2007 2006
BYEEHER BEBEETT
HKS million HK$ million
EEEEAARAREKE AR Turnover represents sales
MPREFZHE  BERE by the Company and its
T5HEB ZWA : subsidiaries to outside
customers and comprises
revenue from:
HEEM Sales of goods 59,431 63,235
TR ARG S B At U A Rendering of services
and others 2,324 1,854
fALBA Rental income 367 345
HEYE Sales of properties 1 3
62,123 65,437
BRILRE ¥ Discontinued operation (10,610) (25,100)
51,513 40,337
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N BEBRIEER® 6. Turnover and Segment Information (continued)
TERFRE — REBED Primary reporting format — business segments

BE-ZZLET=A For the year ended
=t-BLEE 31 December 2007

EXE TURNOVER
HihEE External sales 25,043 13,279 7,232 4713 346 - - 51513 10,610 62,123
SHEHE Inter-segment sales* 65 2 149 - 29 - (268) - - -
A Total 26,008 13,304 7,381 4713 375 - (268) 51,513 10,610 62,123
PREE Segment result 937 884 682 265 830 () 3,505 251 3,846
REHEHAT Unallocated corporate (o4) - (o1)
il expenses
FISHA Interest income 278 13 291
HERK I Profit on disposal of
XHHEEN discontinued operation - 2,399 2399
BIRAA Finance costs (180) (23) (503)
EEBEDAZEE  Share of net results of
it associates - - 9 () - 35 353 - 353
fiE Taxation (764) (58) (822)
REERR Profit for the year 2,888 2,582 5,470
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N BEBRIEER® 6. Turnover and Segment Information (continued)
FTERHRE — REBED (B Primary reporting format — business segments (continued)

RZB%tLE As at 31 December

+ZA=t-H 2007
BE ASSETS
HEAE Segment assets 15,797 3272 5,126 5,640 7,406 1 57,242 - 57,242
REEREZER  Interests in associates - - 190 10 - 1,217 1,447 - 1,447
EEHEEE Deferred taxation
assets 119 = 119
ARERE Taxation recoverable 2 - 2
AEHBRAT) Unallocated corporate
EE assets 1,863 - 1,863

BREEHA Consolidated total

assets 60,691 = 60,691
L LIABILITIES
HEaR Segment liabilites 7,593 12,409 1,209 2,058 377 i 23,650 - 23,650
FEfiHE Taxation payable 268 - 268
EEREak Deferred taxation

liabilities 1,243 - 1,243

REHBHAT) Unallocated corporate
g liabilities 5,366 - 5,366

GREENA Consolidated total

liabilities 30,527 - 30,527
AfpEs OTHER
INFORMATION
EARY Capital expenditure 2129 6,234 542 716 277 2 9,930 2 9,932
EREH Depreciation and
amortisation 599 630 150 197 6 2 1,584 2 1,610
FtRm Impairment loss
BB recognised 7 55 - 3 - 6 7 - 7
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N BEBRIEER® 6. Turnover and Segment Information (continued)
FTERHRE — REBED () Primary reporting format — business segments (continued)

BZE-ZZ/AFT=A For the year ended
=t-BLEE 31 December 2006

EXB TURNOVER
e External sales 20,363 9,432 5,769 4453 320 - - 10,337 25,100 65,437
ShmE Inter-segment sales* 55 3 33 - 2 - (630) - - -
ait Totel 20418 9455 6,092 4453 349 - ) 037 B0 65437
PREE Segment result 467 753 559 169 779 (1) 2,726 664 3,390

AEHEHAT Unallocated corporate

il expenses () - )
HEHA Interest income 23 30 73
HERK|HIE Profit on disposal of

SBHEEHN discontinued operation 35 182 517
BIRAA Finance costs (386) (68) (454)
N Share of net results of

2558 associates = - 1 ) = 35 33 = 33
fiE Taxation (s62) 82) (644)
REERR Profit for the year 2,299 1,026 3,325
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N BEBRIEER® 6. Turnover and Segment Information (continued)
FTERHRE — REBED (B Primary reporting format — business segments (continued)

RZBBAE As at 31 December

+=A=t-A 2006
BE ASSETS
NREE Segment assets 12,207 13,703 3,999 4,703 6,752 55 11,419 3,779 15,198
REERTZER  Interests in associates - - 186 m - 923 1,153 - 1,153
EthiegE Deferred taxation
assets 123 - 123
AR Taxation recoverable 12 2 1
AESBRAT) Unallocated corporate
EE assets 1,266 - 1,266
GREEEAE Consolidated total
assets B3 3,781 47,754
&f LIABILITIES
PEAR Segment liabilities 5,828 5,924 1,154 1,605 334 i 14,849 2,190 17,039
[EfftiE Taxation payable 166 Q 208
ERfieafE Deferred taxation
[iabilities 1,003 20 1,023
AEHED Unallocated corporate
ARBRE liablities 4,519 - 4519
GRAREAE Consolidated total
liabilities 20,537 2,52 22,789
AhER OTHER
INFORMATION
EARY Capital expenditure 1,214 1744 18 152 165 1 3,724 216 3940
EREH Depreciation and
amortisation 547 553 14 182 4 1 1,431 127 1,558
FtesRE Impairment loss
B# recognised 2 19 - 4 - - % - 2
& XBEEE DIRERNTISERKE * Inter-segment sales were charged at prevailing market rates
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N BEXERIEER® 6. Turnover and Segment Information (continued)
RERBFRE - BHEE D Secondary reporting format — geographical segments
R O 3t HE=R
B Chinese Other a5t
Hong Kong Mainland Countries Total
BkaEr AeEx AB¥%e8xr A%asEn
HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million
BlE-Z2ZtF Turnover for the year
+=B=+—H ended 31 December
LEENEERE 2007 17,331 41,434 3,358 62,123
R=BELHF As at 31 December
+=A=+—H 2007
NIEE Segment assets 12,082 43,966 1,194 57,242
RENEEE Additions to segment
assets 127 9,717 88 9,932
BLE=—Z22XF Turnover for the year
+=A=+—8~ ended 31 December
I FENEELE 2006 23,441 38,786 3,210 65,437
R-ZZBEXRE As at 31 December
+=A=+— 2006
DEEE Segment assets 13,182 29,888 2,128 45,198
REDHEE Additions to segment
assets 161 3,676 103 3,940
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Hug A 7. Other Income
—EELHF ZEERFE
2007 2006
BEEER BEBRET
HKS million HK$ million
Hitt A BIE T EE : Other income includes the
following:
HERE 2% Continuing operations
REILMAIE Dividends from unlisted
HERM S available for sale
investments 3 4
FEBA Interest income 278 243
KREMFEEG RS Valuation gain on
investment properties 567 526
EERIAZ AR BERS Fair value gain on
derivative financial
instruments 98 108
HEKTE QR EHATEET) Profit on disposal of
subsidiaries/business - 35
i E B A Rl = 2 FTiS s Al Profit on disposal of
interests in associates 78 1
DRIRE SR Discontinued operation
REIELETAIE Dividends from unlisted
FEBRE available for sale
investments 1 3
BN Interest income 13 30
BV E SRR Valuation gain on
investment properties - 2
HEBTEEEMSHA Profit on disposal of
fixed assets - 5
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N, BHEEE 8. Finance Costs
—EEtF —ETR
2007 2006
BEHET BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
BERE 2 ¥R Continuing operations
BhE LTS Interests on finance leases - 1
ERAFRNBEEE Y Interests on bank loans and
RITER R EMMEFF S other loans wholly
repayable within five years 469 373
BERAFABEEEZ Interests on other loans not
HAERF S wholly repayable
within five years - 5
BET W Financing charges 11 10
480 389
B AEREERARAZ Less: Amount capitalised
B 71 & AN FRIE* in cost of qualifying
assets* - ®3)
480 386
DRIERE ¥R Discontinued operation
ERAFRNBEEE Y Interests on bank loans and
RITER R EMMEFF S other loans wholly
repayable within five years 18 65
MEXH Financing charges 5 3
23 68
503 454
E Bt BEIERRISEABEEMEBAE & The amount capitalised represents the borrowing cost of loans which are
R HEERA - borrowed specifically for the purpose of obtaining the qualifying assets.
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. XEERR 9. Profit For the Year
—EELHF ZEERFE
2007 2006
BEEET BEBRETT
HKS million HK$ million
AEEBRE MR THIEE ¢ Profit for the year has been
arrived at after charging:
BERE 2 %K Continuing operations
IZE RN & Auditors’ remuneration 21 28,
BETRA(BIEESHE) Staff costs (including
directors’ emoluments) 4,481 3,449
e Depreciation
-BEBE - Owned assets 1,574 1,411
-RREHENFBENEE — Assets held under
finance leases 1 4
ElE &= BERREEE Impairment loss recognised
(BREE—METHEEARN) on fixed assets (included
in general and
administrative expenses) 20 24
EmEpEE s EERRERE Impairment loss recognised
(BREE—METHREANAN) on other intangible assets
(included in general and
administrative expenses) 41 1
HAb i E Eg i Amortisation of other
(BPREE—RETHRERAN) intangible assets
(included in general and
administrative expenses) 9 16
T RIEF 2 EERO B R Operating leases charges on
land and buildings* 1,459 1,198
EEE MmN Cost of goods sold 38,618 30,109
it EEEEEMEER Loss on disposal of
fixed assets 29 =
DRI RE SR Discontinued operation
BETRA(BIEESHE) Staff costs (including
directors’ emoluments) 63 232
e Depreciation
-BEEE - Owned assets 22 104
BB ENEE — Assets held under
finance leases 4 8
H AT B B 8 Amortisation of other
(BEE—RBRITHERA) intangible assets
(included in general and
administrative expenses) - 15
THIREFZ EERNER Operating leases charges on
land and buildings 19 46
BEE MR Cost of goods sold 10,108 23,641
HEEEEEMGEE Loss on disposal of
fixed assets - 1
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. EEEBF @) 9. Profit For the Year (continued)

WEFA And after crediting:
BERE %K Continuing operations
HeWAERE Gross rental income 366 344
& ABREsZ Less: Related out-goings (33) (33)
He WA FRE Net rental income 333 311
EARLERE 2K Discontinued operation
HeWAERE Gross rental income 1 1
R ABRESZ Less: Related out-goings - =
He WA FHE Net rental income 1 1
& BEFAAELEE21EEBTL(ZTTAF wd Including contingent rent of HK$231 million (2006: HK$196 million).

196 BB IT) ©

+. EEEE 10. Directors’ Emoluments

ik Fees 1.84 1.12
EARE & K2R Basic salaries and allowances 12.89 13.19
RNESHK Provident fund contributions 1.09 1.15
EAITEAL Bonus paid 5.67 4.01

21.49 19.47
LARR A FE AT R Share-based payment - =
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+. EEME®) 10. Directors’ Emoluments (continued)
ok Hipie
Fees Other Emoluments
ExHe
REE  DAEESHER “EERE
Basic Provident CE
Salaries and Fund BAEA CH 2006
“EZLF 2007 Allowances Contributions  Bonus paid- Total Total
BEBET  A¥EET  A¥EERT  A%EERT A¥EEnT A%EER
ESpg Name of director HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million
KM Song Lin 0.08 1.84 0.23 1.07 3.22 3.04
BRestAR Chen Shulin 0.08 175 0.10 1.01 2.94 2.69
Z8% Keung Chi Wang, Ralph 0.08 2.51 0.28 0.58 3.45 3.26
FHE Wang Qun 0.08 1.29 0.08 1.68 3.13 1.90
ElEN Lau Pak Shing 0.08 2.99 0.33 0.77 417 3.96
NG Kwong Man Him 0.08 2.51 0.07 0.56 3.22 2.97
Bt Qiao Shibo 0.08 - - - 0.08 0.45
B8 Yan Biao 0.08 - - - 0.08 0.48
B Jiang Wei 0.08 - - = 0.08 0.05
TAhEE Wang Shuaiting 0.08 - - - 0.08 0.04
HBE Xie Shengxi 0.05 - - - 0.05 0.05
HXR Du Wenmin 0.03 - - - 0.03 -
£ Chan Po Fun, Peter 0.16 - - - 0.16 0.14
BEAE Houang Tai Ninh 0.16 - - - 0.16 0.14
R Li Ka Cheung, Eric 0.16 - - - 0.16 0.14
BRE Cheng Mo Chi 0.16 - - - 0.16 0.14
BRER Benard Charnwut Chan 0.16 - - - 0.16 0.01
=70 Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon 0.16 - - - 0.16 0.01
Bt Total 1.84 12.89 1.09 5.67 21.49 -
—EERE 2006 112 13.19 1.15 4.01 - 19.47
1 TEADNZEMFEEILERE - HRIALT 1 The bonus payment is determined with reference to the operating

ERBRRFAET SR RFETE

results, individual performance and comparable market statistics during

both years.
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T HURSHES 11. Five Highest Paid Employees
FARMREEEEEENL(ZEEN The five highest paid employees during the year included four
Wi )ESE  FREHNEXMET - & (2006: four) directors, details of whose remunerations are set out
B ZTZARF ) E=FEEM in note 10 above. The details of the remunerations paid to the
B 2MEesFBeT other one (2006: one) highest paid employees are follows:

EARF & KRR Basic salaries and allowances 1.45 1.20
NIERHEK Provident fund contributions - -
BEASTEAL Bonus paid 3.66 2.60
PARRAD FE AR Share-based payment - -

5.11 3.80
W (ZEERF () &ReHHNT The emoluments of this one (2006: one) highest paid individuals
TEIEE were within the following bands:

AE

No. of persons

3,500,001 — 4,000,000 3,500,001 — 4,000,000 - 1
5,000,001 — 5,500,000 5,000,001 — 5,500,000 1 -
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REBEFBEANHEES S BRAMHERE
77 BT A& B Bl SR E TR AR AR AR A R8I0
ﬁzé o ARBARZEXNETERE
DR - ERBRHNESR - AREE
Htvaf%ﬂE@D‘E*E\fﬂ;iimiﬁﬁi{fé?x €

F%J:LE’JEF’IWiTELW#iWﬁE & 18
mER PR BRRK AL EB Y3348 ETT
(ZZTERF : BH268FETT) ©

T BEAES 12. Staff Provident Fund
B BB A Hong Kong
AEERBEZEEBRRES2BEELHELFE The Group operates various defined contribution retirement
BEFURIRGT S - ZEFAEZEERLRE schemes which are available to all Hong Kong employees. The
EEEIHAERE WTHEVBEEZESR assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the
B HHRBEHIRBEEEAF e HER Group in an independently administered fund. The amount of
EETE - MBtEE TREZA 2 ERDR contributions is based on a specified percentage of the basic
WA A A DORUR AN S B 2 3K © salary of employees and any forfeited contributions in respect of
unvested benefits of staff leavers are used to reduce the Group’s
contributions.
—EELF ZZTRF
2007 2006
BEAET BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
REBEHE S N EE 2 HK Group contributions to staff
provident fund 33 35
[REDE WL g S N Forfeited contributions utilised - =
BiRE Em RN 238 Amount charged to consolidated
profit and loss account 33 35
= AR EN 2R U R Un-utilised forfeited
contributions - -
Z HERi B  Chinese Mainland

The employees of the Group in the Chinese Mainland are members
of state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the
respective local government in the Chinese Mainland. The Group
is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs
to the schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to these schemes is to make the specified
contributions.

The total cost charged to the consolidated profit and loss account
in respect of the above-mentioned schemes in the Chinese
Mainland amounted to approximately HK$334 million (2006:
HK$268 million).
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+=%1E 13. Taxation
—ETLHF ZEERFE
2007 2006
BYEEHER BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
BERE 2 ¥R Continuing operations
AEEHIE Current taxation

BB Hong Kong 145 129
Fh B A3 Chinese Mainland 505 337
AEIN Overseas - 1
650 467

IRERIR Deferred taxation
B Hong Kong 97 73
HR A b Chinese Mainland 17 22
764 562

ERIERE XK Discontinued operation
AEERIE Current taxation

B Hong Kong 58 84
Fp [ A3 Chinese Mainland - 1
LN Overseas 2 1
60 86

ELEBIE Deferred taxation
B Hong Kong () ()
58 82
822 644

BANGBIIRBANFE 2 A5 ERG
ML E17.5%( ZFZTNF ¢ 17.5%) 7T
H o PEAMHTE A R Z B HRIEE
B AT A BIR G ST R R - 8
SNATEIR R Rl AR 2 EATRAE -

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) on
the estimated assessable profits for the year. Chinese Mainland
income tax has been provided for based on the estimated
assessable profits in accordance with the relevant tax laws
applicable to the subsidiaries in the Chinese Mainland. Overseas
taxation is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective
jurisdictions.
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13. Taxation (continued)

On 16 March 2007, the People’s Republic of China promulgated
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income
Tax (the “New Law”) by Order No.63 of the President of the
People’s Republic of China. On 6 December 2007, the State
Council issued Implementation Regulations of the New Law. The
New Law and Implementation Regulations will change the tax rate
to 25% from 1 January 2008 with certain transitional arrangement.
The deferred tax balance has been adjusted to reflect the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the respective periods when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled.

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong Profits
Tax rate as follows:

:g%—tﬂi —ZEETR
2007 2006
BEAER BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
Profit before taxation
(excluding share of net
results of associates) 5,939 3,636

B ER17.5%(ZFZRF : 17.5%)
STE 2 HIE
HEtr B @R TEHNEZFE

Calculated at a taxation rate
of 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) 1,039 636
Effect of different taxation rates

in other jurisdictions 95 107
BT 2 WA Income not subject to taxation (461) (213)
A0k 2 X2 Expenses not deductible

for taxation purposes 174 45
FERFAIRERERZIIE Utilisation of previously

unrecognised tax losses (53) (31)
REBRZBIE Tax loss not recognised 233 192
EED () REZFE Underprovision/(overprovision)

on taxation in previous year 25 (14)
A A R EA R BE (M) Income earning companies

exempted from taxation (note) (230) (78)
HiIE sz Taxation charge 822 6414

fiaE - AEEETFEANMEENNBARAZET
BT R e PABBER - WHEBRFEER
e BE A ATER o

Note: The Group’s subsidiaries operating in the Chinese Mainland are eligible
for certain tax holidays or concessions and were exempted from Chinese
Mainland income taxes for the year.
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TR E 14. Dividends
—EBETLHF ZEEREF
2007 2006
BYEEHER BEBRETT
HKS million HK$ million
EATERE AR A EFE Additional final dividend paid for
REINRZ R R B B the previous year as a result
of exercise of share options 1 1
ZEELFHEIREFHREER 2007 interim dividend paid of
BB 0.5 T (ZTTNEF ¢ HK$0.15 (2006: HK$0.14)
7S #0.147T) per ordinary share 357 328
:ggtiﬁﬁﬂf}f&%’*#%ﬁﬂﬂ’xﬂ% 2007 special interim dividend
IR E RIS 0.607T paid of HK$0.60 (2006: HK$1)
(ZZTTRF  Bur) per ordinary share 1,427 2,356
2T FREIRERARESR 2007 proposed final dividend of
LA B 0.30 L ( ZTT/RF ¢ HK$0.30 (2006: HK$0.26)
75 #0.267T) per ordinary share 716 616
2,501 3,301
EARRRAR_ZEENF=A=+— Elﬁiﬁ At the meeting held on 31 March 2008 the directors proposed final
V&% E o EERIRCRERE ST dividend of HK$0.30 (2006: HK$0.26) per ordinary share. This
B 0.307L (ZEERNF : Bio.267T) © proposed dividend, which is calculated on the Company’s number
BRI SRR RN BITEETE RS of ordinary shares as at the date of the board meeting, is not
AR RRIREGTE - ZER B MmN recognised as a liability in these financial statements. The total
BMENEREBE - NEEMBWMER dividends paid by the Company, including the final dividend for
RBARRRGHREBEERE_ZZ the year 2006, amounting to HK$2,401 million (2006: HK$3,265
NEERRBRE - BEAEEK2,10088 million) are reflected in the current year financial statements.
TL(ZZETNREF - B30 BB L) °
THERLERE XK 15. Discontinued operation

REZZZEF AR - AAFRIETKAR
SREBE L wETEEE A RABEE

MR HEE TR E =5 -

The Company completed the disposal of its petroleum and
related products distribution business at a cash consideration
of approximately HK$4 billion at the end of June 2007 to an
independent third party.
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Discontinued operation (continued)

The results of the discontinued operation included in the

Ik consolidated profit and loss account are set out below:
ZEBE2LF ZTTRF
2007 2006
BYEEET BEBEET
HKS million HK$ million
BRI KB 2 AN FEHEF Profit for the year from
discontinued operation
Weas Revenue 10,750 25,796
X Expenses (10,509) (24,688)
BREE RT3 A Profit before taxation 241 1,108
18 Taxation (58) (82)
BRTIEE T Profit after taxation 183 1,026
& BRI T 2 FriSim Al Profit on disposal of
discontinued operation 2,399 -
2,582 1,026
REZRH DB Profit for the year attributable to:
AR R R fE R Shareholders of the Company 2,582 1,002
D ERR R Minority interests - 24
2,582 1,026
HEBRIEREXB EEFE Net assets of discontinued
operation disposed of 1,600 -
CRLREEBCHERE Cash flows from discontinued
operation
KRS 2 IR M FER Net cash from operating
activities 67 1,034
WEFEESHZBEMA Rt ) F5 Net cash from/(used in)
investing activities 13 (237)
BMEFEB2RESAA i) F8 Net cash from/(used in)
financing activities 64 (304)
FIREME Net cash flows 144 493

ERIEEEBRNHEERZEERARE
FRHEERHE=1T "2 -

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the
discontinued operation at the date of disposal are disclosed in

note 32B.
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TAREBREF 16. Earnings Per Share

142

—EELHF ZEEREF
2007 2006
BE¥EET BERET
HKS million HK$ million
BREAERCDRIERE ¥ For continuing and
discontinued operations
BRERREERTTIRE The calculation of the basic
THIBIEAE and diluted eamings per
share is based on the
following data:
&F| Earnings
AU ESRERZT T Profit attributable to
AN B R FE A shareholders of the
Company for the
purpose of calculating
basic earnings per share 4,961 2,776
R 1T AR EHMETE R F B Interest saving on exercise of
convertible bonds - 50
AU ESREERT 8 Profit attributable to
AN BB ER FE L A shareholders of the
Company for the
purpose of calculating
diluted earnings per share 4,961 2,826
—EELHF TR
2007 2006
[gvik S ¢E] Number of shares
UG E GRREARZFH Weighted average number of
LSRR D g #x ordinary shares for the
purpose of calculating
basic earnings per share 2,374,697,717 2,325,474,383
I mARE B e R Effect of dilutive potential
ordinary shares:
— R — Share options 20,615,831 36,205,744
— AR ES - Convertible bonds - 49,148,795
AU E SR EER T8 Weighted average number of
LR N 2] ordinary shares for the
purpose of calculating
diluted earnings per share 2,395,313,548 2,410,828,922
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NEBREBF @ 16. Earnings Per Share (continued)
—EELF ZEEREF
2007 2006
BYEEER BEBEET
HKS million HK$ million
BERE 2% For continuing operations
BIRER KSR IR The calculation of the basic and
TANBIEE diluted earnings per share is
based on the following data:
27 Earnings
AU ESRERZT G Profit attributable to
AR B ER FE e A shareholders of the Company
for the purpose of calculating
basic earnings per share 4,961 2,776
W Less:
BRI 275 2 A RIR R BB 1 Profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company
from discontinued operation (2,582) (1,002)
R EGRERR I EL & %K Profit attributable to
Z AR A IR G A shareholders of the Company
for the purpose of calculating
basic earnings per share from
continuing operations 2,379 1,774
R 1T AR E S MEE O F B Interest saving on exercise of
convertible bonds - 50
RUGESRESER T8 Profit attributable to
FERERG shareholders of the Company
AN E IR R PG i A for the purpose of calculating
diluted earnings per share
from continuing operations 2,379 1,824

SREARRF R GRS BRI E R
SRR A — B o

DRIERE %75

BB RIEEE 2 EFTEEN AN AR
RIEHREF AB 258288 T(ZET N
F : B¥,002BB) R EXFIFILNE
REXRBFRGREEBINEHE B
BIEEECEBOERERNBN AR
B9 (ZEENF  HRE®0.43
TL)  BARIERE 2 EBHNEREERT
BERBE1LSIT(ZTT/NF « FREK
0.427C) °

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for

both basic and diluted earnings per share.

For discontinued operation

Basic earnings per share for the discontinued operation is
HK$1.09 per share (2006: HK$0.43 per share) and diluted earnings
per share for discontinued operation is HK$1.08 per share
(2006: HK$0.42 per share), based on the profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company from the discontinued operation of
HK$2,582 million (2006: HK$1,002 million) and the denominators
detailed above for both basic and diluted earnings per share.
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Tt.BEEE 17. Fixed Assets

Hib% - BERRE
Other property, plant and equipment

S ] The Group
AT E Cost or valuation

R=ZZE F—f—H At 1 January 2006 5,402 2,391 5,680 15,291 20,971 28,764
R ER Exchange difference 23 46 196 499 695 764
WEEIB A Rl EREEA Relating to acquisition of

subsidiaries/business - 34 136 295 431 465
HERBAR/ ERENL Relating to disposal of

subsidiaries/business - (198) (153) (1,238) (1,391) (1,589)
NE Additions 97 65 470 2,495 2,965 3,127
& Disposals (90) 4) (66) (570) (636) (730)
EXivapsl Reclassifications (61) (14) 400 (328) 72 ()
ELEEC Adjustment on valuation 528 - - - - 528
RZZTRF+-A=F+—H At 31 December 2006 and

k=EZt+F5—F-H 1 January 2007 5,899 2,320 6,663 16,444 23,107 31,326

BN ER Exchange difference 57 106 454 1,100 1,554 1,717
BB AR EHEEA Relating to acquisition of

subsidiaries/business - 363 322 628 950 1,313
HEHBAR/ £HEES Relating to disposal of

subsidiaries/business (28) (208) (154) (597) (751) (987)
NE Additions 288 166 439 5,262 5,701 6,155
e Disposals (16) ) 47) (580) (627) (650)
EXipp Reclassifications 532 88 1,047 (1,691) (644) (24)
EffHE Adjustment on valuation 567 - 3 - 3 570
RZZZLF+-A=+—H At 31December 2007 7,299 2,828 8,727 20,566 29,293 39,420
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Tt.BEEE® 17. Fixed Assets (continued)

Hit5% - BERRE
Other property, plant and equipment

ZHMERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
RZZEEE—A—H At 1 January 2006 = 331 1,130 5,867 6,997 7,328
EHZESR Exchange difference = 7 48 231 279 286
HEHBAR/ £HEEL Relating to disposal of
subsidiaries/business - (19) (52) (295) (347) (366)
AEERE Charge for the year - 54 241 1,232 1,473 1,527
HER M Written back on disposals - (1) (58) (451) (509) (510)
ERRZAEES Impairment loss recognised - - 9 15 24 24
Eipaxi Reclassifications - () (1) - () ®)

RZEZXF+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2006 and
H

il o 1 January 2007 - 370 1,317 6,599 7,916 8,286
AR Exchange difference - 13 107 492 599 612
HEMBAR/ EKREN Relating to disposal of

subsidiaries/business = (92) 47) (330) (377) (469)
AEEHE Charge for the year - 53 271 1,277 1,548 1,601
HEED Written back on disposals - @) (30) (450) (480) (482)
BHRRZRERE Impairment loss recognised - - 1 19 20 20
iy Reclassifications - @) ®3) (19) (22) (24)
R-ZE+F+-A=+—H At 31 December 2007 - 340 1,616 7,588 9,204 9,544
FEFE Net book values
R-ZEZ+F+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2007 7,299 2,488 7,111 12,978 20,089 29,876
R-ZEERF+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2006 5,899 1,950 5,346 9,845 15,191 23,040
BTIARIR 2 BE - Representing assets stated:
BARR At cost - 2,828 8,727 20,566 29,293 32,121
B-ETHEEEME At 2007 professional valuation 7,299 - - - - 7,299
7,299 2,828 8,727 20,566 29,293 39,420
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TEt.EE&EE® 17. Fixed Assets (continued)
Hitt 3 - BB RZE
Other property, plant and equipment
REW* HittEE
Investment gF Other Nt |t
properties Buildings assets Sub-total Total

BEEET BEREr A%FET  A¥EEr  B¥EER
HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million ~ HK$ million

ARF The Company
A& E Cost or valuation
R=ZTE F—HF—H At 1 January 2006 51 2 20 22 73
NE Additions - - 1 1 1
e Disposals - - @ @ @
NZZZRE+-A=+—H At 31 December 2006 and
R=ZET+E—-A—H 1 January 2007 51 2 20 22 73
NE Additions - - 2 2 2
e Disposals - - @ @ ®
NZEZE+E+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2007 o1 2 21 23 74
ZEHERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
RZZTEF—A—H At 1 January 2006 - - 17 17 17
REEHE Charge for the year = = 1 1 1
HERR Written back on disposals - - (1) 6] @
RZZEEFE+-F=1—H At 31 December 2006
k=—FT+F—H—H and 1 January 2007 - = 17 17 17
AEEHE Charge for the year = 1 1 2 5
HER Written back on disposals - - (1) () (1)
WZZZ+E+-_H=+—H At 31 December 2007 - 1 17 18 18
RESE Net book values
NZEZE+E+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2007 o1 1 4 3 56
RZZEZ F+-F=+—H At 31 December 2006 51 2 3 5 56
BTEA R 2 BE - Representing assets stated:
RKA At cost - 2 21 23 23
BT HEEEEE At 2007 professional valuation 51 - - - 51
51 2 21 23 74
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. Fixed Assets (continued)

—EELHF ZEEREF
2007 2006
BEEER BEBEETT
HKS million HK$ million
Y E R 2 BREE RS - Carrying amounts of the
property interests comprise:
rEE The Group
'8 Hong Kong
RERHNFE 2 Properties held on long
lease 4,060 4,001
RPEIRABE 2 Properties held on
medium-term lease 3,063 2,357
REHRANEE 2% Properties held on short
lease - 18
FR Bl g it Chinese Mainland
RERHZNFE 2% Properties held on long
lease 2,970 1,196
RPEIRABE 2 Properties held on
medium-term lease 6,696 5,516
REHRANEE 2% Properties held on short
lease 64 67
B o Overseas
LR ANEE 2 Properties held on
medium-term lease 15 9
REHRANFE 2 Properties held on short
lease 30 31
16,898 13,195
AT The Company
'8 Hong Kong
RPERABE 2% Properties held on
medium-term lease 51 51
FR Bl A it Chinese Mainland
RPERABE 2% Properties held on
medium-term lease 1 2
52 53
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tTt.BEEE @

EF

T+ FFT_A=T—HBZRE
MECHBYEEGEMBBRIT
BERABELGE - HETD2RA
BYECHRZTEMERE

AREEZRRERNZEZEEEE
R-ZEE+E+_A=+—HZE
HEESE1ABT(ZTTNEFE
BEIBETT) °

FEHEAEE 21088 T(ZZEE N
F:AB3EET) CBEEEER
BHERAB 240B BT 2 BEERK
(ZZTEAF : RHEREK 2068
BTRRAEREESEE L) 2K
e

R — B E R L EE
B BHETEELR  HHE
B -

17. Fixed Assets (continued)

A

The investment properties have been valued at 31 December
2007 by Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an independent
professional valuer. The valuation was arrived at by
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties.

The carrying amounts of fixed assets held under finance
leases of the Group at 31 December 2007 amounted to HK$1
million (2006: HK$1 million).

Fixed assets with carrying amounts of HK$210 million (2006:
HK$153 million) are pledged for short term loans in the
sum of HK$249 million (2006: short term loans of HK$206
million and long term loans of HK$8 million).

Impairment loss was made as a result of the outsourcing of
certain production processes in connection with the change
of production plan relating to one of the manufacturing
businesses.
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—I—JCE:%E% 17. Fixed Assets (continued)

KX HtEEEEFrZRFELEIRE - E  Other fixed assets mainly comprise construction in progress,
WEERME MEWMERE - faf - plant and machinery, leasehold improvements, vessels,
REEE  BRAREBERAE - cold storage facilities, furniture and equipment and motor

vehicles.
EEIR KERE HEWEERE
Construction Plant and Leasehold Hith &5t
in progress machinery improvements Others Total
AkRET A¥RET  A¥EER  A¥EEr  B¥BER
HKS$ million  HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million  HK$ million
REE The Group
KA E Cost or valuation

R-ZETE—A—H At 1 January 2006 906 9,186 1,752 3,447 15,291
[ERES Exchange difference 31 367 56 45 499

YNV S35 IN Relating to acquisition of
subsidiaries/business - 292 - 3 295

HERBAR, EREED Relating to disposal of

subsidiaries/business (431) (389) (64) (354) (1,238)
NE Additions 1,583 328 271 313 2,495
HeE Disposals ® (311) (61) (197) (570)
BHOH Reclassifications (1,220) 716 28 148 (328)

RZZEERF+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2006 and
k=ZZt+F—-[—H 1 January 2007 868 10,189 1,982 3,405 16,444,
ERER Exchange difference 79 815 124 82 1,100

WM B AR ERHEEA Relating to acquisition of
subsidiaries/business 157 424 - 47 628

HERB AR,/ EREED Relating to disposal of

subsidiaries/business - (75) (35) (487) (597)
NE Additions 4,321 360 367 214 5,262
e Disposals = (337) (142) (101) (580)
Eipn Reclassifications (2,886) 1,725 9 (539) (1,691)
NZZEE+HE+-F=1+—H At 31 December 2007 2,539 13,101 2,305 2,621 20,566
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+TE.BEEEE®

17. Fixed Assets (continued)

EEIR BeERE HEWEERE
Construction Plant and Leasehold Hith &5t
in progress machinery improvements Others Total
AkRET A¥RET  A¥EER  A¥EEr  B¥BER
HKS$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million ~ HK$ million  HK$ million
REtMERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
RZZETRF—-H—H At 1 January 2006 - 3,728 735 1,404 5,867
[ERT=] Exchange difference - 183 25 23 231
HEREAR EREE Relating to disposal of
subsidiaries/business - (236) (42) (17) (295)
REEHE Charge for the year - 687 231 314 1,232
HERE Written back on disposals - (237) (39) (175) (451)
BRRREEE Impairment loss recognised - 14 - 1 15
RIZERE+-A= At 31 December 2006 and
k=_ZZ+F—F— 1 January 2007 - 4,139 910 1,550 6,599
&5 =5 Exchange difference = 381 61 50 492
HERB AR,/ ERERED Relating to disposal of
subsidiaries/business - 62) (32) (236) (330)
AEEITE Charge for the year - 766 277 234 1,277
HERM Written back on disposals - (250) (112) (88) (450)
BRERREERE Impairment loss recognised = 16 = 3 19
EX i Reclassifications - 63 (26) (56) (19)
RZZEZE+H+-F=1+—H At 31 December 2007 - 5,053 1,078 1,457 7,588
REFE Net book values
N-ZZ+E+-A=+—H At 31 December 2007 2,539 8,048 1,227 1,164 12,978
RZZZEFE+-F=1—H At 31 December 2006 868 6,050 1,072 1,855 9,845
BETFAASNEZEE Representing assets stated:
N At cost 2,539 13,101 2,305 2,621 20,566
R-_TEFEEME At 2007 professional valuation - - - - -
2,539 13,101 2,305 2,621 20,566
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TN EE 18. Goodwill
BERET
HK$ million
NEE The Group
PR ANME Cost
RZEEF—H—H At 1 January 2006 3,084
b ZERR Exchange difference 6
KB AR, %5 Acquisition of subsidiaries/business 348
EEFEE (M) Goodwill adjustments (Note) 69
B A TR AR Increase in equity interests in subsidiaries 8
HENBAR, %5 Disposal of subsidiaries/business (34)
R-BEEFT+_A=1+—HREK At 31 December 2006 and 1 January 2007 3,481
—EELF—HA—H
bE 5 =58 Exchange difference 203
KB AR, %5 Acquisition of subsidiaries/business 498
HEFEHT B A R AR AN s Increase in equity interests in subsidiaries 1,955
R-BELFE+-F=+—H At 31 December 2007 6,137
ZEHREEE Accumulated impairment losses
RZBEEXF—HA—H ' +=—A=+—H At 1 January 2006, 31 December 2006
E_ETt+&E+-—A=+—H and 1 January 2007 -
REERERE Charge for the year 4
R-BEZELF+_A=+—H At 31 December 2007 4
BREE Carrying values
RZZEZT+tF+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2007 6,133
R-ZENE+=-_A=+—H At 31 December 2006 3,481
Wik : MEAREZERBE_ZTTHE+=A Note: The goodwill adjustments mainly represent the adjustment on the
=t+—HIEFEWENNE R EEEEEN carrying amounts and fair values of fixed assets of subsidiaries acquired
REEEA R EZERFEE - during the year ended 31 December 2005.

##MAIRAMRA T China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report 2007 F3§ 151



B E
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R WAL 18. Goodwill (continued)

HMEEREBEI EZRSEEEN
(Tcaul) - Y AREE R ETH 2 M
EEAXBOEMB LEEE - UTA
HESRZHEHME

zE
G
ULy WSS

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the cash
generating unit (“CGU”) representing an operating entity within
the business segments identified by the Group for the purpose
of segment reporting. A segment level summary of the goodwill
allocation is presented below:

Retail 1,221 1,183
Beverage 4,440 1,842
Food Processing and Distribution 384 369
Textile 88 87

CGUZ AT Bl £ BB T8 B EEF EAE
E o R EFEEARARBEEEEAB L
—FHMBREMEL 2B RERE
BU=FHzReRERMBMAETEREXS
HEtE - MAARERENRFIEXE
DZTIAYTE ©

EREEFEEZEERR

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined based
on a value in use calculation. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a three-year period and a discount rate of 10% per
annum. Cash flows beyond the three-year period are extrapolated
using the estimated growth rates are stated below.

Key assumptions used for the value in use calculations:

TE
G
BT RAESH

Retail 10.0
Beverage 5.0
Food Processing and Distribution 8.7
Textile 5.0
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Th.EtEEEE 19. Other Intangible Assets
=RIE
5] fERE
Brand Patent S5t
names royalty Total
BYEEER BYEEER BEEER
HKS million HKS million HKS million
EE The Group
B Cost
RZTEF—HA—H At 1 January 2006 250 507 757
PE X =58 Exchange difference 8 2 10
HEMBAR, %5 Disposal of subsidiaries/
business (44) (509) (553)
R=ZEZt+F—H—H At 1 January 2007 214 - 214
bE R Exchange difference 14 - 14
g D)==pNCTPE 3 Acquisition of subsidiaries/
business 11 - 11
RIEZAF+-—A=+—H At 31 December 2007 239 - 239
2ETHEE RORE Accumulated amortisation
and impairment
RZZEEF—H—H At 1 January 2006 97 30 127
PE Exchange difference 4 - 4
RNEZHH Charge for the year 16 15 31
BRERZBEERE Impairment loss recognised 1 = 1
HEMB AR, %5 Disposal of subsidiaries/
business (17) (45) (62)
R=ZZEZt+F—H—H At 1 January 2007 101 - 101
N R Exchange difference 7 - 7
ENGEES: 5 Charge for the year 9 - 9
EHER R ERR Impairment loss recognised 41 - 4
R-ZZ+F+_-_A=+—H At 31 December 2007 158 - 158
R E Net book values
RZTE+F+=-_A=+—H At 31 December 2007 81 - 81
RZZEZENF+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2006 113 - 113
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T RMEAR 2R

20. Interests in Subsidiaries

AR The Company

IE LA - KANME Unlisted shares, at cost 15,268 15,927

FEHK BT A B FRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 49 757
15,317 16,684

FEUH B A B SRIR Y KR R 2 F B7.47
B(=FFTRF : F54E) -

RN-BT+F+-_A=+—B 2T ENE
NEFBETEHRF177EEF185H ©

JABEE N R 2

21.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, and bear
interest rate at 7.47% p.a. (2006: 4% p.a.).

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2007 are
set out on pages 177 to 185.

Interests in Associates

NEE The Group
E il Unlisted
L aEFE Share of net liabilities (100) (379)
FEUSESE & A BIFRIA Amounts due from associates 1,547 1,532
1,447 1,153

FEUREE = R R FORY B RIRITH IS
BEAENERARBEHEBEFT T @
AAEE -

R-ZET+F+-F=t+—BFBHL
DRIFETIHR F177EEF185H o

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest bearing
at prevailing market rate and are not repayable within the twelve
months from the balance sheet date.

Particulars of the principal associates at 31 December 2007 are
set out on pages 177 to 185.
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Interests in Associates (continued)
The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
associates is set out below:

BERE Total assets 43,543 39,892
aFERE Total liabilities (46,124) (44,917)
BEFE Net liabilities (2,581) (5,025)
RE B FE(REE = A A Group’s share of net liabilities

aE#E of associates (100) (379)
hE Revenue 13,143 12,476
NF Em T Profit for the year 3,471 3,392

AEBREBERRAFE
ESVt

Group’s share of net results of
associates for the year 353 333

Tt AERE

22. Available for Sale Investments

EE
FnEIE
FBIE LMD - KAE

The Group
Non-current investments
Unlisted shares in Hong Kong,
at cost 9 11

PR A IE ETAR Unlisted shares in Chinese
RANMEREEE Mainland, at cost less
impairment loss 37 42
46 53

LR EF BRI LWL - MAARR
BEHEEHZREE - AR EERT
BRHEEZERD - BEAN ST
HARfEE-

The above investments mainly represent investments in unlisted
equity shares and are measured at costs less impairment at each
balance sheet date. As there is no active market for trading, their
fair values cannot be ascertained reliably.
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ZtE FENRE 23. Prepayments

rEH The Group
EfFEEREE-R—A—H Tank storage service fees
prepaid — at 1 January 302 324
B NENER 2 RIE Less: Amount recognised during
the year (12) (22)
o HEERIEEE 2 X5 Less: Disposal of discontinued
operation (291) -
- 302
HeEeHIE Rental deposits 236 200
Rt+-—A=+—Bz&& Balance at 31 December 236 502
R —FRNEA 2 & Portion to be utilised within
one year 31 B5
R — B A 2 5% Portion to be utilised after
one year 205 467
RTZA=T—Hz#&Hk Balance at 31 December 236 502
“tRFE 24. Stocks

EEH The Group
FEME Properties held for sale 145 146
R Raw materials 1,710 1,170
SiEmRBEME Consumables and packing
materials 3,014 1,761
TS Work-in-progress 313 247
UK Finished goods 3,898 3,401
9,080 6,725
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Trade and Other Receivables

KEH AN
The Group The Company

TEWE SRR Trade receivables 1,676 2,661 - -
B Provision for doubtful debts (265) (149) - =
1,511 2,512 - =
H b pERIE Other receivables, deposits
& RIERFIE and prepayments 3,698 2,817 14 37
FEUH BB A RIFRIA Amounts due from subsidiaries - - 1,744 1,042
i SNGIES = Amounts due from fellow
Ff 8 A RIRIE subsidiaries 11 12 - =
UK ES: & A R FRIB Amounts due from associates 21 25 - -
5,241 5,366 1,758 1,079

AEE—RETEFPUATZEER

(F) BN Rk

(2) RtTREiR

REZBNERE SRR KRk 50
T

KEE
0—30K
31— 60K
61— 90K
>90K

The Group normally trades with its customers under the following
credit terms:

(@ cash upon delivery; and

(b) open credit within 60 days

The following is the aging analysis of trade receivables at the
balance sheet date:

The Group

o - 30 days 1,000 1,874
31— 60 days 207 357
61— 90 days 108 120
>9o days 196 161

1,511 2,512
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“tRLESRHEMEBEWRRKIE®) 25. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)
REEREEBNE S REMBYGRIER The fair value of the Group’s and the Company’s trade and
R EERAEREERS ° other receivables at balance sheet date was approximate to the

corresponding carrying amount.

BIREF 22 Movement in the provision for doubtful debts

»n—A—H At 1 January 149 152
BRER 2 REEE Impairment loss recognised 10 15
EfEE el miiEes Amounts written off as

uncollectible (4) (25)
JRER(E s 1E Impairment losses reversed (2 6
W EEH B A7) Acquisition of subsidiaries 7 =
bE 5 5 Exchange difference 5 1
W+=ZA=+—H” At 31 December 165 149
BIHR B SRR (B AR TR Y BRI Aging of past due but not impaired

BHINE30H Less than 30 days past due 166 155
#18A31—60H 31 - 60 days past due 46 49
@ HA61—90H 61— 90 days past due 51 57
#1890 H A £ Over 9o days past due 47 50
310 311
WA E - TR E RN EWEIE - SR Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
FEERNES @ R FEH R o wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.
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SIATTEERTI A 26. Derivative Financial Instruments
REE REE
The Group The Group

¥ &skERIE”  Derivatives under hedge

PTHETA accounting
REeMEE - Cash flow hedge:
HiHas Oil futures contracts - - 109 118
INESIRER A %) Foreign currency forwards
contracts - 1 - -
MEIBHE L Interest rate swaps - 3 - _
- 4 109 118
HMfTETAR Other derivatives
HBE#R Oil futures contracts - - 52 33
SNEIRBRE ) Foreign currency forwards
contracts - - 5 _
M= HE L Interest rate swaps - - - 16
- 4 163 167
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STROTESRMI A

BERBHN - REREH

LA BRI TE BFIANF RiE B4
o —RIRBEESREL N UEDAE
B S SR N Emm R RER
B o I 4= HY & B KA I BUAS R (R By 3
£ BEAMMEENESE  EEKTEN
R EBmROME - EIERRAER -

¥R AR 2 A FE - RABRA
HHR R ENANEERE - AITEARR
BRemENAETE -

FRpHGFTEE R - FRig BHEHZE)
MEAEEFBRITEZESF S ([HIBOR]) °

HbfT4£ TH — FlREH
RNEEF AR EIRE - G H LAHIBORET &
F B Z B EAH30%ZE 50%H HIBOREE A
fRBERITRIZEHFE([LIBOR]) ©

RIBZRF+A=+—8 ' ~EEH
BEFREE 1,500 88T H R A LA
e HBER 2 EME  AERHNERZ
TRLFEH -

26. Derivative Financial Instruments (continued)

Cash flow hedge - Interest rate swap

All interest rate swap contracts exchanging floating rate interest
amounts for fixed rate interest amounts are designated as cash
flow hedges in order to reduce the Group’s cash flow exposure
resulting from variable interest rates on borrowings. The
interest rate swaps and the interest payments on the loan occur
simultaneously and the amount deferred in equity is recognised in
the profit and loss account over the period that the floating rate
interest payments on debt impact the profit and loss account.

The fair value of interest rate swaps at the reporting date is
determined by discounting the future cash flows using the curves
at reporting date and the credit risk inherent in the contract.

The interest rate swaps settle on a quarterly basis and the floating
rate on the interest swaps is the Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offer Rate
(“HIBOR”).

Other derivatives — Interest rate swaps

The Group uses interest rate swaps to improve its risk profile
by swapping part of its HIBOR based borrowing from HIBOR to
London Inter-Bank Offer Rate (“LIBOR”).

At 31 December 2006, the Group had interest rate swaps with
notional contract amounts of HK$1,500 million that matched the
maturity of the related borrowings, all these contracts were fully
settled in 2007.
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Tt EZ REMEMRIE 27. Trade and Other Payables
REE AT
The Group The Company

BN E SRR Trade payables 6,901 6,017 - -
HAb R R TER Other payables and accruals

& 9,582 6,430 21 8
bedic) Provisions - 31 - _
B A RZIE Amounts due to subsidiaries - - 104 63
[iADRSFNGIES ] Amounts due to fellow

Fi B A RIFIE subsidiaries 56 57 - =
FE - E & A RIFIR Amounts due to associates 26 19 - —

16,565 12,554 125 71

REEBNENE SRR 2 RER D0 The following is an aging analysis of trade payables at the
TS balance sheet date:

NEME The Group
0—30K o — 30 days 3,962 3,847
31— 60K 31 - 60 days 1,655 1,288
61— 90K 61— 90 days 536 330
>90K >90 days 748 552
6,901 6,017
REERZEEBNE S REMENFKIBR The fair value of the Group’s and the Company’s trade and
R BEEEREERE other payables at balance sheet date was approximate to the

corresponding carrying amount.
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HREHER

28a. Short Term Loans

REME The Group
BUEAZR {7 Current portion
—BEARITER - secured bank loans - 3
—EEAIRITER - unsecured bank loans 626 30
— H A R E TR — other unsecured loans - 9
— REAR B FH A AIE - of long term obligations
under finance leases 1 2
REIRITREMER - Short term bank and other
{FEEUUR KB loans, trust receipts and
overdrafts
—FHEH - secured 272 206
— A - unsecured 4,045 4,747
4,944 4,997
L EHEE 28b. Long Term Liabilities

NEH The Group
ARAFNER 2GR Secured bank loans repayable
HRITER within 5 years - 8
ARRFANER 2 SR Unsecured bank loans repayable
HBITER within 5 years 7,991 3,741
BARAFREBHERZ Unsecured bank loans not
IERIRITE R wholly repayable
within 5 years 4 6
ARAFANER 2 K& Other unsecured loans repayable
EIRE T within 5 years 103 58
ARAFHNEEZREM Obligations under finance leases
R repayable within 5 years 1 3
BEARAFRNEHEEZ Other unsecured loans not
H bR E R wholly repayable
within 5 years 31 68
8,130 3,884
FIR BN & & 2 BN ERER D Current portion included in
current liabilities (627) (44)
7,503 3,840
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28b. Long Term Liabilities (continued)

—EELHF ZEERFE
2007 2006
BEEET BEBRETT
HKS million HK$ million
NEE The Group
RHIE B2 JERNEAED D FEIE A The non-current portion of
TEFHAELRR long term liabilities are
repayable as follows:
RITEM Bank Loans
—FUEEMEA After 1 year, but within 2 years 655 1
MEAEZRFR After 2 years, but within 5 years 6,710 3,717
AFE After 5 years 4 4
Hin &R Other Loans
—FUAEEMFR After 1 year, but within 2 years 69 64
MEAEZRERA After 2 years, but within 5 years 34 53
AFE After 5 years 31 -
R E AN Obligations under finance leases
—FAEEMFR After 1 year, but within 2 years - 1
7,503 3,840

—EELE+—A=-+=-R  AEELRE
MBAREHoRBTHREFBREE
EHREESREBEAE BT - ER =T
TRFEEENS —HEsFREEFER 30
B AEERFBANEAHEERELR
HARBE 62187 ° MIEE I L HIBOR/
LIBORSN28Z: F&TE - RZZEZ+F+ =
R=+—8H BBHAREAE9ET(Z
TTRF - BB -

REASEARAFABEE 2 BIEMRT
BERz iGN  mRhARER(&E)E
RAR(TEBEENDRREBERESR
RRRIRD35%F A FORE 2B S M
HEERARRE—JABRRZE M (TH
RERYERENBARRRSEARE

Ne
Fas

) o

On 22 November 2007, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group,
together with 10 banks, signed a 5-year revolving credit/term
syndicated loan facility of HK$3.2 billion. Together with another
5-year syndicated loan signed in 2006 of HK$3 billion, the
aggregate amount of committed borrowing facilities available to
the Group becomes HK$6.2 billion. Both loan bear interest rate at
HIBOR/LIBOR plus 28 basis point. As at 31 December 2007, a sum
of HK$4.9 billion (2006: HK$1.7 billion) has been drawn down.

Under the terms of the agreements of the Group’s unsecured bank
loans repayable within five years, China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited (“CRH”), a holding company, is required to
remain as a beneficial owner of at least 35% of the voting shares
of the Company or remain as a single largest shareholder (whether
directly or indirectly through its subsidiaries) of the Company.

##MAIZAMRA T China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report 2007 F3§

163



164

B E
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N RHIEE

REBEENBE  ETRAREABBEN 2
FRAE - BE S BIEHIBOR » LIBORK&H
B A RIRITIRE < PR R HE o

REBEZEBRCEBRFNEEER
2.40% £ 7.29% ( ZEZNF  3.90% %
4.95%) 5 °

28b. Long Term Liabilities (continued)

The Group has floating rate borrowings denominated in Hong
Kong Dollars, US Dollars and Renminbi with interest rates linked
to HIBOR, LIBOR and the lending rate stipulated by the People’s
Bank of China respectively.

The effective annual interest rates on the Group’s floating rate
borrowings range from mainly 2.40% to 7.29%. (2006: from 3.90%
to 4.95%).

“TREEBIR 29. Deferred Taxation
FANRLERBEENBBECEB(EHRF— The movement in deferred taxation assets and liabilities (prior
B[R 2 AR AT 20T to offsetting of balance within the same taxation jurisdiction)
recognised during the year is as follows:
BB Hith &t
Tax losses Others Total
“EETEE CTTNF ZBBEE —TESF ETtHE ZEIN
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
HKS million  HK$ million  HKS million  HK$ million  HKS million  HK$ million
BYEER AYEET BYEER AYEEr #%EEx A%BExn
rEE The Group
BEHBEE Deferred taxation assets
®—A—AH At 1 January 54 76 69 64 123 140
R ERR (Charged)/credited to
(0B%) /2R consolidated profit and
loss account (22) (22) 12 5 (10) (19)
HEgFHyE Effect of change in tax rates ©) = - = ©) =
Uh¢=10)PNS) Acquisition of subsidiaries - - 9 - 9 -
ExFE Exchange rate adjustment 3 2 1 - 4 2
R+=ZA=1+—H At 31 December 28 54 91 69 119 123

EIERIE & B LAMERA M B 75 T 25 5 & AT A
RRFERTBNEER B LR - ARBER
HEEMER R_ET+LF+_A=1+—
H @ AEBEKRBERZHBEEERE B E,357
BET(ZTTNE  B¥g2BETT)
MASERAEHEE ] S ARERBEE
REVERTHEMAL G - WS EEERAF
WHmZ RERZ B EEE BB 958 R
BIL(ZTTRF  B480FETT) °

Deferred taxation assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxable profits is probable. At 31 December
2007, the Group has unrecognised tax losses of HK$1,357 million
(2006: HK$902 million) which is uncertain as to whether it can
be utilised to set off against future taxable income. Out of this
amount, the unrecognised tax loss of HK$958 million (2006:
HK$480 million) will expire within 5 years.
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ZTRREBE () 29. Deferred Taxation (continued)
N TREAGEEERBERTHERCEL The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
IR B B MDY RN F RN 2 &F) consolidated balance sheet and the movements during the years

are as follows:

BEffRENE MEBCRFE

Revaluation Accelerated
of investment tax e
property depreciation Total
BEAET BERET BEAET
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
REE The Group
NZEZF—A—H At 1 January 2006 726 225 951
EAEERINR S GEA) Charged/(credited) to consolidated
profit and loss account 95 (23) 72
RIEEF+_A=1t—"HRK At 31 December 2006 and 821 202 1,023
—ZET+F—H—H 1 January 2007
BirAiERERN%(GtA) Charged/(credited) to consolidated
profit and loss account 99 ©) 96
W RWERB AT Relating to acquisition of subsidiaries - 145 145
R ENB AR Relating to disposal of subsidiaries (4) (17) (21)
RZEZ+F+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2007 916 327 1,243
AARIZ BLEFIEBESERENE - + The Company’s deferred taxation liabilities relates to the
3 R AEF LA K At B EEH) IR TR IR & o accelerated tax depreciation of its investment property, land and

building and other assets.
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=t. R&A 30. Share Capital
—EEF TETRF
2007 2006
BRHEE HE f&HE8E HE
Number of Nominal  Number of Nominal
shares Value shares Value
BER BE¥EER BER AB¥a&ET
million HKS million million  HK$ million
ETE Authorised
SRREESEIT Ordinary shares
2 &R of HK$1 each 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000
BEIT BB Issued and fully paid
R—HA—H At 1 January 2,358 2,358 2,233 2,233
1TEHE AR IE Exercise of share options 27 27 125 125
R+=—A=+—8 At 31 December 2,385 2,385 2,358 2,358

(F)

ARBRIERETE - ERE2EEY
ARBZAE  BOBBARAZBR
(T#&TE11) o BRUEASH - RIBA QR —IH
ER T _F-A=1+—HKRIERE
BDREROEREE - DAETOH
e ARITRE(TEE]) -

R =TT =F—A=1+—HAZKR=E
ARg FE#ME  WER_T——F—H
=+ HER ARFEFEARAER
DEERLBERE ZFEERBHESE
PREAEE ZEMRMITHRIFRITEE (K
BEZZEZAT)  BASEZEf[E
B HITERNIERITESAR IS
B2 a8  AEBMZEMITHRAE -
BB  EXRERN  ZXEERREAER
(REEEEAZ FlLAT) NARGRS
THABSEERRE - AFEZEE R
Al ARRIZES & TRABEREE
BERBEA  EERRNEE R (HE
FTERRRAR) FTEZEREHNMB A AL
g8 -

B RS 2EE TR EARLE
Pt fg &R AIFE 2 HIR A T - WEFE
Rz R+ FRTTE -

(@ The Company operates a share options scheme for the purpose of
promoting additional commitment and dedication to the objectives
of the Company by the participants (the “New scheme”). In

addition, certain outstanding share options were still held under

a share option scheme which subsisted until 31 January 2002 and
was terminated on 31 January 2002 (the “Old Scheme”).

The New Scheme was approved by the shareholders in general

meeting on 31 January 2002 and shall expire on 31 January 2012.
The board of directors of the Company may grant options to
eligible participants including any executive or non-executive

directors of the Group (or persons proposed to be appointed as

such), any discretionary object of a discretionary trust established
by any employee, executive or non-executive directors of the
Group, any executives and employees, consultants, professional

and other advisors to the Group (or persons proposed to be

appointed as such), chief executive, substantial shareholder of
the Company, associated companies of the Group, associates
of director, chief executive and substantial shareholder of the

Company, and employees of substantial shareholder and where a

substantial shareholder is a company, employees of subsidiaries

of a substantial shareholder.

Share options are generally either fully vested or vested over a

period of time up to a maximum of four years after the acceptance
of a grant and exercisable within a period of 10 years immediately

after the date of grant.
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30. Share Capltal (continued)

BEME GBI 2 RS B B 24 Details of the movements of the share options granted under both
MR share option schemes are summarised as follows:
ERESE EREREZ
Number of share options fEst R AEE
RZZBELF RAEE REAEE RAEE RAEE RIZBLF Estimated
—A—H R TfE: 8 X% t=A=t—HB fairvalue of
T8 o RITHE Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed o RITHE the share
R B Exercise Outstanding at during during during during  Outstanding at option
Date of grant Price 1/1/2007 the year the year* the year the year 31/12/2007 granted
BT BT
HKS HKS
B3
Old Scheme
20/06/2000 7.190 475,000 - 161,000 - - 314,000 -
21/11/2000 7.080 945,000 - 132,000 - - 813,000 -
1,420,000 - 293,000 - - 1,127,000
#atE
New Scheme
07/02/2002 7.170 634,000 - 350,000 - - 284,000 -
05/03/2002 7.350 3,365,000 - 2,716,000 - - 649,000 -
19/04/2002 7.400 284,000 - 40,000 - - 244,000 -
02/08/2002 8.320 720,000 - 350,000 - - 370,000 -
24/01/2003 7.250 50,000 - 50,000 - - - -
14/04/2003 6.290 394,000 - 190,000 - - 204,000 -
01/08/2003 7.100 80,000 - 40,000 - - 40,000 -
08/10/2003 8.900 352,000 - 230,000 - - 122,000 -
14/01/2004 9.720 15,113,000 - 9,516,000 - 400,000 5,197,000 -
20/04/2004 9.890 2,892,000 - 2,052,000 - - 840,000 -
25/05/2004 9.150 4,154,000 - 2,438,000 - - 1,716,000 -
02/06/2004 9.550 600,000 - - - - 600,000 -
22/07/2004 9.800 160,000 - 50,000 - - 110,000 -
04/10/2004 10.350 17,622,000 = 7,726,000 = = 9,896,000 =
17/01/2005 11.400 120,000 - 40,000 - = 80,000 =
22/07/2005 12.500 720,000 - 230,000 - 80,000 410,000 -
47,260,000 - 26,018,000 - 480,000 20,762,000
48,680,000 = 26,311,000 = 480,000 21,889,000
AIRFRTE
Exercisable at the
end of the year 18,831,000
METETEE (%)
Weighted average
exercise price (HK$) 9.40 - 9.52 - 10.18 9.69
BEREEEADITOT Holders of the share options are analysed as follows:
B3
Old Scheme
& EEmployees 1,420,000 - 293,000 - - 1,127,000
#atE
New Scheme
Z=Directors 600,000 - - - - 600,000
{2 EEmployees 43,175,000 - 23,182,000 - 480,000 19,513,000
Hit2EEOther participants 3,485,000 - 2,836,000 - - 649,000
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=t. B&E @) 30. Share Capital (continued)
2 ] EREREL
Number of share options AR EE
KRBT RE RAEE RAFE RAEE RAFE RZTEXF Estimated
—R—H B 17fk: a3 KB TZA=+—H fair value of
TEE AT Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed AT the share
e =h Exercise Outstanding at during during during during Outstanding at option
Date of grant Price 1/1/2006 the year the year? the year the year 31/12/2006 granted
BT BT
HK$ HK$
EitE
0ld Scheme
20/06/2000 7.190 7,945,000 - 7,470,000 - - 475,000 -
21/11/2000 7.080 3,399,000 - 2,454,000 - - 945,000 -
11,344,000 - 9,924,000 - - 1,420,000
ESTEIE
New Scheme
07/02/2002 7.170 14,514,000 - 13,880,000 - - 634,000 -
05/03/2002 7.350 11,486,000 - 8,121,000 - - 3,365,000 -
08/03/2002 7.500 780,000 - 780,000 - - - -
19/04/2002 7.400 3,650,000 - 3,366,000 - - 284,000 -
23/05/2002 8.900 44,000 - 44,000 - - - -
02/08/2002 8.320 3,834,000 = 2,454,000 = 660,000 720,000 =
07/11/2002 7.700 1,752,000 - 1,752,000 - = = =
24/01/2003 7.250 578,000 - 528,000 - - 50,000 -
14/04/2003 6.290 4,216,000 = 3,822,000 = = 394,000 =
01/08/2003 7.100 660,000 - 580,000 - - 80,000 -
08/10/2003 8.900 1,661,000 - 1,220,000 - 89,000 352,000 -
02/12/2003 9.000 1,070,000 - 1,070,000 - - - -
14/01/2004 9.720 38,963,000 = 20,868,000 = 2,982,000 15,113,000 =
20/04/2004 9.890 5,216,000 - 2,296,000 - 28,000 2,892,000 -
25/05/2004 9.150 24,443,000 - 20,289,000 - - 4,154,000 -
02/06/2004 9.550 5,022,000 - 4,422,000 - - 600,000 -
22/07/2004 9.800 1,590,000 - 1,252,000 - 178,000 160,000 -
04/10/2004 10.350 45,464,000 = 27,514,000 = 328,000 17,622,000 =
17/01/2005 11.400 1,580,000 = 580,000 = 880,000 120,000 =
22/07/2005 12.500 960,000 - 240,000 - - 720,000 -
167,483,000 - 115,078,000 - 5,145,000 47,260,000
178,827,000 - 125,002,000 = 5,145,000 48,680,000
ATRELRITH
Exercisable at the
end of the year 30,722,000

IMETI51T(RE (B¥TT)
Weighted average

exercise price (HKS) 9.23 - 8.29 - 9.86 9.40
BRERBADITNT : Holders of the share options are analysed as follows:
EitE
0ld Scheme
Z=Directors 5,986,000 - 5,986,000 - - -
{2 EEmployees 5,358,000 - 3,938,000 - - 1,420,000
ESTEIE
New Scheme
==Directors 24,266,000 - 23,666,000 - - 600,000
g EEmployees 131,453,000 - 83,133,000 - 5,145,000 43,175,000
Hfth2: 82 Other participants 11,764,000 - 8,279,000 - - 3,485,000
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=t BRAE 30. Share Capital (continued)
B eE - Notes:
1. FABITEERERITEE B B2 T HR 1 The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share
BARBE27.72T(ZTEREFE « B#16.80 options exercised during the year was HK$27.72 (2006: HK$16.80).
JT) °
AEEREBE—TT+tF+_A=1+—H The Group recognised the total expenses of HK$4 million for the
IEFEERARA T EREREREST D year ended 31 December 2007 (2006: HK$23 million) in relation
BELEET(ZTEEARF : BE2388 to the share options granted by the Company.
JT) ©
St B 31. Reserves
rEE The Group
REBEFBEEBFEHNF103EE 1048 Details of changes in reserves of the Group are set out in the
iR E R RS F B K o consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 103 to 104.
AEBRBZFANEBERAEBEBE A The retained profits of the Group include approximately HK$109
AIPTRE 2w MK BB 100B BT (ZEE million (2006: HK$92 million) retained by associates of the Group.
NE B AR °
EERH
HEREE
Employee RREE
JRA}UE  share-based e RE B
Share  compensation Warrant Retained i
premium reserve reserve profits Total
BYEET BERET BERET BYEEET BERET
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
NG| The Company
RZETRF—HA—H At 1 January 2006 11,624 145 168 3,361 15,298
BIROEE Premium on share issued 983 - = = 983
BIRINER Share issue expenses (1) = = - (1)
E%ﬁﬁﬂﬁéﬂﬁu Employees share option benefits - 23 - - 23
REEES SR T ARET Release upon repayment of
compound financial instruments - - (168) 168 -
AER T Profit for the year = = = 2,965 2,965
& Dividends - - - (3,265) (3,265)
W-ZE F+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2006 and
—ER+E-F-H 1 January 2007 12,606 168 - 3,229 16,003
BIIRIDEE Premium on share issued 224 - - - 224
BIRINER Share issue expenses () = - - (1)
& B BRI Employees share option benefits - 4 = = 4
AEERF Profit for the year - - - 2,360 2,360
e (+m) Dividends (Note 14) - - = (2,401) (2,401)
WZZZLFFA=+—H At 31December 2007 12,829 172 - 3,188 16,189

ARAE R DR T IR 2 A5 3,188
BEIL(ZTEENF  Bk3,220887T) ©

Reserves of the Company available for distribution to the
shareholders amounted to HK$3,188 million (2006: HK$3,229
million).
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St GRS RERME
B RETH2EHESRE

&R AR B ST

TEERTARRBEFER
FEMAERERSLA

FISIA
Fss

b EET AR SR
DR BT EERERE
BRR B EEE
BRR ERERERE

BEfER Kt BEERERE

e

oAl B A 5
HERRBWAZ KB IT=
BB R E
BREMEEMR AR

AR FNER 2 B A FZ 2V 3R

REETE SR T A
EEPRERE

32.
A

Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows from operating activities

—BELHF ZEERF
2007 2006
%‘#ﬁﬁ%n B E ST
HKS million HK$ million
Profit before taxation 6,292 3,969
Adjustments for:
Share of net results of
associates (353) (333)
Profit on disposal of
subsidiaries/business (2,399) (517)
Profit on disposal of
associates (78) )
Profit on disposal of available
for sale investments (2) -

Net fair value gain on

derivative financial

instruments (98) (104)
Dividend income from

unlisted available for sale

investments (4) )
Interest income (291) (273)
Interest expenses 487 441
Net loss on disposal of fixed

assets 29 36
Impairment loss recognised

on fixed assets 20 24
Impairment loss recognised

on goodwill 4 -

Impairment loss recognised
on available for sale

investments 6 =
Impairment loss recognised

on other intangible assets 41 1
Depreciation 1,601 1,527
Amortisation of other

intangible assets 9 31
Discount on acquisition

recognised as income (5) -
Tank storage service fee

utilised 11 22
Valuation gain on investment

properties (567) (528)
Share based payment charged

against equity 4 23

Release of hedge reserve upon
settlement of derivative
financial instruments - (2)

LERSEBR 2K EEN
&=
=]

Operating profit before

working capital changes 4,707 4,309
TEMEZESH) Changes in properties held
for sale 1 5
HthFE 2 &F) Changes in other stocks (2,852) (812)
B 5 hEMBWFIE E8) Changes in trade and other
receivables (998) (652)
TESBMTAZES) Changes in derivative financial
instruments 85 79
B 5 R HMER FRIE 2 & Changes in trade and other
payables 4,737 2,459
KEMSCIRE Cash generated from operations 5,680 5,388
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St ZEREREXRME @ 32. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
(continued)
Z HEWMBAR %% B Disposal of subsidiaries/business
—ETLHF ZETRF
2007 2006
BEEET BEAET
HKS million HK$ million
HEBEFE Net assets disposed of:
EE & E Fixed assets 518 1,223
Bl Goodwill - 34
Hifmp & E Other intangible assets - 491
NNl iy Interests in associates - 19
AERE Available for sale investments 1 27
TEfSFRIE Prepayments 270 -
"E Stocks 661 620
B 5 R E A ERGRIA Trade and other receivables 1,646 936
PTHESmMIA Derivative financial
instruments 93 —
AR [EFIE Taxation recoverable 2 =
e RRITHEF Cash and bank balances 955 979
H 5 R HAMERFIR Trade and other payables (1,509) (1,285)
PTESBITA Derivative financial
instruments (70) -
RHAIE R Short term loans (477) (96)
FER TR Taxation payable (69) (49)
RHIER Long term loans (400) (303)
EIEFIEAE Deferred taxation liabilities (21) =
1,600 2,596
DY RE S Minority interests - (119)
GEEREE Reserves released ® (45)
HEHBAR, ¥ Profit on disposal of
Fr S A subsidiaries/business 2,399 517
3,991 2,949
LATRBIF A2 - Satisfied by:
BReRE Cash consideration 3,991 2,949
HEMBAR %% Analysis of the net inflow of
FBzRERREEE cash and cash equivalents
RAREDN in respect of disposal of
subsidiaries/business
BUIRSRE Cash considerations received 3,991 2,949
HERS RIRTTET Cash and bank balances
disposed of (955) 979)
3,036 1,970
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ST HZRERERERME W 32. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

(continued)

[ 1] PN S C  Acquisition of subsidiaries/business
—EELHF ZETRF
2007 2006
BEEBET BEARET
HKS million HK$ million
WHEFTS F EE 2 REE The carrying amounts and fair
RAnEHE: values of the net assets
acquired:
BEE&EE Fixed assets 1,313 465
EES Goodwill 2 =
HEmEpEE Other intangible assets 11 =
AEHRE Available for sale investments 2 =
RN 2 Interests in associates 7 =
"7E Stocks 166 48
B 5 R E A ERGRIA Trade and other receivables 393 27
RIEFIEEE Deferred taxation assets 9 =
e RIRITEF Cash and bank balances 207 10
B 5 N A T IE Trade and other payables (694) (93)
FERITHIE Taxation payable (11) ()
RIETIEAE Deferred taxation liabilities (145) =
HAIE R Short term loans (161) (98)
RHEAER Long term loans 43) =
1,056 358
DEAR R e Minority interests (275) (53)
IR EE 2 PS8 Goodwill on acquisition 496 348
W B EE A 2 HTRE Discount on acquisition () =
1,272 653
LATS A R Discharged by:
BRe Cash 1,191 593
FEREE#RR Balance of consideration
payable 81 60
1,272 653
WEHBLAR EE2 Analysis of the net outflow of
ReRkBEELEHE cash and cash equivalents in
REREDN respect of acquisition of
subsidiaries/business’s
undertaking
BEfRERE Cash consideration paid (1,291) (593)
WHERTSIR® RIRTTHETF Cash and bank balances
acquired 207 10
(984) (583)
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ST EREE 33. Capital Commitments
AEE /N
The Group The Company

REZRRKRTRLZ Capital commitments outstanding
BARAEWT at the balance sheet date
are as follows:
EROE ARG Contracted but not provided for 3,054 999 - =
EHERBAREL Authorised but not contracted for 3,491 1,249 - =
6,545 2,248 - -
SR EEEORE 34. Operating Lease Commitments
() fERABA (@) As lessee
rEE b N
The Group The Company

NEE R - BREBAA T At the balance sheet date, the
EEMAZAR T HRE total future minimum lease
IRz HEREHIRRE - payments under non-
cancellable operating leases
are payable as follows:
—E—FR - Within one year 1,255 978 - -
—EEFEERF - In the second to fifth year
(BEEEME) inclusive 4,128 3,105 - =
—hFEZIE — After five years 6,707 5,020 - -
12,090 9,103 - =
EEREFEEASEREASE TZEMM Operating lease payment represents rental payable by the
UEMESHzHE  HOEBIR—=F Group for certain of its retail outlets and properties. Leases are
=TEZHEEFHER - negotiated for lease terms principally ranged from 1 to 30 years.
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SR EEBNRE ) 34. Operating Lease Commitments (continued)
() EBERAA (b) As lessor

REE b /N
The Grou The Compan

REER - RIBET A T8 At the balance sheet date, the
EEMHA AT T EARE total future minimum lease
WER 2 B E B payments under non-cancellable
operating leases are receivable
as follows:
—E—FR - Within one year 554 463 1 1
~EE-_FEERF ~ In the second to fifth year
(BEEREME) inclusive 940 560 1 1
—hFEZE — After five years 971 297 - -
2,465 1,320 2 2
hEME 2 HBFLHHEBFEN F1210 These properties have committed tenants for an average term
Fo from 1 to 10 years.
L RREE 35. Contingent Liabilities
rEHE b N
The Group The Company

REER - AABATHIRAR At the balance sheet date, there
RAEIRIT R EMEFUER were contingent liabilities in
MmEEZKABE respect of guarantees for banks

loans provided to

—E AR - subsidiaries - - 7,943 7,826
——MBEE AR — an associate 500 500 500 500
500 500 8,443 8,326
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Material Related Party Transactions

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which
are related parties of the Company, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. In addition to the
transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group entered into the following material related

party transactions.

—EBELF
2007
BY¥EET
HKS million
Purchase of goods from
associates 446
Receiving of services from
A holding company 1
Fellow subsidiaries 81
Associates 23
Sales of goods to
A holding company -
Fellow subsidiaries 3
Associates 69
Rendering of services to fellow
subsidiaries 3
Operating lease payment
A holding company 3
Fellow subsidiaries 52
Associates 2
Tank storage service fees
A holding company 70
Fellow subsidiaries 1
Management fee received for
provision of certain services
at oil depot
A holding company 1
Fellow subsidiaries 9
Transaction under godown
management agreement and
facilities management
Receipt of service fee from
A holding company 131
Fellow subsidiaries 96
Payment of monthly fee to
a holding company 36

ZETREF

2006
BERET
HK$ million

368

237
25

42

142

53

140

19

172
86

36
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SINERBERS @) 36. Material Related Party Transactions (continued)
A (&) A (continued)
REBE T EREER S The Group had the following material related party balances:
—BBLF —TTREF
2007 2006
BYEEET BEEETT
HKS million HK$ million
FEURGRIR - Amount due from:
B RREEZHIE AR Fellow subsidiaries 11 12
/N Associates 21 25
FESIFRIR ¢ Amount due to:
BAREEZHBAR Fellow subsidiaries 56 57
YN Associates 26 19

Z EMhEANBEREHEE XS 4 B Transactions/balances with other state-controlled entities in
ﬁf% o Chinese Mainland.

AREBEARE ARBEFEBHENR(ZAR The Group itself is a part of a larger group of companies under
A [5R Bk e %IJ)HET—“FEK AEBEZ CRNC which is controlled by the PRC government. Apart from the
KE - BFREFEFANTIER N ANE B S transactions with CRNC group and the associates of the Group, it
NAEEITZRHHN + AEEINVER B EB also conducts businesses with entities directly or indirectly owned
JBFE A B R B T B ok T A sk or controlled by the PRC government in the ordinary course of
CEEBEITERATNR cEERAE  BKEH business. The directors are of the opinion that those entities
N T EBN Mgg\@%jﬂ%jﬁg@ﬁa}g other than the CRNC group do not have the power to govern or
R EABIET N2 B 7 B TS N AR BB o participate in the financial and operating policies of the Group.
LEBET IR (B %EEED%&HW%) The transactions including sales and purchases of goods and

T AN E B —RETGBIZRT L - z]s’% l%{% services, with these entities are conducted in the ordinary course
B SRE TR Pt v REiE of the Group’s business. The Group believes that it has provided,
TORFEWEENK - at the best of its knowledge, adequate and appropriate disclosure

of related party transactions as summarised above.

A FESEAS 7 C Compensation of key management personnel
YRNTFIEEBAS(EBEAATES) Remuneration paid for key management personnel include solely
ZEEE M+ IRE o the directors of the Company as disclosed in note 10.

St HER RS 37. Approval of Financial Statements

Fog7AEF B AB M BERECKE
FERN_TTN\F=H=t+—HitkE-

The financial statements set out on pages 97 to 185 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2008.
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TENB AR LEE AT
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

R-_ZFEZF{+=-H=+—H At 31 December 2007

ER{TEERRATE/ RaemBl
SmER Percentage of capital
Nominal value of issued REBERS NG KWEARRE
WEARRBENR ordinary share capital/ attributable held by heldby FEEHK
Subsidiaries and associates registered capital to the Group the Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
(=) B8
(1) Retail
WEREMA L
Incorporated in Hong Kong
FE(RE)BRAF 5,000,000 A &R EIE 100.0 - 1000 ZTELH
Chinese Arts & Crafts (H..) Bt o7 LBk Retail business
Limited 5,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$10 each
ZHER(BE) BB LR 90,000,000 B EIE 100.0 - 1000 @MER  REERRER
China Resources Vanguard BRI LER iR
(Hong Kong) Company 90,000,000 ordinary shares of Supermarket operations,
Limited HK$1 each investment holding and
wholesale of merchandise
BERBARAR 1,000,000 R S H & 100.0 = 1000 BEREEES
Yuen Fat Wharf & Godown AT LR Wharf & godown services
Company Limited 1,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
R B R L
Incorporated in the Chinese Mainland
» EEEFRRAR AEH1,403,000,0007C 100.0 65.0 B0 HMXHK
(China Resources Vanguard RMB 1,403,000,000 Supermarket operations
Co., Ltd.)
» N ERE RS 71226,200,0007C 100.0 - 1000 BILH
BRAR HK$226,200,000 Supermarket operations
*EREREHNBTERLA  12,096,140F T 100.0 = 1000 @MER
(China Resources Vanguard US$12,096,140 Supermarket operations
(Suzhou) Supermarket Co.,
Ltd.)
* BREMERAH A #582,820,0007C 85.0 - 850 RMER
(Suguo Supermarket Co., Ltd) ~ RMB582,820,000 Supermarket operations
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TEMBARRBZE AT
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

BRILERRAEE/

&R

Nominal value of issued
WEARRBE LT ordinary share capital/
Subsidiaries and associates registered capital

(-) BE(&)
(1) Retail (Continued)

ReERERRL(E)

Incorporated in Chinese Mainland (Continued)

FTERERERMERAR  AR¥124,000,0007
(China Resources Cikelong RMB 124,000,000
(Zhejiang) Supermarket Co.,
Ltd)

*ERERERET(EN) AE 830,000,000
BRAR RMB 30,000,000
(China Resources Vanguard
(Guangzhou) Superstore

Co., Ltd.)
* HERIRRAERAR 1,000,000 7T
US$1,000,000
REBRZEEZMA L

Incorporated in British Virgin Islands

@ Tactical Solutions Incorporated 100 FREEETZ LER
100 ordinary shares of US$1 each

(Z) &M

(2) Beverage

REBRZEEEMA L
Incorporated in British Virgin Islands
ERETEEERAA 42,800,200k BREELET
China Resources Snow LRk
Breweries Limited 42,800,200 ordinary shares of
US$1 each

VuNERild
Percentage of capital
REBER KAREE
attributable held by

to the Group the Company

100.0 -

100.0 -

51.0 =

51.0 51.0
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HWEAFEE
held by
subsidiaries

100.0

100.0

100.0

51.0

TERH

Principal activities

EIES

Supermarket operations

eSS
Supermarket operations

REREAERDH
Wholesale and distribution of
apparel and accessories

RERR

Investment holding

REER
Investment holding



HEARRKEDT

Subsidiaries and associates

(2) @)
(2) Beverage (Continued)

BRI RE R A

Incorporated in the Chinese Mainland

 EREREE(NI)ERES
7]
(China Resources Snow
Breweries (Sichuan) Co.,

Limited)
* EREREE(ER)EREAT
NS
* %E/ IETERE (R BRER
NG

(China Resources Snow
Breweries (Leshan) Co.,
Limited)

* ERETBE(&E)ERET
AF]
(China Resources Snow
Breweries (Mianyang) Co.,
Ltd))

* ?/ é{E”@/E(/ﬂ%‘)ﬁﬁ

» EREEE(RH)ARAR

(China Resources Snow
Breweries (Anhui) Co., Ltd.)

*ERETRN(HE)ERAR
(China Resources Snow
Brewery (Wuhan) Co., Ltd.)

ERTEBRRAEE/ BARDY
SREA Percentage of capital
Nominal value of issued REBERS NG
ordinary share capital/ attributable held by
registered capital to the Group the Company
ARE124,143,85370 51.0 -
RMB124,143,853

AR®113,792,5017C 51.0 -
RMB113,792,501

A& %35,000,0007 51.0 =
RMB35,000,000

AE#100,000,00070 51.0 -
RMB100,000,000

AKE116,240,0007T 5.9 -
RMB116,240,000

AE%246,000,0007C 51.0 -
RMB246,000,000

AEH570,000,0007C 459 =
RMB570,000,000

TENBAR REERR
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

KWEARRE
held by
subsidiaries

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

90.0

100.0

90.0

IEEH

Principal activities

REN P R
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

HENDHEEER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

BEN D HEEER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

BENH HEEER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

BEN D R
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

HEND S EER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

HENSEREER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
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TEMBARRBZE AT
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

BRTLEBRRARE/
HHEA
Nominal value of issued AEEES
HWEARAREEAR ordinary share capital/ attributable
Subsidiaries and associates registered capital to the Group
() g@(E)
(2) Beverage (Continued)
REEIRERAL(E)
Incorporated in the Chinese Mainland (Continued)
* EREREE(hE )R E 399,542,916 51.0
BRAF US$399,542,916
* ERETEEGER)ERAR 60,814,805 T 51.0
US$60,814,189
o EREREH(RE)ERAR 6,500,005 510
US$6,500,000
* EEETRA(KE)ERAT 21,200,000 51.0
(China Resources Snow US$21,200,000
Brewery (Dalian) Co., Ltd.)
* REEEREEEEERAT  AK%96,000,0007T 510
(China Resources (Dalian) RMB96,000,000
Bangchuidao Brewery Co.,
Ltd)
EFETREONI)ERAE  ARE120,000,0007T 35.7
RMB120,000,000
o ERETER(TE)ERAF 114,000,000 T 510
(China Resources Snow US$114,000,000

Breweries (jiangsu) Co.,
Ltd))
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Percentage of capital

WEAREE
held by
subsidiaries

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

70.0

100.0

TEER

Principal activities

RERR

Investment holding

BENH HERER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

RENSEBEER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

RENSHHBEER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

SUEM D R
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

SENH HEEER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

HENSHBEER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products



WEARAREEAR
Subsidiaries and associates

(2) RRMITREH

(3) Food Processing and Distribution

RERERAL

Incorporated in Hong Kong

LETERRT
Ng Fung Hong Limited

RERWKERR AT

Ng Fung Frozen Meats &
Aquatic Products Co.
Limited

@ PEMAERARLT

Chung Kong Luen Livestock

Company Limited

RESHEERAL

Incorporated in Cayman Islands

he (REERERAF)

China International Fisheries

Corp

REBELHE MR

BRTLERRAARE
B0

Nominal value of issued
ordinary share capital/
registered capital

1,046,258,000 X IR FEESE
04T ERk

1,046,258,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each

5,000,000 R EE BT
ZEER
5,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

60,0001k &R B /51,0007
60,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1,000 each

60,864 BIRAEETL
LR

60,864 ordinary shares of
US$1 each

Incorporated in British Virgin Islands

@ Victory Return Corporation

REREEET AR
1 ordinary share of US$1 each

BREEAE

Percentage of capital

REEEL KRARE
attributable held by
to the Group the Company
100.0 =

94.0 =

35.7 -

51.0 =

51.0 =

TENBAR REERR
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

HELTHE

held by

subsidiaries

100.0

94.0

51.0

51.0

100.0

TEER

Principal activities

BERRRMEHE B
fe  RRRERREER
Distribution of fresh, live and
frozen foodstuff, abattoir
operation, acting as food
agent and investment holding

EHRARKE
Trading of frozen meats and
aquatic products

ERME

Wholesale of live pigs

RERR

Investment holding

RARRREREFER
BEAHE

Marine fishing and the
provision of ship stores and
fishing supplies

##MAIZAMRA T China Resources Enterprise, Limited | annual report 2007 F3§

181



TEMBRATRBELNT]

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

WEARAREEAR
Subsidiaries and associates

(2) REMIREH(E)

BRTLERRAARE
B0

Nominal value of issued
ordinary share capital/
registered capital

(3) Food Processing and Distribution (Continued)

RAEAEERA L

Incorporated in the Chinese Mainland

* AERR(RINBEBAR
(Ng Fung Foods (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd.)

* NS NEERAR
(Hangzhou Ng Fung United
Meat Co., Ltd)

RESEEMAL

Incorporated in the Panama

@ Jin Feng S.A.

(M) &
(&) Textile

RERERAL

Incorporated in Hong Kong

EFHR(EE)ARAT

China Resources Textiles

(Holdings) Company Limited

A& 543,000,007
RMB543,000,000

AE%50,000,0007T
RMB50,000,000

200 BREE ST LER

200 ordinary shares of US$1 each

100,000,001 FREEE T
ERk

100,000,001 ordinary shares of

HK$1 each

NPl
Percentage of capital
REEEL KRARE
attributable held by
to the Group the Company
70.0 =
65.0 =
51.0 =
100.0 =
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WEAREE
held by
subsidiaries

70.0

65.0

100.0

100.0

TEER

Principal activities

BEME  BRLE
REMIRZSH %
Livestock raising, abattoir
operation, meat products
processing and poultry
wholesaling

MEHER e
Wholesale and distribution of
meat

REX HERSRREAR
R RE L S H TR
Marine fishing, vessel
chartering and the provision
of ship stores, fishing supplies
and bunker oil

RERR

Investment holding



WEARAREEAR
Subsidiaries and associates

(W) &8 (&)
() Textile (Continued)

REBRMAL(H)

ERTEERRAEE,
HHEA

Nominal value of issued
ordinary share capital/
registered capital

Incorporated in Hong Kong (Continued)

EBnAmERAT
China Resources Textiles
Company Limited

Wan Hsin Company Limited

FohEARAF

Hsin Hung Textiles Limited

R BRI

5,000,000 FREEHE T
LR

5,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1
each

2IRBAREEE %1002
LRk

2 ordinary shares of HK$1,000
each

2,000,000k FEAEEE 1T
TRR

2,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1
each

Incorporated in the Chinese Mainland

e+ EESRRERRERAA
(China Resources Textiles
Investment & Development
Co., Ltd.)

e RIERSEER AT
(Shandong Liaocheng China
Resources Textiles Co., Ltd.)

@™ ERRERHARLT
(China Resources Jinhua Co.,
Ltd)

@* ERERRGERAA
(China Resources Yantai Nylon
Co., Ltd))

73,200,000 T
US$73,200,000

20,430,000 T
US$20,430,000

AEE129,665,718TC
RMB129,665,718

13,315,000 7T
US$13,315,000

TENBAR REERR
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

UNERild

Percentage of capital
FEEER KARRE WEARRE
attributable held by held by
to the Group the Company subsidiaries
100.0 - 100.0
100.0 = 100.0
100.0 = 100.0
100.0 = 100.0
100.0 = 100.0
51.0 = 51.0
65.0 - 65.0

TEER

Principal activities

DAamERRREER
Trading of textiles and
investment holding

PRBHERREER
Trading of textile products
and investment holding

RESHERRERR
Trading of apparel and
investment holding

REBRRBIEEH
Investment holding and
trading of cotton

PIEERBHRREER
Manufacture and trading

of textile products and
investment holding

PREEREHEIRERR
Manufacture and trading

of textile products and
investment holding

T EEREH
Manufacture and trading of
fabric products
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TEMBARRBZE AT
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

WEARAREEAR
Subsidiaries and associates

(B) 0%
(5) Property

RERERAL

Incorporated in Hong Kong

ZE% (B8 ERAT
CRE Properties (Hong Kong)
Limited

CRE Property (Nan Fung Centre)
Limited

CRE Property (Argyle Centre)
Limited

CRE Property (Silvercord)
Limited

EEEZXERAT
Worldfaith Properties Limited

(77) RERLEM
(6) Investments and Others

RERERAL

Incorporated in Hong Kong

ERAEYE (RS ERA
CRE Finance (Hong Kong)
Limited

=

RESREERAL

Incorporated in Cayman Islands

Purple Finance Limited

BRTLERRAARE
B0

Nominal value of issued
ordinary share capital/
registered capital

MRERAEEE T AR
2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

MREREAEEE T LR

2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

JERTEER T EBR

2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

MERTEER T EBR

2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

SRERAEAE T2 ERR
3 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

RERAEAE T LAR
2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

MEREERTLEBR

2 ordinary shares of US$1 each

BREEAE

Percentage of capital

REEEL KRARE
attributable held by
to the Group the Company
100.0 =

100.0 -

100.0 -

100.0 -

939 -

100.0 100.0

100.0 100.0
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WEAREE
held by
subsidiaries

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

TEER

Principal activities

RABRRNEER
Investment holding and
property management

ESIE

Property investment

ESIE

Property investment

ESE

Property investment

ESE

Property investment

g

Financing

g

Financing



TENBAR REERR
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

ERGEARBATE/ L

SREA Percentage of capital

Nominal value of issued rEEER RAFRE WEAREE
WEARRBENR ordinary share capital/ attributable held by heldby FEEK
Subsidiaries and associates registered capital to the Group the Company subsidiaries  Principal activities

(75) RERAM(S)

(6) Investments and Others (Continued)

REBRZESEMA L
Incorporated in British Virgin Islands
@#A HIT Investments Limited 200RBREBET . EBAR 10.0 = 00 TEEARERIEEEZE
200 ordinary "A" shares of Investment in container
US$1 each terminal operations in Hong
Kong
@#A Hutchison Ports Yantian 200RERAGEET L EBR 10.0 - 100 ARERSREREEEEE
Investments Limited 200 ordinary shares of US$1 each Investment in container

G

terminal operations in the
Chinese Mainland

Notes:

5

=W

&

BEERA TEHSIMEMBERMEARFESEREANLR N EREFINUAEEXENEEATAZE N ZHBRRIRBEARFE -

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the particulars of all subsidiaries and associates will be of excessive length and
therefore the above list contains only the particulars of the subsidiaries and associates which materially affect the results or assets of the
Group.

BEAEFAEN - FRBZ EREFEAERRIFENE ML P,
Unless otherwise stated, the principal country of operation of each company is the same as its place of incorporation.

ERBERM MK AR  ERXEBRNES B ZHETZERER
For companies incorporated in the Chinese Mainland, the English name is as shown in the Certificate of Approval of each company.

FAN - ARBEUBREBESIAEETBAE TRBARZRE  HPERSEETER ST LFI - AEEAARFE G REEAFEILCEE
FEEETRESEMRR RO EB2388 T -

During the year, the Group acquired equity interests in certain brewery companies for an aggregate consideration of HK$893 million of which
HK$812 million was paid in 2007. As a result of the acquisitions, the Group's profit for the year and the net assets at the year end have both
been decreased by HK$23 million.

A R
A Associates
& BB
* Equity Joint Venture
o ONEREE

xk Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise

e PHAREE

**kx  Listed Joint Stock Company

A X EREE

2 Chinese trade name

# FREHZEZB SRR EZTRGRMITEEALES -

# Significant influence is exercised through the participation of regular board meeting of the associates
@  WIMEY  BERASHITERZAR -

@

Companies not audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
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TEMERE
SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

R-ZFEZF{+=-H=+—H At 31 December 2007

{2 ELocation

FEREME

Properties held for investment

&t
Hong Kong

AL —H

HIEEAZD D « T E D141 - 42T A - 5i8

R BB [ a3 AR R R B E M IME R B SR
JLEERT A M8 6885 i & £ H 655

Argyle Centre, Phase |

Portion A on Basement, Portion of G/F,

1 to 4/F and Flat Roof of 4/F, 5/F and

Part of External Walls and the Sign board of Portion A of
Argyle Centre facing Sai Yeung Choi Street South and
Argyle Street and scavenging lane,

688 Nathan Road

65 Argyle Street

Mongkok
Kowloon
AL
31 M 575k B L

A034-Ao41 ~ Ao4s ~ A128 »

A4201 * A4301 * A4502 K A4602EE0] ¢

B 1EREEGETS)

KB BRAIER IR KA RATER 2 2= [
FREES LA 264-2985%

Nan Fung Centre

Lorry parking space Nos. 31 and 57 on Basement
Units Ao34-Ao41, Aos4s, A128, A4201, A4301,
A4502 and A4602 and portion on 1/F-3/F with
Flat Roof and the space between the floor ceiling
and the original concrete ceiling over portion of 3/F
264-298 Castle Peak Road

Tsuen Wan, New Territories

BT

N 9B & — 10ASE 4 N —1E B4

NEERD BT EFRES

Star House

Shop 9B — 10A on G/F & Shop B on 1/F
3 Salisbury Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon
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rEE
Frib Rz
Group's
Interest

100%

100%

100%

BHEE

(F7K)

Floor Area
(sq.m.)

7,216

7,075

1,309

Rz
Type

Gl
c/cp

HAFH

Lease term

R
Long

]

Medium

KH
Long



{z ELocation

BEREWE®)

Properties held for investment (continued)

8@
Hong Kong (continued)

£ LN

1 N 5—185% © 20A * 20B K 20CHRFHAL -
BRFALAAREEARBARD) -
15382 E Ry ERET A

BB EE A E 193157 LB AT 2-85%
Lok Sing Centre

Shop Nos. 5-18, 20A, 20B and 20C on G/F
Entrance at Yee Wo Street (Entrance A)
Entrance at Sugar Street (Entrance B)

the whole of 1/F to 3/F

and the whole Flat Roof on 4/F Level
19-31 Yee Wo Street and 2-8 Sugar Street
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

AR
T~ 3855 8118 3957 Al M 248 415k 4
HIEE13 * 14 15 * 16 1758 EAL
BE D H E R B 3055
Silvercord
Shop No. 38 on the G/F
Shop No. 39 on 1/F and Shop No. 41 on 2/F
Tower 1 and Car Park
Nos. 13, 14, 15, 16 and 17 on Basement
30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

FERE
BEBIEEAE 1655
CAC Tower

165 Hoi Bun Road
Kwun Tong, Kowloon

rEH
Frib R
Group's
Interest

100%

100%

100%

ES-2YES T
SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

BHEE
(FF3K)
Floor Area Az HAOFEH
(sq.m.) Type Lease term
8,982 [ =31
C Long
7,849 A= K H
C/cP Long
13,900 T T A
| Medium
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ES-2YES T
SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

{2 ELocation

BEREWE®)

Properties held for investment (continued)

8@
Hong Kong (continued)

hAEREAE

T 51142 0 1318 0 15E 20 R E(BEXE)
KR 1-23 SREELL -

NEERDEEME 11555

Chung Dah Godown Building

Ground floor, 5 to 11/F, 13/F,

15/F to 20/F (including Main Roof)

and car park Nos. 1 to 23 on Ground Floor

115 King Lam Street,

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon

ER D

11210158 E @ 2AERIEEEF S -

LEL01RE  6EEE R

2124 ENEER

E{7P1-P103 * L1-L15 * L17-L43
AZRAIANE 88 5

Riley House

Unit 101 on 1/F, The whole of 2/F, 3/F & Roof Flat,
Unit 401 on 4/F, Godown on 6/F,

Cargo Lift Nos. 21-24,

Car Parking Spaces P1-P103, L1-L15, L17-L43,
88 Lei Muk Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories

EHE
NEEAE 233-2395%
JD Mall,

233-239 Nathan Road,
Jordan, Kowloon
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rEE
Frib Rz
Group's
Interest

100%

100%

89%

BHEE

(F7K)

Floor Area
(sq.m.)

14,782

33,485

9,599

Type

I
I/CP

HAFH

Lease term

]

Medium

P

Medium

]

Medium



{z ELocation

BEREWE®)

Properties held for investment (continued)

8@
Hong Kong (continued)

ShIE T3
BEE7 ' 8RR oETIH N

H1EEL39 » L40 * L4s o Lg6 » Loz M L48SR ST

NEEMESIEEB1755
Yau Tong Industrial City

Workshop on 7/F, 8/F and 9/F of Block B

and Lorry Parking Space

Nos. L39, Lgo, L4s, L46, L47 and
L48 on Basement

17 Ko Fai Road

Yau Tong

Kowloon

HEFAE

b: ANV

BB LS E 5518 488-4905%
Hennessy Apartments

G/F-4/F

488-490 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

HEIRt

Chinese Mainland

BRAIFImERE R 2GS
TLPITH R B 19650%

TP SRR B — BR 305k
BRA R 2R R PI R B
RmAERRMARER

AEmEALBREDT 709

B A : [T EIE (EE

Note: (@ Commercial R:

F=
Residential

& -

CP:

rEH
Frib R
Group's
Interest

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

=E%
Car Park
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FiiE

TEMEMR

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

BHEE

(F7K)

Floor Area
(sq.m.)

9,702

3,125

62,915

43,566

16,212

53,051

WA=

Office

R®
Type

IfF
l/cP

~ o

~ o

Gk

BAFH

Lease term

FER

Medium

~HA
Long

FER

Medium

]

Medium

T

Medium

T

Medium

T

Industial
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AFEPHERRE
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

=% —ETPNF —ETREF ZETRF —EZtHF
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
BEBET A¥asr A¥asErx B¥EErT BY¥EER
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HKS million

mEHEE Consolidated results
wam Turnover 34,671 47,078 53,891 65,437 62,123
PR BR P 1 4 ) Profit attributable to shareholders 1,429 1,480 2,220 2,776 4,961
EREAR B Basic earnings per share HK$0.69 HK$o0.70 HK$1.02 HK$1.19 HKS2.09
FAXRE B, Dividend per share
i Hf Interim HK$o0.10 HK$0.11 HK$o0.13 HK$0.14 HKSo.15
RER Final HK$0.14 HK$0.16 HK$0.25 HK$0.26 HKSo.30
HK$0.24 HK$0.27 HK$0.38 HK$o0.40 HKSo.45
5 51l HA Special interim &t Note 1 - - HK$1.00 HKSo0.60
FAEEEAMBRK  Consolidated balance sheet
EEEE Fixed assets 14,820 19,215 21,436 23,040 29,876
GEES Goodwill 1,346 2,319 3,084 3,481 6,133
HEihEmp EE Other intangible assets 204 211 630 113 81
RERIRE Long term investments 1,976 1,659 1,147 1,206 1,493
AT I8 Prepayments 458 960 411 467 205
BERIEEE Deferred taxation assets 141 167 140 123 119
mENEEFE Net current assets 2,928 3,140 2,086 1,398 1,003
EoiER Employment of capital 21,873 27,671 28,934 29,828 38,910
&N Share capital 2,090 2,123 2,233 2,358 2,385
i Reserves 10,910 13,002 15,963 16,783 20,486
&R Shareholders’ funds 13,000 15,125 18,196 19,141 22,871
DR IERS Minority interests 3,859 4,811 4,747 5,824 7,293
REIBE Long term liabilities 4,184 6,797 5,040 3,840 7,503
REMBEE Deferred taxation liabilities 830 938 951 1,023 1,243
2ERES Capital employed 21,873 27,671 28,934 29,828 38,910
Bi5E Note:
1. ZET=FHRIPHRETIERFE TRAARRS 1. The 2003 special interim dividend represented a special distribution in specie
ERE—IRERCORERBR AR Z RN ERER of one share in China Resources Cement Holdings Limited for every ten shares
RS e of the Company was distributed.
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Set out below is a summary of the notice of the annual general meeting,
the full version of which is set out in the circular to be dispatched to
shareholders separately.

An Annual General Meeting of China Resources Enterprise, Limited will

be held at 5oth Floor, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong on Thursday, 29 May 2008 at 3:30 p.m. for the

following purposes:

Ordinary Resolutions

1. To receive and consider the audited Financial Statements and the
Directors’ Report and the Independent Auditor’s Report for the
year ended 31 December 2007.

2.  To declare a final dividend.

3.  To re-elect retiring Directors and to fix the fees for all Directors.

4. To re-appoint Auditors and authorise the Directors to fix their
remuneration.

5. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to repurchase shares
not exceeding 10% of the issued share capital.

6. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to issue additional
shares not exceeding 20% of the issued share capital.

7. To extend the general mandate to issue shares under item

6 hereof by the addition thereto of the number of shares
repurchased under item 5 hereof.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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ExggE

Managing Director
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Non-Executive Directors
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Independent
Non-Executive Directors
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Company Secretary
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Auditors
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Registered Office

ERRTT

Principal Bankers
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Song Lin
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Chen Shulin
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Wang Qun
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Lau Pak Shing
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Kwong Man Him
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Yan Biao
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Jiang Wei
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Wang Shuaiting
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Li Fuzuo
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Du Wenmin

Chan Po Fun, Peter
EAE

Houang Tai Ninh
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Li Ka Cheung, Eric
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Cheng Mo Chi
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Chan Bernard Charnwut
T

Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon
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Lee Yip Wah, Peter
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Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

BBETBEE 265 E B ARE 3912
39/F, China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

FRETT (BB ) BRAH

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
R RERIRITIR D AR A A

China Construction Bank Corporation
BRRITIRDBRAF]

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.
RIS 1ERTT

Rabobank International

IntRE ZERTT

Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd.
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INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS
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Financial Calendar
NEFEE
Announcement of annual results
BEARRAREHAR SRR D 2
1% PR Hf
Last day of dealings in shares with
entitlement to final dividend

=B BH
Closure of register period

REABENKE

Payment of final dividend

R4 B

Share Registrars

ERER
Depositary

B AR5
Stock Codes

REERE

Investor Relations

2008F 3 A31H
31 March 2008

2008 5 H 21 H
21 May 2008

2008 5 26 HE 5 A29 H(BIEEREMK)
26 May 2008 to 29 May 2008 (both days inclusive)

2008 F 6 A 13 BEl A&

On or about 13 June 2008

BEREFRAT
BEELT

SRANER 285
BEER L 2612

Tricor Standard Limited
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

The Bank of New York Mellon
Investor Services

PO Box 11258

Church Street Station

New York, NY10286-1258
USA

EBEERX ST+ 00291

Z1H : 2091 HK

FEFEAL 1 0291.HK

ADR X5 © CRHKY

CUSIP : 16940R109

Hong Kong Stock Exchange : 00291
Bloomberg : 291 HK

Reuters : 0291.HK

ADR symbol : CRHKY

CUSIP : 16940R109

FHL : ir@cre.com.hk
Email: ir@cre.com.hk
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B : info@cre.com.hk

39/F, China Resources Building

26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Tel: 852-2827-1028

Fax: 852-2598-8453

Web: www.cre.com.hk
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